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August 31. 2010

Honorable Joe Manchin, III. Governor
State of West Virginia

Governor Manchin:

The Annual Report of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM)
for the year ended June 30, 2010 is hereby respectfully submitted. This report was prepared
by the staff of BRIM. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation rests with the management of BRIM. We
believe the data, as presented, is accurate and that it is presented in a manner designed to
fairly set forth the results of the operations of BRIM. All information necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of BRIM’s operational activities has been included.

The Annual Report contains discussions of the financial activities and highlights for the past
several fiscal years, and BRIM’s organization chart. The minutes of the Board of Directors
meetings are attached as a supplement to this report.

BRIM is reported as an enterprise fund operating as a single business segment, included as a
blended component unit of the primary government in the State’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR). After applying the criteria set forth in generally accepted
accounting principles, BRIM management has determined there are no organizations that
should be considered component units of BRIM.
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years. BRIM operates by the authority granted in Chapter 29, Article 12; Chapter 33, Article
30; and Chapter 20, Article 5H of the West Virginia Code as amended, and the provisions of
Executive Order 12-86. The day-to-day operations of BRIM are managed by the executive
director, who is responsible for the implementation of policies and procedures established by
the Board members.

BRIM is charged with providing insurance coverage to all state agencies. Additionally,
BRIM provides these services to cities, counties, and non-profit organizations throughout the
State under the provisions of Senate Bill #3 (SB#3). BRIM also provides a coal mine
subsidence reinsurance program, which allows homeowners and businesses to obtain
insurance coverage up to $75,000 for collapses and damage caused by underground coal
mines.

BRIM uses various means to cover its insureds. Although BRIM is not indemnified by an
insurance company, it contracts with an insurance company that is compensated for claims
handling with a flat fee. The primary methods used by BRIM to fund claims payments results
in a more stable and predictable funding of claims and claims related expenses, allowing for
better cash management for the organization.

Beginning in fiscal year 1996, liability claims were handled through a “Modified Paid Loss
Retrospective” rating program, which required an up-front deposit to an insurance company.
As losses occur, payments and reserves are established and charged against the deposit.
When the amount of paid losses within a twelve-month period exceeds the amount of the
deposit, a retrospective billing is produced and BRIM pays that additional amount to the
insurance company.

Beginning in fiscal year 2006, BRIM deposited monies with a financial institution, as trustee,
to hold advance deposits in an escrow account for BRIM liability claims with loss dates after
June 30, 2005. The funds held in escrow, together with their earnings, will be used to fund
the payment of the claims and claims adjustment expenses related to these liability claims.
Periodically, monies are transferred from the escrow account to the insurance company
administering these claims in order to reimburse the insurance company for payments that
they have issued on these claims and claims adjustment expenses on BRIM’s behalf.

Property losses are retained by BRIM up to $1 million. Additionally, excess coverage is
provided beyond the $1 million retention up to a limit of $400 million per occurrence. This
coverage provides reimbursement of loss at the stated or reported value less a $2,500
deductible. Under the mine subsidence program, participating insurers pay BRIM a
reinsurance premium, which is equal to the gross premiums collected for mine subsidence
coverage, less cancellations, less a 30% ceding commission.
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BRIM currently insures approximately 160 state agencies, approximately 900 Senate Bill #3
entities, plus provides mine subsidence reinsurance to approximately 15,000 home and
business owners.

Financial Highlights

The financial statements of BRIM are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In 1993, the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting." BRIM elected to implement the provisions of this Statement beginning in
fiscal year 1994. As permitted by the Statement, BRIM has elected not to adopt Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued after November
30, 1989, unless the GASB specifically adopts such FASB statements or interpretations.

Internal Accounting Structure and Budgetary Control

As mentioned, BRIM reports and meets the requirements of an enterprise fund. BRIM’s
assets and liabilities are accounted for in a single fund.

Internal controls have been put in place to ensure the assets and property of BRIM are
protected from theft, loss or misuse and to provide adequate accounting data for preparing
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) based financial statements.

Internal controls are established to provide reasonable assurance that objectives are met.
Additionally, the concept of reasonable assurance should recognize that the cost to administer
the control should not exceed the benefits derived from the control.

An annual budget is prepared prior to the start of each fiscal year for use as a management
tool and for evaluating performance.
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BRIM On-Line
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We invite you to visit BRIM’s website at http://www.state.wv.us/BRIM. The website is
designed to inform the public about our program and to provide assistance to our
customers. One feature allows claimants to submit a claim electronically for faster
processing and handling. Detailed instructions on how to fill out a renewal questionnaire
are also found on-line. A variety of frequently asked questions on topics ranging from

billing to underwriting can also be found on this site.
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Results of Operations

Below are audited results from operations of four most recent fiscal years ended June 30:

2006 2007 2008 2009
(In thousands)

Operating Revenues:

Premiums $82,824 $80,248 $72,986 $62,427
Less Excess Coverages (4,145) (6,151) (6,394) (5,944)
Net Operating Revenues 78,679 74,097 66,592 56,483
Operating Expenses:

Claims & Claims Adjustment 37,076 35,136 42,982 36,604

General Administrative 4,180 4,305 4,247 3,894
Total Operating Expenses 41,256 39,441 47,229 40,498
Operating Income (Loss) 37,423 34,656 19,363 15,985
Non-Operating Revenues:

Interest Income, Appropriations 6,894 18,047 10,572 7,343
Net Income 44,317 52,703 29,935 23,328
Retained earnings

at beginning of year 527 44,844 97,547 127,630
Change in accounting principle for

other post employment benefits -- -- 148 --
Retained earnings

at end of year $44,844 $97,547 $127,630 $150,958

BRIM has worked diligently for the past several years to maintain positive retained
earnings and eliminate its unfunded liability. In 1995 the unfunded liability was $60
million dollars. Favorable loss patterns and adequate funding enabled BRIM to achieve
positive retained earnings in 1998, 1999, 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009. For the
three years prior to 2005, BRIM had shown a deficit in retained earnings. Several
factors, including unanticipated losses, contributed to BRIM losing money for those
years. BRIM may occasionally experience some adverse loss development. Premiums
continue to be calculated on a basis consistent with exposure and loss trends. It is also
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important to note that BRIM has not received any state appropriations since 2005.
BRIM will continue to closely monitor claims activity with our independent actuary and
will bill premiums accordingly. Efforts are being undertaken to increase the emphasis on
loss control by state agencies and Senate Bill #3 entities, including educational classes
and seminars on sexual harassment, discrimination, liability deductibles, defensive
driving classes, and personally meeting with Cabinet Secretaries to discuss loss histories
of the agencies under their supervision.

The chart below shows the net assets/deficiency for the past ten years. The years shown
in red represent the unfunded liability and years in black represent positive retained

earnings.
Net Assets/Deficiency
200,000
150,000
)
=
S 100,000
0
=
Q
=
£ 50,000
w
S
_C' =
= 1 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
(50,000)
Fiscal Years Ended June 30

West Virginia Patient I njury Compensation Fund

House Bill 2122, signed into law on April 8, 2003, created a patient injury compensation
fund study board “to study the feasibility of establishing a patient injury compensation
fund to reimburse claimants in medical malpractice actions for any portion of economic
damages awarded which are uncollectible due to statutory limitations on damage awards
for trauma care and/or the elimination of joint and several liability of tortfeasor health
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care providers and health care facilities.” The fund would be administered and operated
by BRIM. Eligibility for reimbursement is based on the claimant’s inability, after
exhausting all reasonable means available for recovering the award, to collect all or part
of the economic damages awarded due to the caps.

Through the combined efforts of the BRIM staff, Insurance Commissioner’s Office and
West Virginia Hospital Association, the study was completed and a report was submitted
to the Joint Committee on Government and Finance of the West Virginia Legislature on
December 1, 2003, recommending that the fund be established. On April 2, 2004, House
Bill 4740 was signed into law, effective June 11, 2004. During fiscal year 2005, BRIM
began receiving the appropriated funds into this account.

Audit

BRIM is required by the Financial Accounting and Reporting Section (FARS) of the
Department of Administration to have an annual independent audit. The firm of Ernst &
Young, LLP was selected to perform the audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The
June 30, 2010 report will be available near the end of October 2010.

Risk Management

BRIM is charged with providing loss control and risk management services to all insured
entities throughout the State. BRIM accomplishes this task through a number of programs.
All property insured by BRIM with a value of $1 million or more is inspected annually.

Additionally, BRIM holds various seminars and training programs for its insureds throughout
the year. Topics include boiler operation, employment practices, and general loss prevention.

Cash Management

BRIM’s cash and cash equivalents are managed by the Board of Treasury Investments
according to the provisions of the Code of West Virginia. BRIM management monitors cash
balances on both a daily and a monthly basis.

Certificate of Achievement for Excellencein Financial Reporting

The West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2009, from which the information on page(s)
one through eight have been drawn, was awarded the Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting by the Government Finance Officers Association of the
United States and Canada (GFOA). The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of
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recognition for excellence in state and local government financial reporting. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Since June 30, 1995, BRIM has issued a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).
This report contains an introductory section, a financial section and a statistical section. The
financial section will contain audited data for June 30, 2010. The CAFR for fiscal year 2010
will be issued before December 31, 2010. A copy of this report will be sent to the
Governor’s Office upon completion.

Acknowledgments

This report would not be possible without the assistance of the BRIM staff and the support of
the Board members.

Sincerely,

Charles E. Jones, Jr.
Executive Director
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Source:

State Listing of Coveragesin Effect for Fiscal Year 2010

LIABILITY LIMIT OF LIABILITY

Automobile Liability $ 1,000,000 per occurrence
Policy No. RMCA 093-61-78
Company: AIG Insurance

General Liability $ 1,000,000 per occurrence
Policy No. RMGL 093-63-76
Company: AIG Insurance

Aircraft Liability $ 1,000,000 per occurrence
Policy No. AV 3380 147-07
Company: AIG Insurance

Excess Liability-Bd. of Education
Policy No. NXG358846K $ 2,000,000 per occurrence
Company: General Star National or claim

Excess Liability-Bd. of Education

Company: National Casualty Company $ 3,000,000 per occurrence
Policy No. XL00018068 or claim
PROPERTY LIMITOF LIABILITY
Blanket Property $ 25,000,000 primary layer
Policy No. FS D3586782A 007 $ 1,000,000 deductible
Company: Westchester
Policy No. NHD 363338 $ 175,000,000 excess of
Company: RSUI 25,000,000
Policy No. CICA 2903 $ 75,000,000 excess of
Commonwealth Insurance Company 200,000,000

of America
Policy No.: MAF733355-09 $ 125,000,000 in excess of
Company: Axis 275,000,000
Policy No. 120644904-007 $ 10,000,000 flood with
Company: Westchester $ 1,000,000 deductible
Boiler and Machinery $ 5,000,000 per equipment covered

Policy No. 76426824 excess of 1,000,000
Company: Chubb

Public Insurance Variable amounts as set by Statute
Official Position

Schedule Bond

Bond No. 104511294

Company: Travelers

Infor mation compiled from the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management’sinter nal data.

9



West Virginia Board of Risk & Insurance Management

O© 00 NOoO OB~ WN -

[y
o

O© 00 NOoO OB~ WN -

NP RPRPRERERRE R R
O WW~NOOUNMWNERERO

Top 10 State Agency Premiumsfor Fiscal Year 2009

West Virginia State Police

West Virginia University

Division of Highways

Department of Health & Human Resources
Marshall University

Corrections Division

Regional Jail and Correctional Facility Authority

West Virginia State Parks

Division of Environmental Protection

Department of Natural Resources
Total Top Ten

Total State Premium Billing for 2009

% of top 10 in relation to all state agency billings

Top 20 SB 3 Premiumsfor Fiscal Year 2009

2010 Annual Report

$5,606,195
5,510,800
4,901,858
4,118,442
2,065,082
915,292
518,471
517,694
467,514
448,135

$25,069,483

Kanawha County Board of Education

West Virginia University Medical Corporation

Raleigh County Board of Education
Berkeley County Board of Education
Mercer County Board of Education
Wayne County Board of Education
Harrison County Board of Education
Putnam County Board of Education
Cabell County Board of Education
Wood County Board of Education
Monongalia County Board of Education
City of St. Albans
Marion County Board of Education
University Physicians and Surgeons
Raleigh County Commission
Jefferson County Commission
Logan County Board of Education
Fayette County Board of Education
McDowell County Board of Education
Jefferson County Board of Education
Total Top Twenty

Total SB 3 Premium Billing for 2009
% of top 20 in relation to total SB 3 billings

10

$31,836,818
78.74%

$1,970,276
856,612
692,570
655,411
556,912
515,508
488,985
453,329
433,652
431,907
419,191
414,041
411,022
349,469
347,094
346,598
337,336
334,965
314,264
310,563

$10,639,705

$32,006,266
33.24%
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Premiums by Line of Business for the Past Ten Years

50,000

40,000
/ —e— State Agencies
30,000 1

% L —&— Senate Bill 3
E‘ 20,000 .4:‘/./ Mine Subsidence
o House Bill 601
10,000
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Fiscal Year Ending June 30
(expressed in thousands)
Fiscal Year State Agencies Senate Bill 3 Mine Subsidence House Bill
601
2000 $ 20,373 $ 20,597 $1434 -
2001 $ 23,241 $ 20,951 $1,414 -
2002 $ 22,840 $ 21,922 $ 1,505 $2,426
2003 $ 26,915 $27,198 $1,528 $ 20,847
2004 $ 36,203 $ 35,793 $1,551 $35,721
2005 $ 46,465 $ 40,952 $ 1,595 $18
2006 $ 40,252 $ 40,920 $1,652 -
2007 $ 39,091 $ 39,481 $1,676 -
2008 $ 36,259 $ 34,875 $1,852 -
2009 $ 31,596 $ 28,902 $1,929 -

The chart above shows premiums by line of business for the past ten fiscal years, expressed
in thousands of dollars. Thischart illustratesa downward trend of premiumsfor State
Agencies and Senate Bill 3 customers since 2005.

Source: BRIM’sinternal financial statements.

11
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$6,348

$45,312

$25,190
$22,228 ‘
$23,238

$74,613

Claims Dollars Incurred by

Customer Type
Fiscal Years 2000 Through 2009

(expressed in thousands)

B State Agencies

B Boards of Education
OCounty Commissions
OCities / Towns

OOther Local Governments
@ Non Profits

B Reinsurance for Mine
Subsidence

Source: Information compiled from the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance

Management’sinternal data.

12




AGENDA
BOARD MEETING
OF THE
WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF RISK AND
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

May 25, 2010
Chairman Lukens Call to Order
Chairman Lukens Approval of Board Minutes

February 23, 2010

Charles E. Jones, Jr. Executive Director's Report
Executive Director

Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA Financial Report
Chief Financial Officer P-Card Report

Robert A. Fisher
Deputy Director/Claim Manager Loss Control Report

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

ADJOURNMENT



MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE
WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

May 25, 2010
BOARD John R. Lukens, Chairman
MEMBERS: Bruce Martin, Vice Chairman

Martin J. Glasser, Member

BRIM PERSONNEL.: Charles E. Jones, Jr., Executive Director
Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA, CFO
Robert Fisher, Deputy Director/Claim Manager
Jerry Gladwell, Underwriting Manager
Jeremy Wolfe, Loss Control Manager
Chuck Mozingo, Assistant Claim Manager
Melody Duke, Controller
Charles “Blaine” Nelson, Deputy Underwriting Manager
Carl Baldwin, Loss Control Specialist
Steve Fowler, BRIM Counsel
Linda Dexter, Recording Secretary

BRIM PROGRAM Charles Waugh, Chatrtis
REPRESENTATIVES: Joanna Valleau, Chartis
Harry “Skip” Morris, Wells Fargo

GUESTS: Sandy Price, WVU Health Sciences Center
Lindsay Paulin, WVU Health Sciences Center
Michael J. Gansor, WVU Risk Management
Tracy Smith, Marshall University
Tom Sauvageot, WV Investment Management Board
CALL TO ORDER
The meeting of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management was
called to order by Chairman Lukens at 1:07 p.m. on Tuesday, May 25, 2010, at 90

MacCorkle Avenue, SW, Suite 203, South Charleston, West Virginia.
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APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Mr. Glasser moved the approval of the minutes of the February 23, 2010 Board
Meeting. The motion was seconded by Mr. Martin. There being no discussion, a vote

was taken and the MOTION ADOPTED.

REPORTS

The monthly report of the Executive Director was received and filed, a copy of
which is attached and made a part of the record.

Mr. Schumacher thereafter presented the Chief Financial Officer's Report. The
unaudited balance sheet as of March 31, 2010, the unaudited income statement for the
three months ending March 31, 2010, and the line of business statements (Total State,
Total SB3, Mine Subsidence and BRIM HB 601) for the same periods were received
and filed, copies of which are attached and made a part of the record.

A CD containing copies of the January, February and March 2010 purchasing
card invoices was distributed to each Board member. The Chairman signed the
acknowledgement form for the October, November and December 2009 billing. The
acknowledgement form was retained by the Finance Department.

The Loss Control Report of the Deputy Director/Claim Manager was received

and filed, a copy of which is attached and made a part of the record.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There was no unfinished business.

NEW BUSINESS

There was no new business.
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ADJOURNMENT

There being nothing further, the meeting adjourned at 1: 43 p.m.

Board Chairman Date



Executive Director’'s Report

May 25, 2010

A. Significant Events

1.

Fraudulent Claim against the Office of the Auditor (OA). Funds meant for two
vendors who had done work for the Office of the Insurance Commissioner (OIC)
and for Department of Health and Human Resources (DHHR) were diverted to a
third party when fraudulent information was given to the Office of the Auditor.
BRIM paid its portion of the claim to OIC and DHHR and turned the claim over to
the Office of the Attorney General (OAG) for their review and disposition and to
protect the interests of BRIM.

I met with personnel from the OA and OAG on March 3, 2010. To date, suit has
not been filed, but the OAG is still considering its and BRIM’s options.

. The Casualty Insurance Program with Chartis was renewed for another five year

time frame (one year contract renewable four times). See the attached cost
spreadsheet.

. Negotiated reduction of fees for management of Trust Account with Bank of

New York.

. Upcoming quotation from General Star for Excess Liability for County Boards of

Education — meeting with GenStar on 3/10.

. Upcoming quotation from Wells Fargo property insurance carrier - meeting on

3/30.

. Appraising all state agency properties to maintain insurance to value.

. Project to appraise County Boards of Education properties for insurance to value

3/25 — AIG v. CNA discussion.
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B. Marshall University/WVU Medical Malpractice Deductible Program

* As of April 30, 2010, Marshall has deposited $2,494,661.38 into the escrow
account. The year-to-date cumulative interest totals $117,577.97. There have
been 26 disbursements totaling $785,540.56 made during fiscal year 2010 thus

far.

* As of April 30, 2010, a total of $6,664,195.54 has been transferred or
deposited into WVU's escrow account. The year-to-date cumulative interest
totals $118,396.27. There have been 76 disbursements totaling $847,921.74
made during fiscal year 2010 thus far.

C. Litigation

The May 2010 report from Chartis for the period ending April 30, 2010
reveals that in April, one case was tried to verdict. Year-to-date, three cases
were tried to defense verdicts.

New lawsuits have decreased 37.4% over year-to-date 2009; closed lawsuits have
decreased 9.9%, and pending lawsuits have decreased 6.1%.

D. Legislative Issues

1. House Bill 4033 established a Fleet Management Office within the Department of
Administration (DOA) and authorized the DOA Secretary to promulgate
emergency rules. As a result of this action, Title 148 Legislative Rule, Series 3
— State Owned Vehicles, was adopted, effective May 1, 2010. The major
changes in the law include:

a.
b.

C.

Prohibit the use of hand-held cell phones and text messaging;

Make the operator of state vehicles personally responsible for payment
of citations and fines;

Eliminate the accident review committee and make agencies responsible
for disciplinary actions against employees as a result of accidents;

Make agencies responsible for monitoring their employees’ driving
records; and

Remove the commuting value language contained in the old rules

in order to clarify that all employees must abide by the IRS commuting
value guidelines.

2. HB 4615; SB 644 - Authorizes political subdivisions the ability to establish risk
pools to insure their workers' compensation risks — passed March 12, 2010
and is in effect at time of passage.
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3. HB 4657; SB 666 - Designating the Insurance Commissioner with the

responsibility to manage Workers’ Compensation risks for state agencies. This
legislation did not pass. As it now stands, state agencies and other
governmental agencies, i.e., Boards of Education, County Commissions and
Volunteer Fire Departments, can go out to the market for Workers Compen-
sation coverage as they are not required to obtain Workers Compensation
coverage from BrickStreet. BrickStreet still must provide coverage if requested
until June 30, 2011.

E. BRIM Projects

1. Loss Control Recognition Program — program geared at rewarding insureds for

practicing good risk management and preventing losses.

2. Business Continuity Plan (BCP) — The DOA COOP team members have started

pre-planning for a Continuity of Operations Plan for The Governor’s Office.

F. MISC.

1.

2.

STRIMA Executive Committee Meeting — 4/6-9/10 in Nashville, TN

Meeting on 4/23 with the Governor’s staff members, Cabinet Secretary of
Revenue, the Insurance Commissioner, and the DOA General Counsel regarding
Workers’ Compensation Coverage for State Employees.

The Board of Education Excess Liability Insurance Request for Proposal was
finalized on 5/12/10. Charleston Newspapers published a notice in the 5/17
Legal Ads publicizing the RFP and directing interested parties to our website
for information. Responses are due by June 14, 2010.

. Aviation Insurance — coverage per occurrence increased from $1,000,000 to

$10,000,000 provided through our aviation carrier, National Union.

Public Risk Insurance Management Association (PRIMA) Annual Conference
scheduled for June 6-9, 2010 in Orlando, Florida. Steve and | will be attending.

Respectfully submitted,

Charles E. Jones, Jr.
Executive Director

CEJ:lid

Attachment
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Chief Financial Officer’'s Report
May 25, 2010

A. P Card Report
e CD copies contain the supporting detail for P card purchases for the months of January,
February and March 2010. These totals are:

January $46,980.12
February $49,471.94
March $42,779.65

B. Interim Financials — 3/31/10

o BRIM's overall financial position thru March continued to improve with investments
contributing $20.1 million to the current year earnings for the nine months ending
3/31/10. Operating income for the first nine months of FY’10 is $3.0 million vs. $3.9
million for the same period for FY’09.

e Claims Expense thru March reflects the actual claims payments made for the first nine
months of the fiscal year as well as a $6.9 million overall decrease in the estimated
outstanding claims reserves since June 30, 2009.

C. FY'11 Premiums
o The rates for FY'11 have been finalized for both the State and SB3 programs. Overall,
the average FY '11 premium rates are down 10% vs. FY '10. While a small percentage
of insureds may see an increase, most will see a decrease in their overall premium for
FY'11.

D. AIG/Chartis Update

e American International Group Inc. (AIG) reported a first-quarter profit of $1.45 billion.
This was a turnaround from last year’s first-quarter loss of $4.35 billion. First-quarter
continuing insurance operations reported net income of $2.22 billion, up from $908
million for the same period last year. The increase was the result of improvements in
investments.

¢ Net premiums earned by Chartis and other AIG property and casualty businesses fell
about 8 percent, or $631 million, to $7.64 billion. Income before net realized capital gains
grew 24 percent, or $169 million, to $879 million.

o Proceeds from the pending sale of two of AlG’s life insurance companies, American
Assurance Company Ltd and American Life Insurance Company, will be used to pay
down its loan obligations to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York that resulted from
the aid the New York Fed provided to AIG during the 2008 financial crisis.



<
Cia
West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management \9
UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET

March 31

2010 2009
(in thousands)
ASSETS
Short Term Assets
Cash and Equivalents $ 26,679 $ 25,151
Advance Deposit with Carrier/Trustee 179,326 183,861
Receivables - Net 983 611
Prepaid Insurance 1,564 1,534
Total Short Term Assets 208,552 211,157

Long Term Assets

Investments 121,374 93,994
Total Long Term Assets 121,374 93,994
TOTAL ASSETS 329,926 305,151
LIABILITIES
Short Term Liabilities
Accounts payable 1,323 1,032
Claims Payable 207 297
OPEB Liability - 35
Agents Commissions Payable 945 1,216
Unearned Revenue 7,474 8,043
Current Estimated Claim Reserve 42,204 51,597
Total Short Term Liabilities 52,153 62,220

Long Term Liabilities

Compensated Absences 58 52
Estimated Noncurrent Claim Reserve 103,618 114,040
Total Long Term Liabilities 103,676 114,092
TOTAL LIABILITIES 155,829 176,312
Prior Year Net Assets 150,958 127,630
Current Year Earnings/Prior Year Earnings (Loss) 23,139 1,209
TOTAL NET ASSETS 174,097 128,839
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS $ 329,926 $ 305,151

DRAFT - Unaudited - Management Purposes Only

BRIM - Page 1
8/31/2010



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT \
For the nine months ending -

Operating Revenues
Premium Revenues
Less - Excess Insurance

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Claims Expense
Property & MS Claims Expense
Personal Services
General & Administrative Expense
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income
Nonoperating Revenues

Court Fees

Investment Income

Total Nonoperating Revenues

Net Income

March 31
2010 2009
(in thousands)

$ 43,814 $ 47,195
(4,692) (4,602)

39,122 42,593

27,656 30,754

5,557 4,717

951 970

1,958 2,220

36,122 38,661

3,000 3,932

26 23
20,113 (2,746)
20,139 (2,723)

23,139 1,209

DRAFT - Unaudited - Management Purposes Only

8/31/2010

BRIM - Page 2



Operating Revenues
Premium Revenues
Less: Excess Insurance
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Claims Expense
Property & MS Claims Expense
Personal Services
General and Administrative Expense
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues
Interest Income
Court Fees

Total Nonoperating Revenue

Net Income

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Unaudited Income Statement
for the nine months ending March 31, 2010

(in thousands)

N

Total Total Mine BRIM

State SB3 Subsidence HB 601 Total
$ 21,278 $ 20,977 $ 1,559 - 43,814
$ (1,704) $ (2,988) $ - - (4,692)
$ 19,574 % 17,989 $ 1,559 - 39,122
18,559 9,058 39 - 27,656
2,680 2,350 527 - 5,557
462 456 33 - 951
588 1,356 12 2 1,958
22,289 13,220 611 2 36,122
(2,715) 4,769 948 (2 3,000
11,519 5,164 3,425 5 20,113
- - - 26 26
11,519 5,164 3,425 31 20,139
$ 8,804 $ 9,933 $ 4,373 29 23,139




West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET
March 31, 2010
(in thousands)

Total Total Mine BRIM
State SB3 Subsidence HB 601 Total
Assets
Short Term Assets
Cash and Equivalents $ 6,404 $ 6,581 $ 8,407 $ 5287 $ 26,679
Deposits Held by Carrier/Trustee 92,291 87,035 - - $ 179,326
Receivables - Net 578 33 372 - $ 983
Prepaid Insurance 568 996 - - $ 1,564
Total Short Term Assets 99,841 94,645 8,779 5,287 208,552
Long Term Assets
Investments 71,886 23,421 26,067 - 121,374
Total Long Term Assets 71,886 23,421 26,067 - 121,374
Total Assets $ 171,727 $ 118,066 $ 34,846 $ 5287 $ 329,926
Liabilities
Short Term Liabilities
Accounts payable 466 830 27 - 1,323
OPEB Liability - - - - -
Claims Payable 52 148 7 - 207
Agents Commissions Payable - 945 - - 945
Unearned Revenue - 6,769 705 - 7,474
Current Claim Reserve 24,026 17,394 784 - 42,204
Total Short Term Liabilities 24,544 26,086 1,523 - 52,153
Long Term Liabilities
Compensated Absences 38 19 1 - 58
Claim Reserve IBNR 56,989 46,346 247 36 103,618
Total Long Term Liabilities 57,027 46,365 248 36 103,676
Total Liabilities 81,571 72,451 1,771 36 155,829
Prior Year Net Assets 81,352 35,682 28,702 5,222 150,958
Current Year Earnings 8,804 9,933 4,373 29 23,139
Total Net Assets 90,156 45,615 33,075 5,251 174,097

Total Liabilities and Retained Earnings (Deficiency) $ 171,727 $ 118,066 $ 34,846 $ 5287 $ 329,926




(%)

Loss Control Report to the Board
May 2010

We are pleased to report that we have now filled the two vacant Loss Control Specialist
positions. Our new employees will report to work for the first day on June 16, 2010. We
plan to introduce them to you at the next Board meeting.

On May 18, 2010 we sent out Loss Control Questionnaires to all state agencies. The
deadline for their submission to BRIM is August 1, 2010.

More than fifty senior management officials were present for the March 4, 2010 risk
management seminar that we hosted for county boards of education and for state colleges
and universities. This was the first such seminar we’ve sponsored in quite a few years.
We hope to be able to sponsor similar seminars geared toward these and other classes of
insured.

We have begun the process of renewing our risk management service vendor contracts
for the 2010-2011 fiscal year with Aon Global Risk Consulting and Chubb Group of
Insurance Companies. This will be the second year for these contracts.

During the months of March and April, AON conducted 74 inspections and CHUBB
conducted 332. The reports are being processed according to established procedures.

Since my last report, our loss control technical staff reports the following activity:

6 Loss Control Visit
These are standard loss control visits which focus on all coverage
areas and which result in information and/or loss control recommendations
being provided.

8 Standards of Participation Visits
These are visits which are designed to provide assistance to our
insured who are seeking to become compliant with the BRIM
Standards of Participation program.

3 Presentation Visits
These are visits during which we provide active training and/or
outreach to a group of individuals.

1 Continuing Education Visit
These are visits which are designed to provide the loss control specialists
with education and training for professional development.

5 Inspection Observation Visits
These are visits during which we accompany a vendor inspector during
scheduled inspections.



Loss Control Report to the Board
May 2010

289 Senate Bill #3 Standards of Participation evaluation have been
completed since February 23, 2010.

Dated: S~ 20’20/0

pectfully submitted,

/ Lot

Robert A. Fisher
Deputy Director and Claim Manager



AGENDA
BOARD MEETING
OF THE
WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF RISK AND
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

February 23, 2010

Chairman Lukens Call to Order

Chairman Lukens Approval of Board Minutes
November 17, 2009

Chairman Lukens Executive Session — WV Code §86-9A-4(b)(6)
Chairman Lukens Return to Open Session
Charles E. Jones, Jr. Executive Director's Report

Executive Director

Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA Financial Report
Chief Financial Officer P-Card Report

Robert A. Fisher
Deputy Director/Claim Manager Loss Control Report

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

ADJOURNMENT



MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE

WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

BOARD
MEMBERS:

BRIM PERSONNEL:

INSURANCE
COMMISSION

REPRESENTATIVES:

BRIM PROGRAM

REPRESENTATIVES:

GUESTS:

February 23, 2010

John R. Lukens, Chairman
Bruce Martin, Vice Chairman
Martin J. Glasser, Member

Charles E. Jones, Jr., Executive Director
Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA, CFO

Robert Fisher, Deputy Director/Claim Manager
Jerry Gladwell, Underwriting Manager

Jeremy Wolfe, Loss Control Manager

Chuck Mozingo, Assistant Claim Manager
Melody Duke, Controller

Charles “Blaine” Nelson, Deputy Underwriting Manager
Jill Farrar-Brown, Loss Control Specialist

Carl Baldwin, Loss Control Specialist

Steve Fowler, BRIM Counsel

Linda Dexter, Recording Secretary

Bill Kenny, Deputy Insurance Commissioner

Charles Waugh, Chartis
Joanna Valleau, Chartis
Harry “Skip” Morris, Wells Fargo

Ed Phillips, WVU Health Sciences Center
Michael J. Gansor, WVU Risk Management
Beth Hammers, Marshall University SOM
Brian Carrico, Marshall University

Tracy Smith, Marshall University



BRIM BOARD MEETING MINUTES
February 23, 2010 PAGE 2

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management was
called to order by Chairman Lukens at 1:09 p.m. on Tuesday, February 23, 2010, at 90

MacCorkle Avenue, SW, Suite 203, South Charleston, West Virginia.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Mr. Martin moved the approval of the minutes of the November 17, 2009 Board
Meeting. The motion was seconded by Mr. Glasser. There being no discussion, a vote

was taken and the MOTION ADOPTED.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Chairman Lukens stated that in accordance with West Virginia Code 8§ 6-9A-
4(b)(6), the BRIM Board would vote to go into Executive Session. A MOTION was
made by Mr. Glasser and seconded by Mr. Martin to convene into Executive Session.
There being no discussion, a vote was taken and the MOTION ADOPTED.

The meeting recessed at 1:10 p.m. and returned to open session at 1:32 p.m.

OPEN SESSION
Chairman Lukens stated that while the Board was meeting in executive session
(that the purpose of the executive session was to) — it discussed a certain item and has

delegated the responsibility for handling that item to counsel with specific instructions.

REPORTS
The monthly report of the Executive Director was received and filed, a copy of
which is attached and made a part of the record. One of the major issues for discussion

contained in Mr. Jones’ report was the Consolidation of Information Technology



BRIM BOARD MEETING MINUTES
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Personnel. He explained that although he usually didn’t discuss personnel issues at
Board meetings, he did want the Board to be aware of the consolidation effort and how
it could affect BRIM. The Office of Technology (OT) is working toward consolidating all
of the Information Technology (IT) people in state government. BRIM has an IT
Manager on staff, John Fernatt, and the consolidation would require him to report to
someone else other than the Executive Director.

Mr. Jones further stated that Mr. Fernatt does have other duties besides being
the IT Manager here. He has also been a claim representative for the last five years.
He is the liaison between BRIM and other agencies and the Department of
Administration with regard to disaster recovery and continuity of operations. From that
perspective, BRIM’s loss of Mr. Fernatt on a permanent basis would be detrimental to
the program. Therefore, Mr. Jones is requesting that the Board allow him to approach
Secretary Ferguson with the recommendation that a reclassification of Mr. Fernatt’s
duties be made, which would be more in line with his overall (not strictly IT-related)
duties at BRIM, as opposed to him going directly to OT and coming back to BRIM
sporadically as an OT employee. Mr. Jones thereafter made a final appeal to the Board
for their support of his position as Executive Director and for them to endorse his
recommendation for reclassification of Mr. Fernatt’s job duties.

Mr. Martin thereafter moved that the Executive Director request approval from
the Secretary of the Department of Administration to reclassify the BRIM Information
Technology Manager with a classification more befitting the duties performed at BRIM.
Mr. Glasser seconded the motion. After a brief discussion, a vote was taken and the
MOTION ADOPTED.

Mr. Jones continued with his report and subsequently closed by soliciting
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guestions from the Board, to which there were none.

Mr. Schumacher thereafter presented the Chief Financial Officer's Report. The
unaudited balance sheet as of September 30, 2009, the unaudited income statement for
the three months ending September 30, 2009, and the line of business statements
(Total State, Total SB3, Mine Subsidence and BRIM HB 601) for the same periods were
received and filed, copies of which are attached and made a part of the record.

A CD containing copies of the August/September 2009 purchasing card invoices
was distributed to each Board member. The Chairman signed the acknowledgement
form for the May, June and July 2009 billing. The acknowledgement form was retained
by the Finance Department.

The Loss Control Report, presented by Jeremy Wolfe, Loss Control Manager,
was thereafter received and filed, a copy of which is attached and made a part of the
record.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There was no unfinished business.

NEW BUSINESS

There was no new business.

ADJOURNMENT

There being nothing further, the meeting adjourned at 2:03 p.m.

Board Chairman Date



Executive Director’'s Report

February 23, 2010

A. Significant Issues

o howbdrE

© N

Fraudulent Claim against the Office of the Auditor

Consolidation of Information Technology personnel

Renewal of Casualty Insurance Program with Chartis

Negotiated reduction of fees for management of Trust Account with Bank of
New York

Upcoming quotation from General Star for Excess Liability for County Boards of
Education

Upcoming quotation from Wells Fargo property insurance carrier

Appraising all state agency properties to maintain insurance to value

Project to appraise County Boards of Education properties for insurance to value

B. Marshall University/WVU Medical Malpractice Deductible Program

* As of February 11, 2010, Marshall has deposited $2,007,661.38 into the escrow

account. The year-to-date cumulative interest totals $117,102.30. There have
been 25 disbursements totaling $767,002.25 made during fiscal year 2010 thus
far.

* As of January 31, 2010, a total of $5,984,188.82 has been transferred or

deposited into WVU's escrow account. The year-to-date cumulative interest
totals $117,478.74. There have been 76 disbursements totaling $847,921.74
made during fiscal year 2010 thus far.

C. Litigation

The February 2010 report from Chartis for the period ending January 31, 2010
reveals that in January, no cases were tried to verdict.

New lawsuits have increased 12.1% over year-to-date 2009; closed lawsuits have
decreased 18%, and pending lawsuits have decreased 4.7%.



Executive Director’s Report

February 23, 2010

D. Proposed Legislation

1.

HB 4033 - Authorizing the establishment of the Fleet Management Office
within the Department of Administration; Authorizing the Secretary DOA to
promulgate emergency rules to administer same.

a. State employees routinely taking state vehicles home

b. Absence of progressive discipline policy for employees responsible for at-
fault accidents

HB 4611 - Abolishing Joint Liability ; establishing principle of comparative fault

HB 4615; SB 644 - Authorizing political subdivisions to establish risk pools to
insure their workers' compensation risks

HB 4657; SB 666 - Designating the Insurance Commissioner to manage
Workers’ Compensation risks for state agencies

E. BRIM Projects

1.

CEJ:lid

Loss Control — A risk management seminar will be held on March 4, 2010 at
West Virginia State University. This seminar is designed to educate and inform
the attendees of the causes and costs of property and casualty insurance
claims, as well as what measures management can take to control insurance
loss.

Loss Control Recognition Program — program geared at rewarding insureds for
practicing good risk management and preventing losses.

Business Continuity Plan (BCP) — This is an ongoing task. In December 2009,
John Fernatt became certified in disaster recovery after completion of classes
and an exam in Orlando, FL.

Respectfully submitted,

Charles E. Jones, Jr.
Executive Director
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Chief Financial Officer’s Report
February 23, 2010

A. P Card Report
e CD copies contain the supporting detail for P card purchases for the months
of November and December 2008 and January 2009. These totals are:

October $55,351.86
November $59,547.02
December $50,541.57

B. Interim Financials — 12/31/09

e BRIM's overall financial position thru December shows fiscal year to date net
income of $15.5 million, driven by less volatile markets resulting in improved
investment earnings for the first six months. This compares to a net loss of
$6.1 million for FY’09, with the loss last year being driven by the uncertainty in
the financial markets last year.

e Premium Revenue thru December reflects the premiums earned for the first
six months of FY’10.

¢ Claims Expense thru December reflects the actual claims payments made for
the first six months of the fiscal year as well as a $6.2 million overall decrease
in the estimated outstanding claims reserves since June 30, 2009.

C. AIG/Chartis Update

e On December 1, 2009 AIG reduced the debt it owed to the FRBNY by $25
billion in exchange for the FRBNY’s acquisition of preferred equity interests in
certain newly formed subsidiaries. The $25 billion debt reduction decreased
AIG’s outstanding principal balance under the FRBNY credit facility.

e AIG President and Chief Executive Officer Robert H. Benmosche announced,
in February, 2010, the appointment of seven executives to key positions within
AIG. This included the appointment of Peter D. Hancock, a former executive
at J.P. Morgan, as AlIG’s Executive Vice President, Finance, Risk, and
Investments. These announcements would indicate that the corporate
restructuring continues for both Chartis, Inc. and its’ parent holding company.

e Chatrtis, Inc. continues to work towards forging both a separate identity and
operational independence from AIG.

 Financial results for the 4™ quarter of 2009 for both AIG and Chartis have not
yet been released.



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Short Term Assets
Cash and Equivalents
Advance Deposit with Carrier/Trustee
Receivables - Net
Prepaid insurance
Total Short Term Assets

Long Term Assets
investments ,
“Total Long Term Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Short Term Liabilities
Accounts payable
Claims Payable
OPEB Liability
Agents Commissions Payabls
Unearned Revenue
Current Estimated Claim Reserve
Total Short Term Liabilities '

Long Term Liabilities

Compensated Absences

Estimated Noncurrent Claim Reserve
Totat Long Term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Prior Year Net Asseis
Current Year Earnings/Prior Year Earnings (Loss)

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

December 31

2009

2008

{in thousands)

) 25162 § 16,699
176,172 183,008
1,453 . 4,505
3,128 3,068
205,915 207,370
118,048 94,007
118,048 94,007
323,063 301,377
2,150 5218
274 577

- 35

633 811
7,881 8,276
41,905 48,212
52,843 63,130
58 52
104,624 116,668
104,682 116,720
157,525 179,850
150,958 127,630
15,480 (6,103)
166,438 121,527
5 323,963 $ 301,377

DRAFT - Unaudited - Management Purposes Only

BRIM - Page 1

212212010
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management \
UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT ]
For the six months ending -

December 31
2009 2008
(in thousands)

Operating Revenues

Premium Revenues $ 29,373 $ 31,704
Less - Excess Insurance (3,128) (3,068)
Total Operating Revenues 26,245 28,636
Operating Expenses
Claims Expense 19,252 24,495
Property & MS Claims Expense 4,500 3,823
Personal Services 641 654
General & Administrative Expense 1,343 1,628
Total Operating Expenses 25,736 30,600
Operating Income (Loss) 509 (1,964)
Nonoperating Revenues
Court Fees 18 16
Investment Income 14,953 (4,155)
Total Nonoperating Revenues 14,971 (4,139)
Net Income (Loss) 15,480 (6,103)

DRAFT - Unaudited - Management Purposes Only

BRIM - Page 2
8/31/2010



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2009
(in thousands)

Total Total Mine BRIM
State SB3 Subsidence HB 601 Total
Assets
Short Term Assets
Cash and Equivalents $ 5,093 $ 6,660 $ 8,131 $ 5278 $ 25,162
Deposits Held by Carrier/Trustee 90,501 85,671 - - $ 176,172
Receivables - Net 775 306 372 - $ 1,453
Prepaid Insurance 1,136 1,992 - - $ 3,128
Total Short Term Assets 97,505 94,629 8,503 5,278 205,915
Long Term Assets
Investments 69,916 22,779 25,353 - 118,048
Total Long Term Assets 69,916 22,779 25,353 - 118,048
Total Assets $ 167,421 $ 117,408 $ 33,856 $ 5278 $ 323,963
Liabilities
Short Term Liabilities
Accounts payable 704 1,425 21 - 2,150
OPEB Liability - - - - -
Claims Payable 86 115 73 - 274
Agents Commissions Payable - 633 - - 633
Unearned Revenue - 7,176 705 - 7,881
Current Claim Reserve 22,970 18,203 732 - 41,905
Total Short Term Liabilities 23,760 27,552 1,531 - 52,843
Long Term Liabilities
Compensated Absences 38 19 1 - 58
Claim Reserve IBNR 55,983 48,374 231 36 104,624
Total Long Term Liabilities 56,021 48,393 232 36 104,682
Total Liabilities 79,781 75,945 1,763 36 157,525
Prior Year Net Assets 81,352 35,682 28,702 5,222 150,958
Current Year Earnings 6,288 5,781 3,391 20 15,480
Total Net Assets 87,640 41,463 32,093 5,242 166,438

Total Liabilities and Retained Earnings (Deficiency) $ 167,421 $ 117,408 $ 33,856 $ 5278 $ 323,963




Operating Revenues
Premium Revenues
Less: Excess Insurance
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Claims Expense
Property & MS Claims Expense
Personal Services
General and Administrative Expense
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues
Interest Income
Court Fees

Total Nonoperating Revenue

Net Income (Loss)

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Unaudited Income Statement

for the six months ending December 31, 2009

(in thousands)

N

Total Total Mine BRIM
State SB3 Subsidence HB 601 Total
14,323 % 13,958 $ 1,092 $ - 29,373
(1,136) $ (1,992) $ - - (3,128)
13,187 $ 11,966 $ 1,092 $ - 26,245
12,544 6,737 (29) - 19,252
2,190 1,897 413 - 4,500
364 259 18 - 641
434 900 7 2 1,343
15,532 9,793 409 2 25,736
(2,345) 2,173 683 (2 509
8,633 3,608 2,708 4 14,953
- - - 18 18
8,633 3,608 2,708 22 14,971
6,288 $ 5781 $ 3,391 20 15,480
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Loss Control Report to the Board
February 2010

The evaluation process for Senate Bill #3 loss control questionnaires should be
completed during the month of March. This year’s participation level is the
highest since the inception of the program in 2004,

We have received approval to fill at least one of the vacant loss control specialist
positions. We’ve published one advertisement in the Charleston Newspapers
already and will publish one more. We’ve also posted the position with the
Division of Personnel. We are currently receiving and reviewing resumes and
hope to begin interviewing after the March 10 resume submission deadline.

At the request of DHHR, our Loss Control Department recently worked to address
problems at the John Manchin, Sr. Health Care Center in Fairmont. Loss Control
Manager Jeremy Wolfe conducted a site assessment and arranged for Rudick
Forensic Engineering to inspect the Center’s delivery ramp. A report from
Rudick is forthcoming to assist DHHR in addressing the structural deficiencies
associated with the amp.

On March 4, 2010, we will be hosting a risk management seminar for our insured
County Boards of Education and for Colleges and Universities. The seminar is
designed to educate and inform attendees on risk management strategies to assist
them in managing their risks.

We are working on a loss control recognition program that we hope to unveil this
spring. The program will recognize those insured that are performing above and
beyond our expectations with regard to our various safety and loss control
initiatives.

During the months of November, December and January, AON conducted 189
inspections and CHUBB conducted 696. The reports are being processed
according to established procedures.

Since my last report, our Loss Control technical staff reports the following
activity:

5 Loss Control Visit
These are standard loss control visits which focus on all coverage
areas and which result in information and/or loss control
recommendations being provided.

11 Standards of Participation Visits
These are visits which are designed to provide assistance to our
insured who are seeking to become compliant with the BRIM
Standards of Participation program.



Loss Control Report to the Board
February 2010

1 Presentation Visit
These are visits during which we provide active training and/or

outreach to a group of individuals.

231 SB#3 Standards of Participation evaluations have been completed
since January 11, 2010. Presently, we have another 484 evaluations yet to

review (and may receive more!)

[NOTE: Since the beginning of the year, our loss control staff has been evaluating
the SB#3 questionnaires and hasn’t been able to travel much (not that the weather
has been very conducive to travel). However, the coming months should prove to

be very busy for the Department. |

Dated: Z// ?/20/0

Respectfully submitted,

it Ao

Robert A. Fisher
Deputy Director and Claim Manager



AGENDA
BOARD MEETING
OF THE
WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF RISK AND
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

November 17, 2009

Chairman Lukens Call to Order

Chairman Lukens Approval of Board Minutes
September 9, 2009

Charles E. Jones, Jr. Executive Director's Report
Executive Director
Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA June 30, 2009 Actuarial Report from AON
Chief Financial Officer June 30, 2009 Audited Financial Report from
Ernst & Young, LLP
Financial Report
P-Card Report

Jeremy Wolfe
Loss Control Manager Loss Control Report

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

ADJOURNMENT



MINUTES OF THE BUSINESS MEETING
OF THE
WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

November 17, 2009

BOARD John R. Lukens, Chairman
MEMBERS: Bruce Martin, Vice Chairman
Sherry Cunningham, Member

BRIM PERSONNEL.: Charles E. Jones, Jr., Executive Director
Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA, CFO
Melody Duke, Controller
Chuck Mozingo, Assistant Claim Manager
Jerry Gladwell, Underwriting Manager
Jeremy Wolfe, Loss Control Manager
Charles “Blaine” Nelson, Deputy Underwriting Manager
Steve Fowler, BRIM Counsel
Linda Dexter, Recording Secretary

BRIM PROGRAM Charles Waugh, Chartis
REPRESENTATIVES: Joanna Valleau, Chartis
Harry “Skip” Morris, Wells Fargo

GUESTS: Jo Ellen Cockley, AON
Susan Wheeler, Ernst & Young
Robert Johnson, Ernst & Young
Ed Phillips, WVU Health Sciences Center
Michael J. Gansor, WVU
Brian Carrico, Marshall University
Tom Sauvageot, WV Investment Management Board

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management was
called to order by Chairman Lukens at 1:02 p.m. on Tuesday, November 17, 2009, at 90

MacCorkle Avenue, SW, Suite 203, South Charleston, West Virginia.
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APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Mr. Cunningham moved the approval of the minutes of the September 9, 2009
Board Meeting. The motion was seconded by Mr. Martin. There being no discussion, a

vote was taken and the MOTION ADOPTED.

REPORTS

The monthly report of the Executive Director was received and filed, a copy of
which is attached and made a part of the record. During his presentation, Mr. Jones
noted that West Virginia was the only state government recognized by the National
Safety Council. BRIM was recognized in the “Best Performance” category for its online
Defensive Driving Course.

Mr. Schumacher then yielded the floor to Mrs. Jo Ellen Cockley of AON Risk
Consultants, our actuary, who presented the annual actuarial review, which information
was extracted from the Risk Funding Study as of June 30, 2009, previously distributed
to the Board Members and thereafter received and filed.

Ms. Susan Wheeler and Mr. Rob Johnson of Ernst & Young, LLP, financial
auditors for the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management, thereafter
presented the annual audit results. The report entitled “West Virginia Board of Risk
and Insurance Management, 2009 Audit Results and Communications" was distributed
to the Board Members, and was thereafter received and filed.

During her presentation, Ms. Wheeler noted that BRIM continues to receive the
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Certificate of Financial Achievement.

There being no questions, Mr. Schumacher thereafter presented the Chief

Financial Officer's Report. The unaudited balance sheet as of September 30, 2009, the
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unaudited income statement for the three months ending September 30, 2009, and the
line of business statements (Total State, Total SB3, Mine Subsidence and BRIM HB
601) for the same periods were received and filed, copies of which are attached and
made a part of the record.

A CD containing copies of the August/September 2009 purchasing card invoices
was distributed to each Board member. The Chairman signed the acknowledgement
form for the May, June and July 2009 billing. The acknowledgement form was retained
by the Finance Department.

The Loss Control Report, presented by Jeremy Wolfe, Loss Control Manager,
was thereatfter received and filed, a copy of which is attached and made a part of the
record.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There was no unfinished business.

NEW BUSINESS

There was no new business.

ADJOURNMENT

There being nothing further, the meeting adjourned at 2:03 p.m.

Board Chairman Date



Executive Director’s Report

November 17, 2009

A. Marshall University/WVU Medical Malpractice Deductible Program

* As of October 31, 2009, Marshall has deposited $1,507,661.38
into the escrow account. The year-to-date cumulative interest
totals $116,678.78. There have been eight disbursements
totaling $134,516.14 made during fiscal year 2010 thus far.

* As of October 31, 2009, a total of $5,648,841.59 has been
transferred or deposited into WVU's escrow account. The
year-to-date cumulative interest totals $116,531.05.

There have been 30 disbursements totaling $511,714.94 made
during fiscal year 2010 thus far.

B. Litigation

The October 2009 report from Chartis for the period ending
September 30, 2009 reveals that in September, no cases were tried to
verdict, and YTD, ten cases have been tried to a verdict, with six
defense verdicts and four plaintiff verdicts.

New lawsuits have increased 11.4% over year-to-date 2008; closed
lawsuits have increased 12.6%, and pending lawsuits have decreased
4.5%.



Executive Director’s Report

November 17, 2009

C.

D.

Patient Injury Compensation Fund (PICF)

In a recent decision, the committee ruled to award the family of
Michael Sizemore a settlement of $900,000.00 as compensation for
birth trauma suffered at Cabell Huntington Hospital. The three
physicians involved in this case are faculty members at

Marshall University. This is the initial indemnity payment from the
PICF since its inception.

Interim Discussion Issues

a. This past spring, the State Auditor’'s Office discovered that some-
one had diverted $2 million meant for companies that
had state contracts. A North Carolina woman was later arrested
in connection with the incident. She and/or accomplices allegedly
sent fraudulent documents to the auditor’s office and diverted state
funds to Kenya.

As a result, the auditor’s office plans to hire a database firm to help
verify the identities of all companies that do business in West
Virginia. The state Purchasing Division has been asked to acquire
a sole-source contract with Dun & Bradstreet of Chicago, who will
help to validate the identities of the companies doing business with
the state that are requesting electronic payment.

First-party claims have been submitted by Office of the Insurance
Commissioner (OIC) and the Department of Health and Human
Resources (DHHR) totaling approximately $1.4 million collectively.
Approximately $500,000 of the diverted funds were recovered by
the WV State Treasurer’s Office.

b. As aresult of a legislative audit conducted earlier in the year, there
have been allegations of abuses of state employees using state
vehicles for community and other personal use.

Because of the magnitude of these allegations, Governor Manchin
has impaneled a fleet task force to study the problem and find a
solution(s). The task force will hold ten meetings during the months
of November/December 2009, and make recommendations to The
Governor.
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The Governor’s Office has directed that a form entitled “State-
Owned Vehicle Log” be submitted for approval to the Travel
Management Office by the head of each agency, department,
board, commission or spending unit. Once approved by the Travel
Management Office, the form will be given to the operator of each
state-owned vehicle for business use and commuting. Completed
forms will be reported in accordance with established rules or

policy.
E. BRIM Projects

1. On October 24, 2009, Jeremy Wolfe, Loss Control Manager,
attended the National Safety Council’s 2009 Congress and
Exposition in Orlando, FL. At the conference, BRIM was recognized
in the “Best Performance” category for its online Defensive Driving
Course.

2. Business Continuity Plan (BCP) — This is an ongoing task.
Recently, BRIM and CPRB executed a Memorandum of
Understanding to establish temporary alternate work sites in the
event that current BRIM or CPRB facilities become unavailable.

3. Compilation of “Best Practices” Initiatives
This process helps to document awareness of risk and setting well-
defined approaches to monitor and manage risk. All BRIM depart-
ments are taking part in this endeavor.

Respectfully submitted,

Charles E. Jones, Jr.
Executive Director

CEJ:d



STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

90 MACCORKLE AVENUE SW, Suite 203 (304) 766-2646 ADMINISTRATION
SOUTH CHARLESTON, WV 25303 (304) 766 2653 FAX
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Chief Financial Officer’s Report
November 17, 2009

A. Actuarial Risk Funding Study
o The Risk Funding Study as of June 30, 2009 has been completed.

B. Audit Results and Communications

e The audit of the annual financial statements for FY’09 has been completed.

e Total reserves reflect the actuarial estimates as of June 30, 2009. The reserves are
down $9.5 million vs. FY’08. The decline reflects risk funding study model
refinements, primarily in relation to claims development trends, that impacted reserve
estimates within the State and SB3 programs.

e Income reported for the fiscal year is $23.3 million vs. $29.9 million for FY’08. Most
of the current year's income is derived from the $19.3 million decrease in the prior
years’ estimated reserves that were recorded in FY’09.

C. P Card Report

e CD copies contain the supporting detail for P card purchases for the months of
August and September, 2009. These totals are:

August $49,283.82
September $40,212.08

D. Interim Financials — 9/30/09

e BRIM’s overall financial position improved for the first quarter of FY’10 due to $12.3
million in investment earnings. Investment Income for the first three months of this
year has improved dramatically versus a year ago when the financial market
meltdown resulted in investment losses of $6.5 million for the same period

e Premium Revenue thru September reflects the premiums earned for the first three
months of FY’09.

¢ Claims Expense thru September reflects the actual claims payments made for the
first quarter as well as an increase in estimated outstanding claims reserves.

E. AlIG/Chartis Update

e On November 6, 2009 AIG announced 3" quarter results, posting a net income of
$455 million vs. a $24.5 billion net loss for the same quarter a year ago.

e Chatrtis, Inc. continues to move closer towards separating its business form AIG as it
will prepare separate financial statements for the year and seek its own credit rating.



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management \
UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Short Term Assets
Cash and Equivalents
Advance Deposit with Carrier/Trustee
Receivables - Net
Prepaid Insurance
Total Short Term Assets

Long Term Assets
Investments
Total Long Term Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Short Term Liabilities
Accounts payable
Claims Payable
OPEB Liability
Agents Commissions Payable
Unearned Revenue
Current Estimated Claim Reserve
Total Short Term Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities

Compensated Absences

Estimated Noncurrent Claim Reserve
Total Long Term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Prior Year Net Assets

Current Year Earnings
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

<N
>
o%

September 30
2009 2008

(in thousands)

27,026 $ 24,012
179,951 168,167
1,254 1,401
2,949 2,947
211,180 196,527
114,938 100,673
114,938 100,673
326,118 297,200
1,840 1,394
87 396

114 35
323 2,027
7,428 8,300
49,402 51,378
59,194 63,530
58 52
104,725 114,682
104,783 114,734
163,977 178,264
150,958 127,630
11,183 (8,694)
162,141 118,936
326,118 $ 297,200

DRAFT - Unaudited - Management Purposes Only

8/31/2010

BRIM - Page 1



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management \
UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT ]
For the three months ending -

September 30
2009 2008
(in thousands)

Operating Revenues

Premium Revenues $ 14,761 $ 16,176
Less - Excess Insurance (1,564) (1,535)
Total Operating Revenues 13,197 14,641
Operating Expenses
Claims Expense 11,427 14,274
Property & MS Claims Expense 1,924 1,603
Personal Services 331 329
General & Administrative Expense 656 654
Total Operating Expenses 14,338 16,860
Operating Income (1,141) (2,219)
Nonoperating Revenues
Court Fees 10 9
Investment Income 12,314 (6,484)
Total Nonoperating Revenues 12,324 (6,475)
Net Income 11,183 (8,694)

DRAFT - Unaudited - Management Purposes Only

BRIM - Page 2
8/31/2010



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2009
(in thousands)

Total Total Mine BRIM
State SB3 Subsidence HB 601 Total
Assets
Short Term Assets
Cash and Equivalents $ 6,450 $ 7,459 $ 7,847 $ 5270 $ 27,026
Deposits Held by Carrier/Trustee 92,653 87,298 - - $ 179,951
Receivables - Net 667 215 372 - $ 1,254
Prepaid Insurance 1,022 1,927 - - $ 2,949
Total Short Term Assets 100,792 96,899 8,219 5,270 211,180
Long Term Assets
Investments 68,074 22,179 24,685 - 114,938
Total Long Term Assets 68,074 22,179 24,685 - 114,938
Total Assets $ 168,866 $ 119,078 $ 32,904 $ 5270 $ 326,118
Liabilities
Short Term Liabilities
Accounts payable 451 1,343 46 - 1,840
OPEB Liability 43 41 3 - 87
Claims Payable 2 37 75 - 114
Agents Commissions Payable - 323 - - 323
Unearned Revenue - 6,723 705 - 7,428
Current Claim Reserve 26,365 22,329 708 - 49,402
Total Short Term Liabilities 26,861 30,796 1,537 - 59,194
Long Term Liabilities
Compensated Absences 38 19 1 - 58
Claim Reserve IBNR 55,641 48,824 224 36 104,725
Total Long Term Liabilities 55,679 48,843 225 36 104,783
Total Liabilities 82,540 79,639 1,762 36 163,977
Prior Year Net Assets 81,352 35,682 28,702 5,222 150,958
Current Year Earnings 4,974 3,757 2,440 12 11,183
Total Net Assets 86,326 39,439 31,142 5,234 162,141

Total Liabilities and Retained Earnings (Deficiency) $ 168,866 $ 119,078 $ 32,904 $ 5270 $ 326,118




West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Unaudited Income Statement 93‘\
for the three months ending September 30, 2009 0@-
(in thousands) \
Operating Revenues \
Premium Revenues Total Total Mine BRIM
Less: Excess Insurance State SB3 Subsidence HB 601 Total
Total Operating Revenues
$ 7,293 $ 6,946 $ 522 % - $ 14,761
Operating Expenses $ (568) $ (996) $ - $ - $ (1,564)
Claims Expense $ 6,725 $ 5950 $ 522 $ - $ 13,197
Property & MS Claims Expense
Personal Services
General and Administrative Expense 7,999 3,488 (60) - 11,427
Total Operating Expenses 481 1,281 162 - 1,924
166 155 10 - 331
Operating Income (Loss) 134 514 8 - 656
8,780 5,438 120 - 14,338
Nonoperating Revenues
Interest Income (2,055) 512 402 - (1,141)
Court Fees
Total Nonoperating Revenue
7,029 3,245 2,038 2 12,314
Net Income (Loss) - - - 10 10
7,029 3,245 2,038 12 12,324

$ 4974 % 3,757 $ 2,440 $ 12 $ 11,183
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Loss Control Report to the Board
November 2009

During month of October, we sent out loss control questionnaires to our Senate

Bill #3 insured. The completed questionnaires and supporting documentation are
due to BRIM on January 1, 2009.

BRIM and Chubb sponsored two boiler safety and operational seminars on
November 12" and the 13", The first was held at West Virginia State University
and the second was held at the Days Inn in Flatwoods. Approximately 100
individuals participated in the seminars.

Next spring we will be hosting a risk management seminar for our insured County
Boards of Education as well as our Colleges and Universities. The seminars will
be designed to help our insured develop risk management strategies that will
reduce the frequency and severity of loss.

We have begun the process of developing a reward/recognition program for those
insured that exceed our expectations with regard to BRIM’s various safety and
loss control initiatives. We hope to roll-out this program during the spring and
summer of 2010.

During the months of September and October Aon conducted 136 inspections
and CHUBB conducted 532. The reports are being processed according to
established procedures.

Unfortunately, we have yet to receive a response to our request to fill the
technical vacancies which we currently have in the department. As a result of
these vacancies, we have had to adjust our visit scheduling criteria and we are
necessarily making fewer visits.

Since my last report, our loss control technical staff reports the following activity:

4 Loss Control Visits
These are standard loss control visits which focus on all coverage
areas and which result in information and/or loss control
recommendations being provided.

10 Standards of Participation Visits
These are visits which are designed to provide assistance to our
insured who are seeking to become compliant with the BRIM
Standards of Participation program.

2 Presentation Visits
These are visits during which we provide active training and/or
Outreach to a group of individuals.



Loss Control Report to the Board
November 2009

3 Continuing Education Visits
These are visits which are designed to provide the loss control
specialists with education and training for professional
development.

Dated: //- ¢t 3 - 2507
Respectfully submitted,

£ /4’41&/1___-

Robert A. Fisher
Deputy Director and Claim Manager
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2009 audit results and
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900 United Center
500 Virginia Streel East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Tel: 304 343 8971
Fax: 304 357 K994
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The Board of Directors and Management November 17, 2009
West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Dear Members of the Board of Directors and Management:

We are pleased to present the results of our audit of the 2009 financial statements of West Virginia
Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM).

This report summarizes our audit, the scope of our engagement, the reports issued, and various
analyses and observations related to BRIM's financial position and results of operations. The document
also contains the communications required by our professional standards, as well as current
accounting developments.

The audit is designed to express an opinion on the 2009 financial statements. We considered and will
continue to consider BRIM's current and emerging business needs, along with an assessment of risks

that could materially affect the financial statements, and aligned our audit procedures accordingly. We

conducted the audit with the objectivity and independence that the entire Board of Directors expects.
In accordance with professional standards, we obtained a sufficient understanding of internal control
to plan the audit and to determine the nature, timing, and extent of tests to be performed. However,
we were not engaged to and we did not perform an audit of internal control over financial reporting.

This report is intended solely forthe information and use of the Board of Direciors and management,
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We appreciate this opportunity to meet with you to discuss the contents of this report and answer any
guestions you may have about these or any other audit-related matfers.

Very truly yours,

Robert D. Johnso
Partner

A member fiom of Emst & Young Glebal Limited
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2009 audit results and communications

Our client service commitment to West Virginia Board of
Risk and Insurance Management

Continuous
communication

Hed

Effective Planning Fait and

technical and risk transparent
interaction i_d_en_t_Jf_icatin_r_._

. teps

ndisty
focus

‘Relévant -
insight

Neot adversarial Maintaining our ohjectivity

Not cozy

Ernst & Young is committed to delivering consistent high-quality client service to the West Virginia Board of Risk
and Insurance Management. Our service commitment is centered on.our most critical objective of performing a
high-quality audit of the basic financial statements. Additionally, we strive to provide “Quality in Everything We
Do" and recognize that service quality exiends well beyond execution of our audit methodology. It is driven by
the guality of our team and the effectiveness and value of cur communications with management and the Board
of Directors. Our overall service commitment to the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management is
depicted above and is aligned with aur Ernst & Young Assurance Service Delivery Approach.

Confidential - Ernst & Young i LP 2009 audlt results and communicatlons | Page 1
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Overview of the global audit methodology process

Sebh S St R

o = Important planning matters for Board of Directors’ consideration

PRI

b Business and industry risk considerations ¥ Critical policies, estimates and areas of emphasis
b Accounting and auditing developments ¥ Fraud considerations and the risk of management
override

Page 2 | 2009 audi resutts and communicatiohs Contldantial - Ernst & Young LEP
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Summary of what we agreed to do

Our audit plan represented an approach responsive to our risk assessments and the specific needs of the
West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM). Specifically, we designed our audit to:

» Express an opinion on the basic financial statements of BRIM.

» Read BRIM's comprehensive annual financial report io be submitted to the Government Finance Officers
Association (GFOA) (to be issued).

B Issue a report on internal control over financial reporting and en compliance and other matters based on
an audit of the financial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Areas of audit emphasis

The principal areas of audit emphasis were as follows:

» Unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability and the related expense accounts,
+ Premiums receivable and related premium revenue,

= Unearned premiums.

i+ Advance deposits.

& Cashand cash equivalents.

E Investments and related income.

There were no significant changes to our planned audit approach or areas of audit emphasis.

Conildential - Ernst & Young ELP West Virginia Board of Risk and insurance Management | Page 3
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Fraud considerations and the risk of management
override

We are responsible for planning and performing the audit o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused by error or by fraud (SAS No. 99,
Consideration of Fraud in a Financial Statement Audit.)

Our audit procedures will consider the requirements of SAS No. 99; brainstorming; gathering information to
facilitate the identification of and response {o fraud risks; and performing mandatory procedures to address
the risk of management override (including examining journal entries, reviewing accounting estimates, and
evaluating business rationale of significant unusuat transactions).

We evaluate the risk of management override using the fraud triangle and consider the actions management
has taken to respond to those risks. We consider, among other things:

e Code of Conduct/Ethics

= Effective and independent oversight by Audit
Committee (consider AICPA Antifraud Paper for
Audit Committees—-January 2005)

= Process for dealing with Whistleblower allegations
= Adequacy of Internal Audit activity
= Entity's Risk Assessment Processes

& Role and oversight responsibilities of the Audit
Committee

Attitude/rationalization

# Management's assessment of the risks of fraud

= Programs and controls to mltlgate the risk of fraud Occupafionel Fratd ami Abtise, by Joseph T. Walls, CPA, CFR
{Ohsidian Publishing Co., 1997);
Fraud Examination, by W. Stave Albrachl (Thomson Souh-Westemn Publishing, 2003}

= Process for monitoring multiple locations for fraud
» Management communication to employees on its views on business practices and ethical behavior

The following summarizes fraud risks we identified during the audit, For each risk, we developed our audit
strategy to be responsive to such risk.

= Improper premium revenue recognition.

g+ Fraudulent claim activity and manipulation of subjective accounting estimates such as the claim reserve.

Page 4 | 2009 audit results and communlcations LConfidentlal - Ernst & Yoing L.LP

0909- 1087874



Required communications

Professional standards require the auditor to communicate certain matters to the Board of Directors that

may assist the Board in overseeing management's financial reporting and disclosure process. Below we
summarize these communications.

. Auditors’ responsibilities under generally accepted auditing  ; We expect to issue an unqualifled opinion on BRIM's financial

standards (GAAS) ! statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009. '
. The financial statements are the responsibility of management. | As part of obtaining reasonabie assurance about whether BRIM's l
- Qur audit was designed in accordance with auditing standards . financial statements are free of material misstaternent, we '
" generally accepted in the United States and Government Auditing | performed tests of its compliance with certain pravisions of laws,
* Standards, and provide for reasonable, rather than absolute, " regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which
- assurance that the financial statements are free of material . could have a direct and material effect an the determination of
" misstatement. As a part of our audits, we cbtained an : financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on

. understanding of internal controf sufficient to plan our audits and | compliance with those provisions was not an ebjective of our audit
. to determine the nature, timing, and extent of testing performed. | and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Additionally,
. However, we were not engaged to and we did not perform an ; as part of our audit, we obtained a sufficient understanding of

. audit of internal control over financial reporting. internaj controls to plan our audit and determine the nature,

; timing, and extent of testing performed and not to provide
assurance on internat control aver financial reporting. We are
prepared to issue our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal !
Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. The results of
- our tests disclosed no insiances of noncompliance that are

! required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

¥

. o oo mm T e H . I

. Criticat sccounting peiicies and practices | We have considered management's critical accounting policies and |
We report afl critical accounting policies and practices used by practlctes n olur §u¢:!|t of the basic financial statements and related P
BRIM in preparing the financial statements and our assessment | footnotes including: : :

© of the disclosure of such policies. ; ¥ Unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability and the

i related expense accounts,

Premiums receivable and related premium revenue. :

}

., b Unearned premiums. !
b Advance deposits. ;
B

Cash and cash equivalenis.
‘b Investments and related incame.

We deem ihe related disclosures to be appropriate at June 30,
2009.

The adoption of, or a change in, an accounting policy

No new significant accounting pronouncements were required to
- We determine that the Board of Directors is informed about the - be adopted.
initial selection of, and any changes in, significant accounting i ;
principles or their application when the accounting principle or its i
 application, including alternative methods of applying the
accounting principle, has a material effect on the financial

1

statements. ' ;
Auditors’ judgments about the quality of accounting We evaluated the quaiity, not just the acceptability, of accounting .
principles principles selected by management, the consistency of their

We discuss our judgments about the quality, not just the : ai:)phcatlon, and' thc'e clarity and comp‘leteness of BRIM's financial
acceplability, of the accounting pelicies as applied in its financial - statements, which included related disclosures.

reporting, the consistency of their application, and the ciarity Management continues to utilize accounting policies that are

and completeness of BRIM's financial stalements, whichinciude - consistent with the prior year industry standards.
related disclosures. :

Confidential - Ernst & Young LLP West Virginia Beard of Risk and Insurance Management | Page 5
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Sensltlve accounting estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates. Certain estimates are particularly
sensitive due to thelr significance to the financial statements and
the possibility that future events may differ significantly from
management’s current judgments.

We determine that the Board of Directors is informed about
management's process for formulating particularly sensitive
accounting estimates and about the basis for our conclusions
regarding the reasonableness of those estimates.

E Significant estimates made by management relate to the
* gstimation of the claims reserve. Management utilizes an external

consulting actuary to assist with the estimation process.
Management believes the estimate for unpaid claims and claims
adjustment expense is reasonable. However, because actual claims -
costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in ’
daoctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used in
computing estimates of claims liability does not necessarily result
in an exact amount, particularly for coverages such as general
fiability and medical malpractice. Accordingly, BRIM's actuat
incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses may vary
significantly from the amounts reflected in BRIM's financial
statements.

i

All significant estimates used by management were evaluated and
con51dered to he reasonable in all matenal respects

AII mater[a! alternative accountlnq treatmants discussed
with management

We report to the Board of Directors or those charged with
governance all alternative accounting treatments within GAAP
for policies and practices related to material items (Including
recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure
alternatives) that have been discussed with management during
the current audit period including:

() Ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosures and
treatments, including the reasons why the alternative was
selected and, If management did not select our preferred
alternative, the reasons why it was not selected.

(iiy The treatment preferred bv us.

Methods of accounting for siqnlflcan‘l: unusua] ‘:raneactlons
and for controversial or emerging areas

We determine that the Board of Directors is informed about the
methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and
the effects of significant accouniing policies in controversial or
emerging areas for which there is a fack of authoritative
gmdance or consensus.

Significant audit adjus ‘tments

We provide the Board of Directors with information about
adjusiments arising from the audit (whether recorded or not)
that could in our judgment either individually or in the aggregate,

have a 5|gn|f|cant effect on BRIM S fmanclal statements

Unrecorded audh. dlfferences considerad by manaqement tn
te immaterial

We inform the Board of Directors about unrecerded audit
differences accumulated by us (i.e., adjustments elther identified
by us or brought to our attention by management) during the
current audit and pertaining to the latest period presented that
were determined by management to be immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a
whoie

Fraud rmd I!qual acts

We report to the Board of Directors fraud and illegal acts
involving senior management and fraud and iflegal acts (whether

! caused by senior management or other employees) that cause a

! material misstatement of the financial statements.

Page 6 | 2009 audit resuits and communicatiohs
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There were no material alternatwe accounting treatments
discussed with management.

We are not aware of any significant unusual transactions recorded °
hy BRIM or of any significant accounting policies used by BRIM

related to controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack
of authoritative guidance. :

There were no significant recorded audit adjustments related to
the 2009 audit.

There were no unrecorded audit differences for the 2009 audit.

No matters were communicated by management to us and no
material errors, irregularities, or illegai acts came to our attention.
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Significant deficiencies and matariaf weaknesses in internal
- control

We are required to communicate ali significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses that were identified during the caurse of
" our audlt )

Other mformatmn in documents cantalnmg aud;ted fmanclai

statements

Dlsagreements wnth managemeni

| Serious <!r§i:cuii:|es enco:_nternd in dna[i'\g wnch management
i when permrmmg the audlt

Ma;m iszues L{lscussed wrth munugement in copnection with
) lmtlal OF Tesur rmq retenilon

No material weaknesses were identified.

BRIM has presented supplementary information with its financial

statements required by Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Staternent No. 30. We did not audit and do not express an
opinion or any other form of assurance on such information.
However, we applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of

; measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.

' BRIM also presented other financial information requested by the

Siate of West Virginia (the State). This other financial information
is not a required part of the financial statements but is presented
for purposes of additional analyses. We have compared this
information with BRIM's accounting records and determined it is

consmtent W|th BRIM 5 ﬂnanua] statements

None.

. None.

None

Cnnsuitatl:m with uther arcuumants

\
I
H
i

!ndeper.denr.e

: We communicate, at least annually, the following to the Board of
: Directors:

1 Disclose, in writing, al! relationships between Ernst & Young
: and our related entities and the Company and its refated
entities that, in our professionaf judgment, may reasonably
be thought to bear on independence; and

. 2. Confirm in writing that, in our professional judgment, we are
independent of BRIM within the meaning of the applicable
regulatory requirements.

AICPA e‘i‘hlcs ruimg rega;dlnti ihlrc party service m ovnders

From time-to-time and depending upon the circumstances, third-
party service providers, independent contractors and

- consultants to Ernst & Young may participate in providing

* professional services. AICPA Ethics Ruling No. 112 under Rule

" 102, Integrity and Objectivity, requires that we inform clients
whenever we use a third-party service pravider in providing
professional services to a client. The Rule has broadly defined
“third-party service provider” to include an individual who is not

" employed by our US firm. Accordingly, third-party service
providers might include, but not be limited to, the following

Nune of Wthh we are aware of

1 We are not aware of any relat:onshlps between Ernst & Young
and BRIM that, in our professional judgment, may reascnably
be thought to bear on our independence.

i 2. Refating to our audit of the financial statements of BRIM as of

We dld not use any non-US firm personnel on the 2009 audlt

examples: non-US personnel who work for Ernst & Young affiliate

_ firms (e.g., Ernst & Young United Kingdom), non-US personnel
working in the US on a foreign secondment, non-US personnel
working at Ernst & Young IT shared service centers.

Confidential - Erusi & Young LLF
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June 30, 2009, and for the year then ended, we are
independent certified public accountants with respect to BRIM
within the meaning of Rule 101 of the American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants’ Code of Professional Conduct, its |

interpretations and rulings, and the requirements of
Government Auditing Standards. Our policies relating to
financial interests (e.g., stock ownership, loans, and cther
credit) generally are stricter than the requirements imposed by
these regulatory and professaonal bodles
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Industry analysis

Ratio comparison

Loss Ratio
80% -
609% -
A0%
20% -
0%- i
2006 2007 2008 2009 Industry®
Expense Ratio
30% T

2006 2007 - 2008 2009 Indusfry*

Combined Ratio

L.

2006 2007 2008 2009 Industry*

The loss rafio measures claims cost experience. It is derived by
dividing claims and claims adjustment-expenses by eamed
premiums. This ratio can soar during a period of heavy catastrophe
losses.

The 2002 loss ratio has remained consistent with the prior year as
claims expense has declined in proportion with the decline in
earned premiums.

The expense ratioc measures how cost-effectively an insurer writes
new business. It is derived by dividing general and administrative
expenses by written premiums.

BRIM’s expense ratio is well below the industry average. This is
mainly due to low overhead and the requirement of state entities to
obtain insurance coverage from BRIM. The 2009 expense ratio has
remained consistent with the previous years.

The combined ratio is one of the key ratios used fo measure
underwriting performance. it is equal to the sum of the loss ratio
and the expense ratio. A combined ratio below 100% indicates an
underwriting profit, while a combined ratio in excess of 100% points
to an underwriting loss.

BRIM's combined ratio is below the indusiry average due to the
expense ratio factors discussed above. The 2009 combined ratio
has remained consistent with the previous years.

*industry data obtained from Standard & Poor’s Industry Surveys, Insurance: Property/Casualty, July 9, 2009.

Page B | 2009 audl results and communications
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Industry trends

Source: Standard & Poor's Industry Surveys, Insurance: Property/Casualty, July 9, 2009,

The combination of deteriorating underwriting and investment results that plagued many insurers during

2008 could ultimately lead to a firming of premium rates for most lines of coverage, as these iosses remove

the so-called “excess” underwriting capacity from the marketplace and enable many carriers to raise rates (or
at least stop cutting rates). However, the impact of these pricing gains (or stabilizations) may be muted or
offset by the effects of the recession on overali economic activity, Moreover, since it takes approximately a
year for these increases to be recognized as revenue, top-line growth among property-casualty insurers will
likely remain constrained in coming pericds. Exacerbating the impact in the near term s a likelihood that
investment income remains under pressure. In addition to the ongoing capital markets pressures, insurers

. have also had the additional (and continuing) challenge of dealing with catastrophe losses. After a lullin 2006

and 2007 following record losses in 2005, catastrophes once again ticked upward in 2008.

Most property-casualty insurers are expected to weather the credit crisis and attendant global recession
better than certain other subsets of the financial services sector {such as investment hanks and mortgage
entities), nevertheless there will be acertain amount of fallout from the crisis. Monoline insurers, those that
guaranty debt, are likely to be the hardest hit, largely due fo their forays into the structured finance market.
Property-casualty insurers who underwrote directors and officers (D&O) liability coverage and errors and
omissions (E&Q) coverage for an array of financial institutions caught up in the credit crisis will also see an
up tick in claim trends.

Another possible impact to the industry from the credit crisis and frozen capital market may be an increased
demand for so-called traditional reinsurance, as primary insurance carriers face balance sheet pressure .and
resume their attempt to offset this through the transfer of risk to reinsurers. A heightened demand for
reinsurance, coupled with reduced capacity (due to reinsurers' underwriting and investment losses like those
experienced by the primary carriers) may also lead to an upturn in pricing for many lines of reinsurance.

Profits plunge in 2008 as underwriting and investments both falter

After peaking in 2006, industry underwriting results and profitability have declined in the last two years.
Thanks to significantly lower catastrophe claims and to solid investment results, the industry posted after-tax
profits of $65.8 hillion in 2006. Crucial to that performance was the absence of 2005's record catastrophe
losses of $61.9 billion, most of which were related to Hurricanes Katrina, Rita, and Wilma. With catastrophe
losses of only $9.2 billion in 2006, the industry reported a $31.1 billion net gain from underwriting,

compared with a $5.6 billion underwriting loss in 2005, according to the Insurance Services Office (1S0), an
industry research group.

Against that backdrop, year-over-year comparisons in 2007 were difficult, but the industry managed to post
a $19.3 billion net underwriting gain. However, the dual challenges of deteriorating underwriting results and

significantly impaired investment results led to a 96% piunge in net income in 2008, according to 1SO data

released in late April 2009. For the year ended December 371, 2008, insurers in the ISQ study reported a
1.4% decline in net written premiums to $434.6 billion from $440.6 billion in 2007 (as restated). Written
premiums represent business produced in a given period. Insurers account for this business aver the life of a
policy {(typically 12 months). Hence, the general volume and direction of written premiums in one year is

usually a good indication of the level of earned premiums (a revenue companent on the income statement)
the following year.

Confidertial - Erast & Yeung LLF West Virginia Board of fisk and Insurance Management | Page B
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Written premiums in the personal lines sector (the industry's largest, accounting for mere than 40% of written
premiums) slipped 0.1%, year over year, in 2008. This group’s business consists primarily of personal auto
and homeowners' coverage, which is highly regulated and not prone to great pricing swings. However,
premium rates for auto insurance have been under pressure for the fast several years and indications are that
competition here has remained Intense. Offsetting the modest decline in personal [ines premiums was a
greater degree of deterioration in the commercial lines sector (which accounted for 39% of total industry
written premiums) in 2008. That group reporfed a 2.2% year-aver-year drop in written premiums, providing
empirical support for anecdotal evidence that the commercial tines market remains highly competitive.
Balanced lines underwrtters, who write a combination of personal and commercial lines coverage, accounted
for the remaining 21% of industry written premiums. This group posted a 2.1% decline in written premiums in
2008. Earned premiums for insurers in the ISO study declined 0.2% to $438.1 billion in 2008, compared with
5438.9 billion in 2007. This decline (albeit modest) represented a marked contrast to the double digit rise in
premiums that occurred in "hard market" that ensued in the aftermath of the September 11 terrorist attacks:
earned premiums advanced 11.9% in 2002 and 10,9% in 2003. Growth has been trending downward ever
since.

Looking ahead, Standard & Poor's anticipates that written premiums for property-casualty insurers will likely
advance modestly (1% to 2%) in 2009 and may rise 2% 1o 4% in 201.0. Earned premiums are expected to be
flat to down slightly in 2009 and will likely rise modestly in 2010. These forecasts refiect our view that the
dual pressures of weak underwriting and investment results will [ikely remove enough capacity from the
insurance marketplace to help rates rise modestly. Partly offsetting this, we believe, is the downward
pressure on demand placed by a weaker economic environment.

investment results exacerbated a weak underwriting climate

investment income is an important revenue source for insurers, often accounting for 15% to 20% or more of
an insurer's total revenues historically. However, numerous pressures affected investment results in 2008.

Higher catastrophe losses, eroding claim trends in a number of casualty lines, and a surge in bond insurers’

loss costs all combined to exert downward pressure on cash flows available for investment in 2008. Making

matters worse, many insurers were forced to write down the value of their investment holdings.

Consequently, net investment income for property-casualty insurers declined 7.1% in 2008, to $51.2 billion,
from $55.1 billion in 2007. Standard & Poor’s anticipates that net investment income will likely remain under
pressure for most of 2009, with a modest recovery likely in 2010. This forecast assumes a "normal” level of
catastrophe losses for the industry. Although investment income growth may also be restrained somewhat by
turmoil in the market for mortgage-backed securities, Standard & Poor’s does not anticipate that property-
casuaity insurers will experience any material adverse impact to their financial situation because of their
exposure to this asset class.

Realized investment losses (incurred when investments are soid) ballooned to $19.8 hillion in 2008. This
contrasts rather sharply with $8.9 billion of realized investment gains the industry accrued in 2007. More
striking was the level of insurers’ unrealized losses. Insurers had unrealized investment losses of $52.9 billion
in 2008, up sharply from unrealized losses totaling $546 million in 2007; and an even more stark contrast to
the industry's unrealized gains of $20.6 billion in 2006, (Note: analysts typically exciude the impact of net
realized investment gains on insurers’ profits when forecasting earnings. Instead, they base earnings
estimates on net operating earnings, which exciude these gains and/or losses.)

Page 10 | 2009 audlt results and comminications Confldentlal - Ernst & ¥oung LLP

0909-1087874



Loss trends deteriorate amid higher catastrophes and bond insurers’ woes

Loss costs and related expenses (commaonly referred to as loss adjustment expenses} are often the targest
expense item facing an insurer. A change in the direction of these expenses can dramatically affect
bottomline resulits.

Insurers in the ISO survey reporfed erosion in underwriting margins during 2008. incurred losses rose 17.5%
to $287.5 billion, from $244.7 billion in 2007, Despite this, insurers tightened their belts. As such, loss
adjustment expenses (the costs incurred in settling claims) totaled $51.7 billion in 2008, down 1.1% from
$52.3 billion of reported loss adjustment expenses in 2007. The two primary factors behind the erosion in
2008 underwriting results were a sharp rise in catastrophe losses (which totaled $21.8 hiliion in 2008,
versus $6.9 billion in 2007) and a deterioration in mortgage and financial guaranty insurance claims trends.

Combined ratio a key gauge of underwriting performance

The combined ratio is a key measure of underwriting performance. It is the sum of the loss ratie, the expense
ratio, and {where applicable) the dividend ratio. A combined ratio under 100% indicates an underwriting
profit, while one in excess of 100% means there is an underwrifing loss. Insurers in the ISO study reported a
combined ratio of 105.1% for all of 2008, compared with 95.5% in 2007.

Underwriting results deteriorated across the board, although the magnitude of erosion varied somewhat by
type of insurer. Commercial lines underwriters saw the sharpest deterioration in their underwriting results,
with a combined ratio of 108.7% in 2008, compared with 94.2% in 2007, Deterioration in the mortgage and
financial guaranty marketplace primarily drove these results; when they are excluded, the commercial lines
underwriters reported a combined ratio of 101.0% in 2008 versus94.6% in 2007. The deterioration in these

resulis {excluding mortgage and financial guaranty) largely refiects the impact of higher catastrophe losses
and erosion in workers' compensation results.

Personal fines writers were hurt by erosion in two key lines of coverage (auto and homeowners™ and also
posted a sizable increase in their combined ratios: 104.6% in 2008 versus 96.9% in 2007. Balanced lines
underwriters, which write both commercial and personal lines of coverage, incurred the most modest

downturn in their results, which remained profitable in 2008. Their combined ratio increased to 99.1% in
2008 from 95.3% in 2007.

Loss ratios for this representative group of insurers (accounting for more than 96% of industry premium
volume) equaled 77.4% in 2008, compared with 67.7% in 2007. Again, these results reflected the impact of
higher catastrophe-refated claims and sharply higher financial quaranty claims (largely related to the
meltdown in the mortgage market and in mortgage-backed securities). These results also include foss
adjustment expenses (LAE). As such, personal iines insurers posted a loss ratio of 78.8% in 2008 versus
71.2% in 2007. Commercial lines insurers reported the most significant deterioration in their loss ratios
during 2008, with a loss ratio of 80.9% versus 66.3% in 2007. Balanced lines underwriters also experienced a
deterioration to 68.1% in 2008 from 63.5% in 2007.

industry expense ratios declined slightly in 2008, as insurers implemented cost-cutting measures to offset
sluggish top-line growth. Still, expense ratios have been climbing steadily since 2003 when they ended the
year at 24.9%. Resuiis were mixed by product line, as personal lines insurers experienced an increase in their
expense ratios, which inched up 1o 25.4% in 2008 from 25.1% in 2007. We attribute this increase primarily to
heightened competition in the personal lines arena. Commercial lines insurers held the line on expenses, as
evidenced by their expense ratio of 27.3%, unchanged from a year ago. Balanced lines underwriters managed
to shave some points off their expense ratio, which ended 2008 at 36.6%, down from 3.1.4% in 2007.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of the West Virginia Board of Risk
and Insurance Management (BRIM) (an enterprise fund of the State of West Virginia) as of
June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility

of BRIM’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audifs in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether these financial
statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of
BRIM’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
BRIM'’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 2, the financial statements of BRIM are intended to present the financial
position, and the changes in financial position and cash flows of only that portion of the
business-type activities of the State of West Virginia that is attributable to the transactions of
BRIM. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the State of
West Virginia as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of BRIM (an enterprise fund of the State of West Virginia) as of June 30,
2008 and 2007, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then
ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

0909-1086753 1



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October __, 2008, on our consideration of BRIM’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant
agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our 2009 audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 11 and the unaudited supplemental
schedules of Ten-Year Claims Development Information on page 38 and the Reconciliation of
Unpaid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expense Liability by Type of Contract on page 39 are
not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 11 and the Ten-Year Claims
Development Information on page 38 and the Reconciliation of Unpaid Claims and Claims
Adjustment Expense Liability by Type of Contract on page 39, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion
on it. '

Our audit of the basic financial statements was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on
the financial statements that collectively comprise BRIM’s basic financial statements. Other
financial information listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of BRIM. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3
through 11 and the unaudited supplemental schedules of Ten-Year Claims Development
Information on page 38 and the Reconciliation of Unpaid Claims and Claims Adjustment
Expense Liability by Type of Contract on page 39 have nof been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

Qctober 2008

—
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2009

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM) provides
this Management Discussion and Analysis for readers of BRIM’s financial statements. This
narrative overview of the financial activities of BRIM is for the years ended June 30, 2000,
2008, and 2007. BRIM provides property and casualty insurance to State of West Virginia (the
State) agencies and Senate Bill 3 entities (SB3), which include boards of education, and
governmental and nonprofit organizations. BRIM also administers a coal mine subsidence
reinsurance program, which makes available to the general public dwelling insurance covering
damage caused by the collapse of underground coal mines. From December 2001 until novation
to a physician’s mutual on Joly 1, 2004, BRIM’s program was expanded to include providing
medical malpractice insurance to private sector health care providers (referred to hereafter as the
House Bill 601 Program). The hospitals that were nonrenewed in 2003 are still being managed
by BRIM for claims that were made during the period they were insured.

As an enterprise fund, BRIM’s financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) for govemmental entities. The three basic
financial statements presented are as follows:

+  Statement of Net Assets—ithis statement presents information reflecting BRIM’s assets,
liabilities, and net assets and is categorized into current and noncurrent assets and
liabilities. For purposes of the financial statements, current assets and liabilities are those

assets and liabilities with immediate liquidity or which are collectible or becoming due
within 12 months of the statement’s date.

+  Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets—this statement reflects the
operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses for the operating year. Operating
revenues primarily consist of premium income with major sources of operating expenses
being claims loss and loss adjustment expense and general and administrative expenses.

Nonoperating revenues primarily consist of investment income and appropriations from
the State.

- Statement of Cash Flows—the statement of cash flows is presented on the direct method
of reporting which reflects cash flows from operating, noncapital financing, and investing
activities. Cash collections and payments are reflected in this statement to arrive at the
net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the year.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following tables summarize the financial position and the results of operations as of and for
the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007 (in thousands):

Change 2009-2008 Change 2008-2007

2009 2008 2007 Amount Percent Amount Percent

Cash $ 32,181 $ 30,595 $ 33,083 § 1,586 5% § (2,488) (8)%
Advance deposits with

carrier/irustee 174,215 158,436 115,836 15,779 10 42 600 37
Receivables 1,003 1,439 2,392 (436) (30) {953) 40}
Total corrent assets 207,399 190,470 151,311 16,920 9 39,159 26
Noncurrent investments 105,461 109,325 117,127 (3,864) “ {7,802) €))]
Total asseis 312,860 209,795 268,438 13,065 4 31,357 12
Estimated claim expense 48,650 50,693 50,851 (2,043) 4 (158) 0
Unearned premiums 71,235 7,705 8,659 (470) (6) {954) (11}
Agent commissions payable 1,247 1,621 1,985 (374) 23 (364) (18)
Accrued expenses 629 _ 559 483 70 13 76 16
Total current liabilities ) 57,761 60,578 61,978 (2,817) (5 (1,400) (2)
Estimated claim expense 104,083 111,535 108,713 (7,452 )] 2,822 .3
Compensated absences 58 52 200 6 12 (148)  (74)
Total noncurrent liabilities 104,141 111,587 108,913 (7,446) )] 2,674 2
Total liabilities 161,902 172,165 170,891 {10,263) (6) 1,274 1
Net assets:

Restricted 33,924 33,634 31,117 290 1 2,517 8

Unrestricted 117,034 93,996 60,430 23,038 25 27,566 41
Net assets $ 150,958 $ 127,630 $ 97547 $ 23,328 18 $ 30,083 31
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

-‘Change 2009-2008 Change 2008-20067

2009 2008 2007 Amount Percent Amount Percent

Premiums $ 62,427 $ 7298 % 80,248 $ (10,559 (1% § (7,262) (9%
Less excess coverage (3,944) (6,394) (6,151) 450 7 (243 )
Net operating revenues 56,483 66,592 74,097 (10,109} (15) (7,505) (10)
Claims and claims adjustment

expense 36,604 42 982 35,136 (6,378} (15) 7,846 22
‘General and administrative 3,894 4,247 4,305 (353) (8) (58) ()
‘Total operating expenses 40,498 47,229 30,441 (6,731) (14) 7,788 20
Operating income 15,985 19,363 34,656 3378 (17 (15,293) (44)
Nonoperating revenues:

Investment income 7,312 10,512 18,022 (3.200) (30} (7,510) {42}

Financing income 31 30 25 1 3 5 20

Other postemployment

benefits — 30 - 30y 0 30 -

Total nonoperating revenues,

net 7,343 10,572 18,047 3,229y (3D (7.475) (41)
Changes in net assets 23,328 29,935 52,703 (6,607 - (22} (22,768) (43
Total net assets — beginning 127,630 97,547 44,844 30,083 31 52,703 118
Change in accounting principle

for other postemployment )

benefits - 148 — {148) 0 148 -
Total net assets — beginning,

adjusted 127,630 97,695 44 844 29,935 31 52,851 -
Total net assets — end $ 150,958 $ 127,630 $ 97,547 $§ 23,328 i8 $ 30,083 31
Total revenues $ 63,826 § 77,164 $ 92,144 $ (13,338) (1n $ (14,980) (16}
Tolal expenses ‘$ 40,498 $ 47,229 $ 39441 § (6,731) (14 $ 7,788 20
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

« Total assets increased $13,065,000 from 2008 to 2009 and $31,357,000 from 2007 to 2008.
The increases are due primarily to the additional advance deposits made in 2007, 2008 and
2009 under the advance deposit prefunding arrangement established in 2006.

« Total liabilities decreased $10,263,000 from 2008 to 2009 and increased $1,274,000 from
2007 to 2008. The decrease from 2008 to 2009 relates to better defined loss development
patterns impacting automobile and general lability claims for the State and Senate Bill 3
programs that reduced the ultimate loss estimates for these segmients. The increase from 2007
to 2008 is primarily due to general changes in the estimated retained reserves.

» The total net assets for 2009 are $150,958,000, reflecting an overall increase of $53,411,000
since 2007 when total net assets were $97,547,000. Several factors contributed to the
increase. Specifically, the anticipated costs incurred to address the recovery of both estimated
and projected expenses that were included for the State and Senate Bill 3 premium rafing
calculations in prior years were subsequently determined to be substantially less than what
was initially determined for the actual rating periods for these programs. Part of this
reduction is reflected in an overall decrease in the provisions for prior year’s ouistanding
estimated claims reserves in 2009 and 2008. This reduction increased met asscts by
approximately $33,544,000 over the last two years. During 2009, BRIM recovered premium
surcharges approximating $6,288,000 from an insurance carrier. This amount inciudes
$4,980,000 that was expensed in prior years, Investment income of $7,312,000 in 2009 and
$10,512,000 in 2008 also contributed to the increase in net assets since 2007. Restricted net
assets of $33,924,000, $33,634,000, and $31,117,000 in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively,
relates to mine subsidence coverage provided to the general public based on restrictions
provided in the West Virginia State Code and to the medical malpractice tail coverage
provided by the House Bill 601 Program.

» Total net operating revenues decreased from $66,592,000 to $56,483,000 from 2008 to 2009
due to overall reductions in the premium levels required to adequately fund the State and
Senate Bill 3 programs and from a decrease in the premiums billed to the medical
malpractice schools based on the projected reduction in the estimated losses to be incurred by
the program. The medical malpractice schools program requires a higher self-insured
retention for each claim incurred by the program participants that increased their deductible
to $250,000 per claim. Total net operating revenues decreased from $74,097.000 to
$66,592,000 from 2007 to 2008 due to the implementation of the revised medical malpractice
claims deductible program and an overall reduction in premium rates charged to State and
Senate Bill 3 entities.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

+ Total operating expenses decreased from $47,229,000 in 2008 to $40,498,000 in 2009. The
overall net decrease in claims and claims adjustment expense of $6,378,000 resulted from the
refinement of the loss development patterns reducing the year over year tetained loss
estimates by approximately $9,496,000. This reduction was partially offset by an increase in
the actual claims payment made in 2009 versus 2008. The increase in net operating expense
from $39,441,000 in 2007 to $47,229,000 in 2008 reflects the increase in the year over year
retained loss estimates in the State and Senate Bill 3 general liability programs.

* Nonoperating revenues have decreased in the past three years. There was a $3,229,000
teduction from 2008 to 2009 and a $7,475,000 decrease from 2007 to 2008. These reductions

reflect reduced overall investment returns and valuation changes resulting from marking
investment holdings to market.

= Total revenues and total expenses from 2009 to 2008 and from 2007 to 2008 have fluctuated

due to year over year reductions in premium rates, the changes in the retained loss estimates
and lower investment market returns. See the above explanations for additional information.
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Discussion Drait as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

OVERALL ANALYSIS

The overall condition of BRIM has improved from the prior year. Proper premium assessments,
investment earnings, aggressive risk management, and the reduction in the estimated claims
liability have allowed BRIM to further increase the net assets for this year, reflecting net assets
of $150,958,000 at June 30, 2009. BRIM implemented and continues to strictly adhere to a
comprehensive financial stability plan,

Unpaid Claims Liability

BRIM’s most significant number on its statements of net assets is the liability for estimated
unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense. This liability consists of two parts: claims that
BRIM is aware of which have been reserved and incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims, which
are projected by an independent actuary. From fiscal year 2008 to 2009, the liability for unpaid
claims decreased from $162,228,000 to $152,733,000. The chart below shows .the estimated
unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability for fiscal years 2001 through 2009.

Estimated Unpaid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expense

$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$0

Dollars {in thousands)

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 .2008 2009
Fiscal Year Ended

House Bills 601 and 2122

In December 2001, the West Virginia Legislature passed House Bill 601, which authorized
BRIM to provide medical malpractice and general liability coverage to health care providers.
This bill was created as a result of the medical malpractice insurance crisis created by private
sector insurance companies’ non-renewing insurance policies for health care providers on a
national level and in the State.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

During the legislative session in early 2003, House Bill 2122 was enacted. This bill aliowed for
BRIM’s insured physicians to novate into a physician’s mutual. On July 1, 2004, House Bill 601
physicians were novated to the West Virginia Physicians’ Mutual Insurance Company
(WVPMIC). The hospitals and clinics that did not novate were non-renewed by BRIM prior to
June 30, 2004. The program is in “runoff” mode, and BRIM continues to service and pay claims
that were made during the effective peried or claims relating to tail coverage purchased. Tail

— coverage was offered to all terminated insurers in House Bill 601. This tail coverage covers the
insured on any IBNR claims during the policy period.

Results by Line of Business for BRIM

BRIM is comprised of the State (state agencies), SB3 (for nonprofits, boards of education, and
other governmental units), mine subsidence (for home and business owners), and the House
Bill 601 (medical malpractice for private physicians) lines of business.

The following chart shows the breakdown by customer and line of business of the total estimated
claim liability number, which is $152,733,000. As demonstrated in the chart, the largest claim
volume for BRIM relates to general liability for the State agencies and SB3 programs and the
State agencies’ medical malpractice coverage.

‘Components of Total Claim Liability by
‘Customer and Line of Business

1% State General Liability

Less than 1% B SB3 General Liability
B State Auto
\ 34% OSB3 Auto

8% . .
B State Medical Malpractice

6% 8 5B3 Medical Malpractice
State Property
B SB3 Property

B Mine Subsidence

36%

8 House Bill 601

. There is no long-term debt activity.

1
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Piscussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

‘West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S RATES

Management’s Plan to Maintain Net Assets by Line of Business

By the end of 2008, BRIM had eliminated the deficiency in net assets for all of the lines of
business for the programs it oversees. The deficiency arose primarily due to adverse claim
development in the general liability and medical malpractice lines of business for the State and
SB3. The following paragraphs describe the essential plans that BRIM has followed and will
continue to follow to ensure that all lines of business are solvent independently.

Risk Management

BRIM has advanced an aggressive risk management plan during the past three years to address
the significant losses that have occurred. Processes are in place to allow for better organization
and for proper documentation of activities. BRIM has been working on ways to increase and
improve communications, both within the agency and with its customers, and has been
promoting interaction within the agency with regard to loss control utilization. In conjunction
with the underwriting department, a system of credits and surcharges are in place, based on loss
control efforts and cooperation, or lack thereof, on the part of BRIM’s insurers.

Investment Return

in 2009, BRIM maintained the funds invested with the West Virginia Investment Management
Board (WVIMB) and reinvested all of the earnings on the funds for the fiscal year. In 2008,
BRIM sold $8,000,000 of its holdings with the WVIMB in order to provide a portion of the
funding for the current years advance deposits requirements. All BRIM funds held by the
WVIMB are invested for the benefit of the pool participants, BRIM invests and withdraws its
monies from these funds as needed primarily for operating and shori-term cash requirements.
Investment income had increased in prior fiscal years but due to the fluctuations in the market
during fiscal year 2009 investment returns decreased.

0706-0840711 10



Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Premium Determination Process

BRIM has properly maintained premiums across all lines of business for the past several years
based on relevant exposure data and claims loss history. Charging proper premiums, consistent
with the commercial industry, has enabled BRIM to adequately cover losses. Further, fiscal years
2009 and 2008 showed signs of favorable loss trends, which BRIM hopes will continue,

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide BRIM’s customers, governing officials, legistators,
citizens, and taxpayers with a general overview of BRIM’s accountability for the money it

receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact the
Office of the Chief Financial Officer at (304) 766-2646.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Statements of Net Assets

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
‘Advance deposits with insurance company and trustee
Receivables:
Premiums due from State agencies
Premiums due from other entities
Other
Less allowance for doubtful accounts
Net receivables

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted receivables:
Premiums due from other entities
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Investments
Resiricted investments

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Cuzrent liabilities:
Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense
Unearned premioms
Agent commissions payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilitics
Total current liabilities

Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense, net-of current portion
Compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities -

Net assets;
Restricted
Unrestricted

Net assets

See accompanying notes,

0909-1086753

June 30

2009

2008

{In Thousands)

$ 19532 $ 19310
174215 158,436
- 789

392 394
626 585
(387) (701)
631 1,067
12,649 11,285
372 372

$ 207,399 § 190,470
82,811 85,851
22,650 23474
105461 109,325
312,860 299,795
48,650 50,693
7,235 7,705
1,247 1,621
629 550
57,761 60,578
104,083 111,535
58 52
104,141 111587
161,002 172,165
33,924 33,634
117,034 93,996

§ 150958 3§ 127.630

12



Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30
2009 2008
(In Thousands)

‘Operating revenues
Premiums $ 62427 $ 72,986
Less excess coverage/reinsurance premiums (5,944) (6,394)
Net operating revenues 56,483 . 66,592
Operating expenses
Claims and claims adjustment expense 36,604 42982
General and administrative 3,894 4,247
Total operating expenses 40,498 47,229
‘Operating income 15,985 19,363
Nonoperating revenues _ :
Investment income 7,312 10,512
Financing income 31 30
‘On behalf contributions — 30
Net nonoperating revenues 7,343 10,572
Changes in net assets ' 23,328 29,935
Total net assets, beginning of year 127,630 97,547
Change in accounting principle for other postemployment benefits — 148
Total net assets, beginning of year adjusted , 127,630 97,695
Total net assets, end of year § 150,958 § 127.630
See accompanying notes.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30
2009 2008
{In Thousands)

Operating activities
Receipts from customers $ 56,582 § 066,481
Payments to employees (1,292) (1,486)
Payments to suppliers (3,033) (2,909)
Payments to claimants (46,099) (40,318)
Deposits to advance deposit with insurance company and trustee (64,452)  (81,277)
Withdrawals from advance deposit with insurance company and trustee 48,672 38,676
Net cash used in operating activitics 9,622) (20,833)
Noncapital financing activities
Financing earnings 31 30
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 31 30
Investing activities
Purchase of investments (115,498)  (31,883)
Sale of investments 113,986 35,346
Net investment earnings 12,689 14,852
Net cash provided by investing activities 11,177 18,315
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - 1,586 (2,488)
‘Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 30,595 33,083
Cash and cash cquivalents, end of year $ 32181 $ 30,595
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,532 § 19,310

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 12,649 11,285

$ 32,181 § 30,595

0909-1086753
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

-~

Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash used in
operating activities
Operating income

Adjustments fo reconcile operating income to net cash
used in operating activities

Increase in advanced deposits

Decrease in premiums receivable, net

(Decrease) increase in estimated liability for unpaid claims
and claims adjustment expense

Decrease in other liabilities

Decrease in unearned premiums

Total adjustments

Net cash used in operating activitics

Noncash activities
Decrease in Tair value of investments

On behalf contributions

See accompanying notes.

0%909-1086753

Years Ended June 30
2009 2008
{(In Thousands)

$ 15985 § 19,363

(15,779)  (42,600)
571 847

(9,495) 2,664
@32) (153)
@72 (954)

(25,607)  {40,196)

_$ (9.622) § (20.,833)

$ (5.377) § (4339

$ — $§ 30
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

1. General

The West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM) was established in 1957 to
provide for the development of the State of West Virginia’s (the State and primary government)
property and liability self-insurance program. Approximately 146 State agencies participate in
the program. Beginning in 1980, county boards of education were authorized to participate in the
liability portion of this program, with 55 county boards currently participating in the program. In
fiscal year 1987, Senate Bill No. 3 (SB3) was enacted, allowing local governmental entities and
nonprofit organizations to participate in the entire program. There are approximately 1,000 such
entities participating in the program. In 1982, legislation was also enacted requiring BRIM fo
establish and administer a coal mine subsidence reinsurance program which makes available to
the general public dwelling insurance covering damage up to a specific maximum caused by the
collapse of underground coal mines.

BRIM operates under the authority granted by the Legislature in Chapter 29, Article 12 and
Chapter 33, Article 30 of the West Virginia ‘Code and the provisions of Executive Order 12--86.
BRIM is an agency of the State operating within the Department of Administration and is
governed by a five-person board of directors appointed by the Governor. Accordingly, BRIM is
reported as an enterprise fund of the State operating as a single business segment and is included
in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

BRIM uses a “modified” paid retrospective rating plan for its liability insurance program. Under
the current plan, BRIM pays a “premium” deposit to an insurance company to fund initial losses.
As claims are reported, they are paid from the cash reserves established by the premium deposit.
When paid losses cxceed the amount of the “premium” deposit, BRIM pays the insurance
company an additional “premium” deposit estimated to be sufficient to fund any estimated
remaining claims and claims adjustment expenses expected to be paid during the ensuing 12-
month period. These payments are calculated through retrospective rating adjustments that are
made during the year. Therefore, the “premiums” paid by BRIM are advance deposits and BRIM
is not indemnified by the insurance company for any losses. Under this plan, the insurance
company is compensated for its claim-handling services by a fixed fee negotiated on a yearly
basis.

From January 1, 1971 through June 30, 1976, the liability coverage provided by BRIM was

limited to $25,000 per occurrence on general liability, automobile liability, and medical
malpractice claims. From July 1, 1976 through June 30, 1980, the liability coverage provided by
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. -General (continued)

BRIM was limited to $100,000 per occurrence. From July 1, 1982 through June 30, 1985, the
liability coverage provided by BRIM was limited to $6,000,000 per occurrence. Since July 1,
1985, the liability coverage provided by BRIM is limited to $1,000,000 indemnity per
occurrence. In addition, the county boards of education are covered by an excess insurance
policy providing up to $5,000,000 of coverage in excess of the underlying $1,000,000 limit.
These limits only apply to incur indemmnity ¢laim losses. BRTM pays all allocated loss adjustment
expenses (ALAE), which are the costs incurred in the reporting, investigation, adjustment,
defense, and settlement of claims that are attributable to a specific, individual claim.

Prior to July 1, 1990, BRIM retained the first $25,000 of loss per event on property insurance
claims. Losses In excess of $25,000 per event were also retained within an annual aggregate
limit. From July 1, 1990 through June 30, 1991, the exposure retained by BRIM was $1,000,000
per event. From July 1, 1991 through June 30, 1996, the exposure retained by BRIM was
$2,000,000 per event. Since July 1, 1996, the exposure retained by BRIM is $1,000,000 per
event. BRIM has obtained excess coverage, through insurance companies, covering losses in
excess of $1,000,000 up to $200,000,000 per occurrence subject to various sublimits for
particular types of claims as specified in the policy.

In 1985, the coal mine subsidence program was legislatively expanded to include all types of

building structures, and the maximum amount of insurance available was increased from
$50,000 to $75,000 per structure.

In December 2001, the West Virginia Legislature passed House Bill 601, which authorized
BRIM to provide medical malpractice and general liability coverage to private health care
providers {the House Bill 601 Program). On July 1, 2004, all physicians novated to the newly
formed West Virginia Physicians’ Mutual Insurance Company (WVPMIC) BRIM maintained
the hospital and facilities in the House Bill 601 Program that did not novate to WVPMIC.
However, all policies have been terminated as of June 30, 2004, and the program is in runoff

mode only for existing clams and for any claims that may be submitted on any tail policies that
were purchased.

In March 2004, the West Virginia Legislature passed House Bill 4740, creating a Patient Injury
Compensation Fund. The purpose of this fund is to provide fair and reasonable compensation o
claimants in medical malpractice actions for any portion of economic damages awarded that is
uncollectible as a result of previously enacted tort reforms. This fund provides relief to claimants
whose damages were limited because of caps for frauma care or as a result of joint and several
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. General (continued)

liabilities. The capitalization of the fund comes from the State’s tobacco settlement fund. The
activity for this fund is not reflected in BRIMs financial statements. BRIM serves as third-party
administrator for this fund and accordingly, the activity for this fund is reflected in the State’s
financial statements. '

In the normal course of business, BRIM seeks to reduce the loss that may arise from catastrophes
or other events that cause unfavorable operating results by reinsuring levels of tisk in various
areas of exposure with other insurance enterprises or reinsurers. Reinsurance permits recovery of
a portion of losses from reinsurers; however, it does not discharge the primary liability of BRIM
as direct insurer of the risks insured. BRIM does not report reinsured risks as liabilities unless it
is probable that those risks will not be covered by reinsurers.

The funding of the property and liability insurance premiums for the State agencies comes from
direct premium assessments on those agencies. SB3 entities are charged a premium to participate
in the program. Under the mine subsidence line of business, the ceding insurers pay BRIM a
reinsurance premium.

Pursuant to the West Virginia Code, BRIM submits a detailed budgetary schedule of
administrative expenses to the Secretary of the Department of Adminisiration prior to the
beginning of each fiscal year. The fundamental purpose of budgetary control is to plan for the
expected level of operations and to provide management with a tool to control deviation from
such plan. The budgetary schedule is prepared on a modified-cash basis, which is a
comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (GAAP). Expenditures related to the general revenue appropriation amount if any
are monitored by the State’s budgetary review process in total on an unclassified basis. Each
year’s appropriation lapses at year-end. The remaining operations of BRIM are subject to a non-
appropriated budgetary review process.

GAAP defines component units as legally separate organizations for which the €lected officials
of the primary government are financially accountable or other organizations for which the
nature and significance of their relationship with the State’s financial statements would cause
them to be misleading. BRIM has considered whether it has any component units as defined by
GAAP and has determined that no such organizations meet the criteria set forth above.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

As an -enterprise fund, BRIM’s financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with GAAP. Revenues are

recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of the related cash flows.

BRIM distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating, Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with BRIM’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues and expenses of BRIM relate to premium
revenues and claims and administrative expenses. Premium contributions received covering
future contract periods are deferred and recognized over the related -contract period. Net
investment earnings and finance charges are reported as nonoperating revenues.

In September 1993, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement
No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental
Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. As permitted by the statement, BRIM has
elected not to adopt Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and

interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, unless the GASB specifically adopts such FASB
statements or interpretations.

The financial statements of BRIM are intended to present the financial position and the changes
in financial position and cash flows of only that portion of the business-type activities of the
State of West Virginia that is attributable to the transactions of BRIM. They do not purport to,
and do not, present fairly the financial position of the State of West Virginia as of June 30, 2009
and 2008, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in

conformity with GAAP.
Use of Lstimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make

certain estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from management’s estimates.
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Discussipn Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term investments with original maturities of 90 days or less. Cash and
cash equivalents principally consist of interest-earning deposits in certain investment pools
maintained by the West Virginia Board of Treasury Investments (BTI). Such funds are available
to BRIM with overnight notice. Interest income from these investments is prorated to BRIM at
rates specified by the BTT based on the balance of BRIM’s deposits maintained in relation to the
total deposits of all State agencies participating in the pool. The book carrying value of the
amounts on deposit with the BTI, which approximate estimated fair value, was $29,567,000 and
$27,026,000 at June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents are cash and cash equivalents that are to be used for specific
lines of business (i.e., mine subsidence coverage provided to the general public and medical
malpractice and general liability coverage provided to health care providers) based on
testrictions provided in the State Code.

Advance Deposits With Insurance Company and Trustee

Advance deposits with the insurance company consist of monies on deposit that are utilized to
Tund claims and claims adjustment expenses as they are paid by the insurance company.

Beginning in fiscal year 2006, BRIM deposited monies with the Bank -of New York (BNY), as
trustee, to hold as advance deposits in an escrow account for BRIM liability claims with loss
dates occurring after June 30, 2005, The monies held in escrow are invested in specific money
market funds and short-term guaranteed or investment grade fixed income securities that are
identified as “qualified assets” in the escrow agreement. The funds held in escrow, together with
their earnings, will be used to fund the payment of the claims and claims adjustment expenses
related to these liability claims. As escrow agent, BNY periodically iransfers monies from the
escrow account to the insurance company administering these claims in order to reimburse the
insyrance company for payments that they have issued on these claims and c¢laims adjustment
expenses on BRIM’s behalf.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments

BRIM invests in certain WVIMB investment pools. Some of these pools invest in longer-term
securities and are subject to market fluctuation because of changes in interest rates. Investments
are reporied by WVIMB at fair value and are accounted for by BRIM accordingly, with changes
in the fair value included in investment income. Income from these investments is prorated to
BRIM at rates specified by WVIMB based on the balance of BRIM’s deposits maintained in
relation to the total deposits of all State agencies participating in the pool.

Restricted investments are investments that are to be used for specific lines of business (i.e.,
mine subsidence coverage provided to the general public and medical malpractice and general

liability coverage provided to health care providers) based on restrictions provided in the State
Code.

‘Compensated Absences

Employees fully vest in all earned but unused :annual leave, and BRIM accrues for obligations
that may arise in connection with compensated absences for vacation at the current rate of
employee pay. In accordance with State personnel policies, employees vest in any remaining
unused sick leave only upon retirement, at which time any unused compensated absence time can
be converted into employer-paid premiums for postemployment health care coverage through the
West Virginia Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund (RHBT) or be converted into a greater

retirement benefit under the State of West Virginia Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS).

Unpaid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expense

Utilizing an external actuary, management establishes the unpaid claims and claims adjustment

expense liability based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims, including future claims

adjustment expenses, that have been reporied but not settled and of claims that have been

incurred but not reported (IBNR). Such estimates are based on industry statistical loss reserve

information as well as BRIM historical data, including case-basis estimates of losses reported,

actuarial projections of loss development of IBNR claims, and estimates of expenses for

investigation and adjustment of all incurred and unadjusted losses (and estimates of expected .
salvage and subrogation receipts are deducted from the estimated liability). The length of time

for which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. In the event

a reinsurer is unable financially to satisfy an obligation, BRIM is responsible for such liability.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Ssummary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Management believes the estimate for unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense is a
reasonable best estimate of BRIM’s ultimate losses and loss adjustment expenses to be incurred
to discharge BRIM’s obligations. However, because actual claims costs depend on such complex
factors as actual outcomes versus industry statistical information utilized in the estimation
process, inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used in
computing estimates of claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact amount,
particularly for coverages such as general liability and medical malpractice. For instance,
medical malpractice claims have a long payout period and claims may not be known for several
years. The exposures written under this program have not yet developed sufficient experience to
be evaluaied based on their own merit. Accordingly, BRIM’s actual incurred losses and loss
adjustment expenses may vary significantly from the estimated amounts reflected in BRIM’s
financial statements. Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial
and statistical techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim
frequency, and other economic and social factors; such adjustments are included in current
operations. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims costs is implicit
in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflect past
inflation and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. -
The claims and claims adjustment expense category on the statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net assets includes estimated incurred claim costs, allocated loss adjustment expenses,
and unallocated claims adjustment expenses.

Premium deficiency is defined as the amount by which expected claims costs (including IBNR
claims), and all expected claims adjustment expenses exceed related unearned premiums. BRIM
has determined that a premium deficiency does not exist. In making this determination,
management has taken into consideration anticipated investment income, using an assumed 4%
discount rate.

Receivables and Premium Income

Receivables represent the amount outstanding for premiums from the insured covered under
BRIM’s insurance program. Management maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to
reserve for estimated losses based on the length of time the amount has been past due.

Unearned Premiums

Unearned premiums included premium revenues collected for future periods. These revenues
will be recognized in the operating periods in which they are earned.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Restricted Net Assets

Restricted net assets are net assets that are to be used for the House Bill 601 Program and mine
subsidence coverage provided to the general public based on restrictions provided in the State
Code. When an expense is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available, BRIM first utilizes restricted net assets for such purpose.

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures

BRIM is mandated by statute to have their cash and investments managed by the WVIMB and
BTI. However, BRIM currently does not have specific policies addressing limitations on specific
risk types, such as credit risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk,

or foreign currency risk.

Cash Equivalents

WV Money Market Pool (formerly the Cash Liguidity Pool)

The BTI limits the exposure to credit tisk in the WV Money Market Pool by requiring all
corporate bonds to be rated AA- by Standard & Poor’s (or its equivalent) or higher. Commercial

paper must be rated A-1 by Standard & Poor’s and P1 by Moody’s. Additionally, the pool must
have at least 15% of its assets in U.S. Treasury issues.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (continued)

The following table provides information on the weighted average credit ratings of the cash
liguidity pool’s investments (in thousands):

June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008
Carrying  Percent of Carrying  Percent of
Security Type Moody’s S&P Value Pool Assets Moodys S&P Value Pool Assets
Commereial paper P1 A1 % 592479 23.05% Pl A-1 § 658879 27.94%
Corporate bonds and notes Aaa  AAA 10,000 0.39 Aaa AAA 40,000 1.70
Aa3 AA 15,503 0.60 Aal AA 20,000 0.85
Aa2 AA 10,000 0.39 Aa2 A 27,000 1.14
Aal AA 7,000 0.27 Aal AA 71,000 3.01
Al AA 19,309 0.75 - - - -
Al A 12,000 047 - - - -
73,812 2.87 158,000 6.70
U.S. agency bonds Aaa  AAA 204,019 11.44 Aaa AAA 254,019 10.77
U.S. Treasury bills Aza AAA 483,714 18.82 Aaa AAA 406,426 17.23
Negotiable certificates of deposit  P1 Al 128,402 5.00 P1 A-1 147,001 6.23
1.8, agency discount notes P1 A-1 635,602 24.73 P1 A-1 212,924 9.03
Money market funds Aaa  AAA 150,223 5.84 Aag AAA 150,058 6.36
Repurchase agreements
U.S. Treasury notes Aaa AAA 165,110 6.43 Aaa AAA 62,265 2.64
1.8, agency notes Aaa  AAA 46,900 1.82 Aaa AAA. 308,898 13.10
212,010 8.25 371,163 15.74
$ 2,570,261  160.00% $ 2,358470 100.00%

Concentration of Credit Risk

West Virginia statutes prohibit the WV Money Market Pool from investing more than 5% of its
assets in securities issued by a single private corporation or association. At June 30, 2009 and
2008, the pool did not have investments in any one private corporation or association that
represented more than 5% of assets.

Custodial Credit Risk

At June 30, 2009 and 2008, the WV Money Market Pool held no securities that wete subject to
custodial credit risk. Repurchase agreements are collateralized at 102% and the collateral is held
in the name of the BTI. Securities lending collateral is invested in the lending agent’s money
market fund in BTI’s name.,
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The overall weighted average maturity (WAM) of the investments of the WV Money Market
Pool cannot exceed 60 days. Maximum maturity of individual securities cannot exceed 397 days
from date of purchase. The following table provides the WAM for the various asset types in the
WYV Money Market Pool (carrying values - in thousands):

June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008
' WAM WAM

Investment Type Carrying Value Days Carrying Value  Days
Repurchase agreements $ 212,010 1 $ 371,163 1
U.S. Treasury bills 483,714 69 406,426 31
Commercial paper 592,479 32 658,879 29
Certificates of deposit 128,402 56 147,001 05
U.S. agency discount notes 635,602 57 212,924 84
‘Corporate notes 73,812 38 158,000 21
U.S. agency bonds/notes 294,019 70 254,019 i1
Money market funds 150,223 1 150,058 1
Total rated investments $ 2,570,261 . 47 $ 2,358,470 40

BRIM’s amount invested in the WV Money Market Pool of $34,943,000, included in cash and

cash equivalents, at June 30, 2009, and $32,339,000 at June 30, 2008, represents approximately
1.4%, respectively, of total investments in this pool.

Foreign Currency Risk

None of the WV Money Market Pool holds interest in foreign currency or interests valued in
foreign currency.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (continued)
Advanced Deposits

Insurance Company and Trustee

Beginning in fiscal year 2006, BRIM deposited monies with the Bank of New York (BNY), as
trustee, to hold as advance deposits in an escrow account for BRIM liability claims with loss
dates occurring after June 30, 2005. The monies held in escrow are invested in specific money
market funds and short-term guaranteed or investment grade fixed income securities that are
identified as “qualified assets” in the escrow agreement.

The following table provides information on the weighted average credit ratings of the cash
liquidity pool’s investments (in thousands): '

June 30, 2009
Carrying Percent of
Security Type Moody’s S&P Value Pool Assets
U.S. Treasury bonds )
Agency-backed corporate
U.S. Agency bonds '
Corporate bonds
Money market funds
$

Concentration of Credit Risk

Custodial Credit Risk
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (continued)
Interest Rate Risk

The following table provides the WAM for the various asset types in the
(carrying values - in thousands):

June 30, 2609
Investment Type Carrying Value WAM Days

Repurchase agreements . $
U.8. Treasury bonds

Agency-backed corporate

Corporate bonds

U.S. agency bonds/notes

Money market funds

Total rated investments $

Foreign Currency Risk

None of the advanced deposits include holds interest in foreign currency or interests valued in
foreign currency. :

Investments
Board of Risk and Insurance Management Fund

This fund was specifically designed for BRIM by WVIMB based on BRIM’s unique cash flow
needs. BRIM is the only State agency participating in this fund and owns 100% of the total
assets in the fund. The Fund invests, along with other agencies, in the following WVIMB
investment pools: Domestic Large Cap Equity pool, Domestic Non-Large Cap Equity pool,
International Nonqualified Equity pool, Intemational Equity pool, Total Return Fixed Income
pool, Core Fixed Income pool, Short-term Fixed Income pool and the Hedge Fund.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (continued)
Investment Objectives

This fund’s investment objective is to achieve a total rate of return of at least 4.9% per anrmum,
net of fees. ' '

Asset Allocation

Based upon the WVIMB’s determination of the appropriate risk tolerance for the fund, the
WYVIMB has adopted the following broad asset allocation guidelines for the assets managed for
the Board of Risk and Insurance Management Fund. (Policy targets have been established on a
market value basis.)

Asset Class Policy Target
Domestic large cap equity 10%
International equity 10
Total equity : 20
Domestic fixed income 60
Hedge fand 20

Cash and cash equivalents 0
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16!20_09

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements {(continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (continued)

Asset Value

Investments at cost and as reported at fair value (actual asset allocation) are summarized as
follows at June 30 (in thousands):

2009 2008

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Domestic large cap equity $ 10,023 § 8892 § 9662 § 10,725
Domestic non-large cap equity 2,936 - 1,591 2,695 1,792
International equity 5,815 7503 3,260 6,473
International nonqualified 3,424 3,797 1,298 1,970
Total return fixed income 41,755 44,572 51,619 53,775
Fixed income cash liquidity pool - - 30,440 34,585
Core fixed income 17,888 18,450 - -
Hedge fund 21,892 20,655 - -
Other 1 1 7 3

$ 103,734  § 105461 § 98981 § 109,325

Investment income 1s comprised of the following for the years ended June 30 (in thousands).

2009 2008
Investment income:
Interest income including realized gains/losses on sale of
securities _ $ 12,680 $ 14,851
Unrealized (loss) gain on investments (3,377 (4,339)
Total investment income ‘ $ 75312 § 10,512

WVIMB calculates total rates of return using the time-weighted rate of return methodology. The
time-weighted method determines the rate of return exclusive of the effects of participant
contributions or withdrawals.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (continned)
Asset Class Risk Disclosures

Domestic Large Cap Pool

This pool holds equity securities of U.S. companies and money market funds with the highest
credit rating. At June 30, 2009 and 2008, this pool did not hold securities of any one issuer in
excess of 5% of the value of the pool in accordance with West Virginia statutes. BRIM’s amount
invested in the large cap domestic pool of $8,892,000 and $10,725,000 at June 30, 2009 and
2008, respectively, represents approximately 0.5% and 0.6% of total investments in this pool.

Domestic Non-Larse-Can Pool

This pool holds equity securities of U.S. companies and money market funds with the highest
credit rating. At June 30, 2009 and 2008, this pool did not hold securities of any one issuer in
excess of 5% of the value of the pool in accordance with West Virginia statutes, BRIM’s amount
invested in the non-large cap domestic pool of $1,591,000 and $1,792,000 at June 30, 2009 and
2008, respectively, represents approximately 0.5% and 0.3% of total investments in this pool.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (continued}
International Equity Pool
This pool has both equity securities and cash that are denominated in foreign currencies and are

exposed to foreign currency risks. The amounts (in U.S. dollars) of the securities and cash
denominated in foreign currencies are as follows:

June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008
Equity Equity

‘Currency Securities Cash Total Securities _ Cash Total
Australian doflar $ 45295313 § 187,926 § 45483,239 % 56,458,401 $ 1,147,727 § 57,606,128
Brazil cruzeiros real 76,243,266 1,318,077 77,561,343 78,980,550 377,270 79,357,820
British pound 175,318,942 1,551,606 176,870,608 169,390,722 2,625,082 172,015,804
Canadian dollar -43,761,183 109,535 43,870,718 87,262,255 1,994,596 89,256,851
Czech Koruna 7,234,731 135 7,234,866 1,519,907 - 1,519,907
Danish krone 10,935,831 33,982 10,969,813 5,533,777 09,697 5,633,474
Euro 266,768,796 6,226,567 ‘272,995,363 338,300,401 1,682,586 339,982,987
Hong Kong doliar 115,552,388 304,416 115,856,804 91,548,567 2,012,170 93,560,737
Hungarian forint 11,566,434 781 11,567,215 18,046,560 182,258 18,228,818
Indian rupee — - - 4,653,903 - 4,653,903
Indonesian rupiah 2,474,340 - 2,474,340 10,703,375 - 10,703,375
Israeli shekel 13,692,033 81 13,692,114 11,519,751 54,371 11,574,122
Japanese yen 214,493,385 2,000,670 216,494,055 190,163,553 4,773,663 194,937,258
Malaysian ringgit 8,765,540 25,190 8,790,730 10,536,586 1,212.918 11,749,504
‘Mexican new peso 20,204,832 54,161 20,258,993 23,344,620 406,186 23,750,806
New Taiwan dollar 44,242,681 29,702 44,272,383 73,448 408 363,885 73,812,293
New Zealand dollar 1,750,119 404,401 2,154,520 2,281,221 35,031 2,316,251
Norwegian krone 9,140,371 127,263 9,267,635 217,781,461 - (7077,346) 27,074,115
Pakistani Rupee 1,371,114 - 1,371,114 2,159,612 - 2,159,612
Philippine peso 4,738,420 - 4,738,490 2,637,913 - 2,637,913
Polish Zloty 4,768,257 39 4,768,296 3,909,848 230,158 4,140,006
Singapore dollar 31,364,188 238,905 31,603,093 40,965,990 288,581 41,254,571
South African rand 20,492,344 55,109 20,547,453 39,201,393 43,223 39,244,616
South Korean won 75,285,153 527,742 75,812,805 120,845,929 11,380 120,857,309
Swedish krona 19,034,030 75,507 19,109,537 26,805,371 406,838 27,212,209
Swiss franc 58,766,408 928,122 59,694,530 67,886,106 1,186,931 69,073,037
Thailand baht - 2,202 2,202 11,858,415 2,244 11,860,659
Turkish Lira 30,584,716 41,029 30,626,745 23,039,547 — 23,039,547
Total $ 1,313,844,886  § 14,244,208  $1,328,089,094 § 1,540,784,184 § 18,429449 §1,559,213,635

This table excludes securities held by the pool that are denominated in U.S. dollars. The market
value of these U.S. dollar denominated securities is $181,239,129 and $131,021,000 at June 30,
2009 and 2008, respectively. BRIM’s amount invested in the international equity pool of
$7,503,000 and $6,473,000 at June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, represents approximately
0.5% and 0.4% of total investments in this pool.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (continued)
International Nongqualified Pool

This pool helds an institutional mutual fund that invests in equities denominated in foreign
currencies. The value of this investment at June 30, 2009 and 2008, was $101,246,000 and
$57,888,000, respectively. This investment, although denominated in U.S. dollars, is exposed to
foreign currency risk. BRIM’s amount invested in the international nonqualified pool of
$3,797,000 and $1,970,000 at June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, represents approximately
3.8% and 3.4% of total investments in thls pool.

Total Return Fixed Income Pool
Credit Risk

WVIMB limits the exposure to credit risk in the Total Return Fixed Income pool by maintaining
at least an average rating of investment grade as defined by the Nationally Recognized Statistical
Rating Organizations. The following table provides the weighted average credit ratings of the
asset types in the fixed income pool:

June 30, 2009 June 30, 2008
Pereent Percent

Security Type - Moody’s  S&P Fair Value of Assets Moody’s S&P Fair Value  -of Assets
Corporaie bonds and

notes Baa BBB % 466,052,257 17.7% Baa BBB § 609,696,835 22.0%
U.S. Treasury bonds

and notes Aaa AAA 1,678,244 0.1 Aaa AAA 76,318,725 2.7
U.S. Treasury inflation

protection bonds Aaa AAA 74,631,563 2.8 - - - -
Corporate asset-backed

securities Aa AA 622,399 0.0 Asaa AAA 137,308,217 5.0
Corporate collateralized

mortgage obligations Baa AA 91,081,767 35 - - - -
Corporate preferred

securities C C 965,455 0.0 - - - -
Agency mortgage-

backed securities Aaa AAA 531,284,382 20.2 Aaa AAA 234,846,187 8.5
Agency bonds - - - — Aaa AAA 5,282,195 0.2
Agency discount notes - - — — P1 A-1 17,537,793 0.6
Agency notes Aa AA 3,866,877 0.1 - - - -
Agency collateralized

mortgage obligations Aaa AAA 465,532 0.0 - - - -
Money market funds Aaa AAA 472,292,326 17.9 Aaa AAA 135,041,247 4.9
Total rated invesiments $ 1,642.940,802 62.3% $1,216,031,199 43.9%
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (continued)

At June 30, 2009, unrated securities include commingled investment pools of $987,106,348
swaps, options and swaptions valued at $(10,205,602), future contracts valued at $6,356,507,
foreign currency contracts valued at $(610,756) and cash of $16,705,447 pledged to brokers as
collateral. These unrated securities represent 37.7% of the fair value of the pool’s investments.
For June 30, 2008, unrated securities include commingled investment pools of $1,549,051,012

and an interest rate swap valued at $(4,248,293) and cash of $11,984,018 pledged to brokers as
collateral. ,

Concentration of Credit Risk

West Virginia statutes prohibit the Total Return Fixed Income pool from investing more than 5%
of its assets in securities issued by a single private corporation or association. At June 30, 2009
and 2008, the Fixed Income pool did not have investments in any one private corporation or
association that represented more than 5% of assets.

Custodial Credit Risk

At June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Total Return Fixed Income pool held no securities that were
subject 1o custodial credit risk. Repurchase agreements are collateralized at 102% and the
collateral is held in the name of the WVIMB. Investments in commingled funds are held in the
name of the WVIMB. All remaining securities are held by the WVIMB’s custodian in the name

of the WVIMB. Securities lending collateral is invested in the lending agent’s money market
fund.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (continned)
Interest Rate Risk

WVIMB monitors interest rate risk of the Total Return Fixed Income pool by assessing the
modified duration of the investments in the pool. The following table provides the welghted
average modified duration for the various asset types in the fixed income pools:

June 360, 2009 June 30, 2008

Modified Modified

Duration Duration
Investment Type Fair Valune {years) Fair Value (years)
Commingled investment pools 8 987,105,348 2.5 §  1,549,051,012 33
Corporate notes and bonds 466,052,257 5.7 609,696,835 6.2
L. 3. Treasury notes and bonds 1,678,244 16.4 76,318,725 7.9
U.S. Treasury inflation protection bonds 74,631,563 131 - -
Corporate asset-backed securities 622,399 25 137,308,217 7.0
Corporate collateralized mortgage obligations 91,081,767 51 - - -
Agency mortgage-backed securities 531,284,382 9.6 234,846,187 10.8
Agency bonds 3,866,877 2.8 5,282,195 8.5
Agency discount notes - - 17,537,793 0.5
Agency colateralized mortgage obligations 465,532 1.0 - -
Money market fund 472,292,326 0.0 135,041,247 0.0
Total asseis $  2,629,080,695 54 $ 2,765,082,211 5.4

The Total Return Fixed Income pool invests in commercial and residential mortgage-backed,
asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations, The cash flows from these
securities are based on the payment of the underlying collateral. The modified duration and yield
to maturity of these securities are dependent on estimated prepayment assumptions that consider
historical experience, market conditions, and other criteria. Actual prepayments may vary with
changes in interest rates. Rising interest rates often result in a slower rate of prepayments while
declining rates tend to lead to faster prepayments. As a result, the fair values of these securifies
are highly sensitive to interest rate changes. At June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Total Return Fixed
Income pool held $623,449,368 and $372,154,404, respectively, of these securities. This
represents approximately 24% and 13% of the value of the fixed income pools.

BRIM’s amount invested in the Total Return Fixed Income pool of $44,572,000 and

$53,775,000 at June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, represents approximately 1.7% and 1.9%
of total investments in this pool.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (continued)

Foreign Currency Risk

None of the securities held by the Total Return Fixed Income pool are exposed to foreign
currency risk. However, the pool dees have foreign exchange forward contracts. Additionally,
the pool has indirect exposure to foreign currency risk through its ownership interest in certain of
the commingled investment pools. Approximately $176,856,000, or 18%, of the commingled
investment pools hold substantially all of their investments in foreign currencies. West Virginia
statute limits the amount of international securities to no more than 30% of the total assets
managed by the WVIMB. At June 30, 2009, the WVIMB was in:compliance with this limitation.

Core Fixed Income Pool

‘WVIMB Iimits the exposure to credit risk in the Core Fixed Income pool by maintaining as least
an average tating of investment grade as defined by the Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating

Organizations. The following table provides the weighted average credit ratings of the asset
types in the core fixed income pool.

June 30,2009
Percent

Security Type Moody’s S&P Fair Value  of Assets
Corporate bonds and notes A A § 41,035802 10.1%
U.S. Treasury bonds and notes Aaa AAA 69,633,643 172
Corporate asset-backed securities Aaa  AAA 2,191,003 - 0.5
Corporate collateralized mortgage obligations Baa AA 25,367,921 6.3
Agency mortgage-backed securities Aaa  AAA 117,952,526 29.1
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations Aaa AAA 134,378,380 33.1
Money market funds Aaa AAA 15,209,068 0.5
Total rated investments $ 405,768,343 100.00

Concentration of Credit Risk

West Virginia statutes prohibit the Total Return Fixed Income pool from investing more than 5%
of its assets in securities issued by a single private corporation or association. At June 30, 2009,

the Core Fixed Income pool did not have investments in any one private corporation or
association that represented more than 5% of assets.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Deposit -and Investment Risk Disclosures (continued)
Custodial Credit Risk

At June 30, 2009, the Core Fixed Income pool held no securities that were subject to custodial
credit risk. All remaining securities are held by the WVIMB’s custodian in the name of the
WVIMB.

Interest Rate Risk
WVIMB monitors interest rate risk of the Core Fixed Income pool by assessing the modified

duration of the investments in the pool. The following table provides the weighted average
modified duration for the various asset types in the core fixed income pools:

June 30, 2009
Modified
Duration
Investment Type Fair Value (years)

Corporate notes and bonds ' $ 41,035,802 5.0
U.S. Treasury notes and bonds 69,633,643 6.4
Corporate asset-backed securities 2,191,003 1.9
Corporate collateralized mortgage obligations 25,367,921 4.1
Agency mortgage-backed securities 117,952,526 8.9
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations 134,378,380 3.4
Money market fund 15,209,068 0.0
Total assets $ 405,768,343 5.4

The Core Fixed Income pool invests in commercial and residential mortgage-backed securities,
asset-backed securities, and collateralized mortgage obligations. The cash flows from these
securities are based on the payment of the underlying collateral. The modified duration and yield
to maturity of these securities are dependent on estimated prepayment assumptions that consider
historical experience, market conditions, and other criteria. Actual prepayments may vary with
changes in interest rates. Rising interest rates often result in a slower rate of prepayments while
declining rates tend fo lead to faster prepayments. As a result, the fair values of these securities
are highly sensitive to interest rate changes. At June 30, 2009, the Core Fixed Income pool held
$279,883,830 of these securities. This represents approximately 69% of the value of the fixed
income pools.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Tnsurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures {continued)

BRIM’s amount invested in the Core Fixed Income pool of $18,450,000 at June 30, 2009,
_represents approximately 5% of total investments in this pool.

Foreign Currency Risk

None of the securities held by the Core Fixed Income poo! are exposed to foreign currency risk.

Hedge Fund

The Hedge Fund holds shares in various commingled institutional funds and shares of a money
market fund with the highest credit rating. The commingled institutional funds are not rated by
any of the nationally recognized statistical rating agencies and thus any credit risk cannot be
accurately reported. The pool is not exposed to interest rate risk, custodial credit risk, or
concentration of credit risk. The pool is indirectly exposed to foreign currency risk as certain of
the funds have investments denominated in foreign currencies. At June 30, 2009, approximately
$456,938,000 or 41%, of the market value of the funds were held in foreign currencies. BRIM’s

amount invested in the Hedge Fund of $20,655,000 at June 30, 2009, represents approximately
1.9% total investments in this pool. -

Fixed Nonqualified Income Pool

During the fiscal year the WVIMB liquidated the Fixed Nonqualified Income pool. The pool
held positions of institutional mutual funds with a combined value of $474,561,035 at June 30,
2008, that invested in mortgage-backed securities and corporate bonds. The mutual funds are
unrated. The weighted average modified duration of the underlying securities was 5.6 years at

June 30, 2008. This pool is not exposed to custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, or
foreign currency risk.

BRIM’s amount invested in the Fixed Income Nonqualified pool of $34,585,000 at June 30,
2008, represents approximately 7.3% of total investments in this pool.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4, Unpaid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expense Liability

BRIM establishes an estimated liability for both reported and unreported insured events, which
includes estimates of both future payments of losses and related claims adjustment expenses. The
following represents changes in the estimated liability for the fiscal and policy years ended
June 30:

2009 2008
(In Thousands)
Unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability
at beginning of year _ $ 162,228 § 159,564
Incurred claims and claims adjustment expense:
Provision for insured events of the current year 55,804 57,246
Decrease in provision for insured events of prior '
years : 19,290 14,264
Total incurred claims and claims adjustment expense 36,604 42,982
Payments:
Claims and claims adjustment expense attributable to
insured events of the current year 9,753 8,352
Claims and claims adjustment expense attributable to
insured events of prior years 36,340 31,966
Total payments 46,099 40,318
Total unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense
liability at end of year $ 152,733  § 162,228

If the unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability were discounted using a 4%
discount factor for 2009 and 2008 to take into consideration the time value of money, the result
would be a decrease in the liability and an increase in net assets of approximately $13,861,000
and $15,511,000 for fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively. The overall unpaid claim liability
number includes a provision for allocated and unallocated claims adjustment expense.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Employee Benefit Plans

Pension Benefits

All full-time BRIM employees are eligible to participate in PERS, a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer public employee retirement system. Employees who retire at or after age 60 with 5 or
more years of contributory service or who retire at or after age 55 and have completed 25 years
of credited service are eligible for retirement benefits as established by State statute. Retirement
benefits are payable monthly for life, in the form of a straight-line annuity equal to 2% of the
employee’s final average salary of the past three years, multiplied by the number of years of the
employee’s credited service at the time of retirement. PERS also provides deferred retirement,

early retirement, and death and disability benefits and issues an annual report which can be
obtained by contacting PERS.

Covered employees are required to coniribute 4.5% of their salary to PERS. BRIM is required to
contribute 10.5% of covered employees’ salaries to PERS. The required employee and employer
contribution percentages are determined by actuarial advisement within ranges set by statute. As
noted below, BRIM contributed the proper, required amounts. BRIM and employee
contribufions for the three years ended June 30 are as follows:

2009 2008 2007
BRIM contributions (10.5%) $ 103,177 $ 103,252 §$ 100,981
Employee contributions (4.5%) 44,219 44,250 43,277
Total contributions $ 147,396 § 147502 § 144258

The Consolidated Public Retirement Board (CPRB) administers PERS under the direction of the
Governor, State Auditor, State Treasurer, Secretary of the Department of Administration, and ten
members appointed by the Governor. CPRB prépares separately issued financial statements
covering the retirement systems, which can be obtained from the Consolidated Public Retirement
Board, 4101 MacCorkle Avenue, South East, Charleston, West Virginia 25304.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

5. Employee Benefit Plans {(continued)
Other Postemployment Benefits

BRIM participates in a cost-sharing multiemployer defined benefit other postemployment benefit
plan that covers the retirees of State agencies, colleges and universities, county boards of
education, and other government entities as set forth in the West Virginia -Code. Financial
activities of the OPEB plan are accounted for in the RHBT. The plan provides the following
retiree group insurance coverage to participants: medical and prescription drug coverage through
a self-insured preferred provider benefit (PPB) plan and through external managed care
organizations (MCOs), basic group life, accidental death, and prescription drug coverage for
retired employees of the State and various related State and non-State agencies and their
dependents. Details regarding this plan and a copy of the RHBT financial report can be obtained
by contacting Public Employees Insurance Agency, 601 57™ Street, SE, Suite 2, Charleston West
Virginia 25304,

Upon retirement, an employee may apply unused sick leave and/or annual leave to reduce their
future insurance premiums paid to RHBT. Substantially all employees hired prior to July 1,
2001, may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working
for BRIM. According to West Virginia State Code, employees hired prior to June 30, 1988, can
receive health care credit against 100% of their health care coverage. Employees hired between
June 30, 1988 and June 30, 2001, can receive health care credit against 50% of their health care
cost. Employees hired July 1, 2001, or later, may not convert sick leave into a health care
benefit.

Beginning July 1, 2008, BRIM adopted GASB Statement No, 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Posiemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB 45) which
provides guidance on all aspects of other postemployment benefit reporting by employers, This
Statement establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of other
postemployment benefit (OPEB) (including health care and life insurance) expense/expenditures
~and related Habilities (assets), note disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary
information (RSI) in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers. The GASB
statement is based on the premise that the “costs” of employee services should be reported
during the periods when the services are rendered. For “employer” OPEB reporting, the State
and BRIM report “expense” on an accrual basis in the amount of the “annual required
contribution” and a “liability” for the amount of the “annual required contribution® that was not
actually paid.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

Historically, BRIM recorded compensated absences under the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, and recorded a lability for the conversion of
sick leave inte OPEB health care benefits, which was included as part of the compensated
absences liability. Under GASB 45, the conversion -of sick leave info OPEB health care benefits
is now required to be accounted for as part of the OPEB obligation. In conjunction with the
adoption of GASB 45, which was adopted prospectively, BRIM adjusted the net asset balance as
of July 1, 2008, to account for the effect of this change in accounting principle by reducing the
OPEB portion of the compensated absences liability recorded under the old methodology to zero.

(I Thousands)
Net assets balance as reported June 30, 2008 $ 97,547
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for other :
postemployment benefits 148
Net asset balance as adjusted July 1, 2008 § 97,695

Legislation requires the REIBT to determine through an actuarial study, the Annual Required
Contribution (ARC) which shall be sufficient to maintain the RHBT in an actuarially sound
manner. The ARC 1s allocated to respective cost-sharing employers including BRIM who are
required by law to fund at least the minimum annual premium component of the ARC. Revenues
collected by RHBT shall be used to fund current OPEB health care claims and administrative
expenses with residual funds held in trust for future OPEB costs. Based on the actuarial study
completed, the annual required contribution rates were determined for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009. BRIM’s OPEB expense for fiscal years 2009 and 2008 were approximately
$91,000 and $114,000, respectively of which approximately $53,000 and $35,000 remained
unpaid and recorded in accrued expenses and other liabilities in the statements of net assets.
BRIM’s OPEB contribution for fiscal year 2009 and 2008 was approximately $ and
$ at June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The State on BRIM’s behalf paid $30,000
towards the ARC in fiscal year 2008. BRIM’s policy is to fund at least the minimum annual
premier component of the ARC. Prior to the adoption of GASB 435, the benefit was funded on a
pay-as-you-go basis. There are currently 23 employees eligible to receive such benefits.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Lease Arrangement

In September 2006, the State renewed the lease arrangement on behalf of BRIM for office space
occupied by BRIM with a monthly lease payment of $9,876 and a term beginning on February 1,
2007, .and ending on January 31, 2012. On July 1, 2006, BRIM entered info a vehicle Iease
arrangement with the Department of Administration, Purchasing Division with a monthly lease
payment of $1,000. The lease includes two Jeep Liberty vehicles for a term of five years
beginning on July 1, 2006 and ending on June 30, 2011.

Operating lease expense approximated $131,000 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008,
relating to these arrangements. Future minimum lease payments under these operating lease
arrangements are as follows for years ending June 30:

2010 ' : $131,000
2011 $131,000
2012 ' $69,000

7. Transactions With Pr'illnar,y ‘Government and ‘Component Units

Premium revenues derived from billings to State entities funded with special revenue funds and
component units of the primary government approximated $31,596, OOO and $36,258,000 for the
years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

BRIM is required by Senate Bill Number 1002 toremit amounts equal to the gross premium tax
attributable to premiums collected by BRIM. These amounts are to be placed in a separate
account known as “the Premium Tax Savings Fund” (the Fund) maintained by the State
Treasurer. Amounts deposited by BRIM into the Fund approximated $2,573,000 and $2,777,000
for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Fund is not included in BRIM’s
financial statements, but is included in the general fund of the State.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

8. Premium Tax Surcharge Contingency

Historically, BRIM paid premium tax surcharges to insurance carriers. During 2007, the West
Virginia Insurance Commissioner provided information to management that BRIM may be
exempt from paying these premium tax surcharges and may be able to seek refunds of amounts
previously paid to carriers and avoid paying such surcharges in the future.

Management successfully recovered $6,288,000, including estimated interest, in 2009 from one
carrier and anticipates recovering an additional $244,000, including estimated interest, from two
other carriers

9. Reinsurance

BRIM has entered into two reinsurance agreements for excess coverage with unrelated insurance
companies wherein the company assumes the liability over BRIM’s limit for a ceded premium.
BRIM obtains an excess policy from the commercial market which gives boards of education a
Tiability limit of up to $5,000,000 in excess of BRIM’s $1,000,000 self-insured limit. BRIM also
purchases an excess policy on all State and SB3 insured property over and above BRIM’s
$1,000,000 self-insured limit. These reinsurance agreements have been accounted for as a
transfer of risk in the accompanying financial statements. However, BRIM is not relieved of its
primary obligation to the insureds in the reinsurance transaction. BRIM did not have any
reinsurance recoveries at June 30, 2009. At June 30, 2008, BRIM recorded rteinsurance
recoverables from these reinsurers totaling $95,000.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

10. Risk Management

BRIM is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to and illnesses of employees; medical liabilities; and
natural disasters. '

Health insurance coverage for BRIM’s employees is obtained through its participation in health
insurance coverage offered by the West Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency (PEIA).
PEIA provides the following basic employee benefit coverage to all participants: hospital,
surgical, group major medical, basic group life, accidentdl death, and prescription drug coverage
for active and retired employees of the State and various related State and non-State agencies.
BRIM had coverage through December 31, 2005, for job-related injuries through its participation
in the West Virginia Workers” :‘Compensation Fund, a public entity risk pool. Effective January
1, 2006, coverage was moved to Brickstreet Insurance as required by Senate Bill 1004.
Furthermore, BRIM is a participant in the self<insured public entity risk pool it administers.
Coverage is in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence for general liability and property
damage. :

Thete have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year.

Additionally, the amount of settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage in the past three
years.
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Ten-Year Claims Development Information (Unaudited)

The table below illusirates how BRIM's eamed revenues (net of reinsurance) and investment income compare to related costs of loss (net of loss assumed by reinsurers) and othe
expenses assumed by BRIM as of the end of each of the last ten years. The rows of the table are defined as follows: {(} This [ine shows the total of each fiscal year's premium
revenues and investment revenues, (2) This line shows each fiscal year's other aperating costs of BRIM including overhead and unaliocated claims expense not allocabe it
individual claims. (3) This line shows BRIMs incurred claims and claims adjustment expense (botl paid and acerued) as originally renorted at the end of the first year in whicl th
event that triggered coverage under the coniract occurred (called policy year). {4) This section of rows shows the cumulative amounts paid as of the end of successive years for
each policy year. (5} This line shows the latest reestimated amount of losses assumed by reinsurers for each year, (6) This section of rows shows how each policy year’s incurred
claims increased or decreased as of fhe end of successive years. This annual rezstimation resulls from new information received on known claims, reevaluation of existin
information on known claims, as well as emergence of rew claims ot previously known. (7) This line compares the fatest reestimated incurred claiins amount to the amour
originally established (line 3) and shows whether this latest estimate of clains cost is greater or less than originally thought. As data for individual policy years mature, th
correlation between ariginal estimates and reestimated amounts is commenly used to evaluate the-accuracy of incarred claims currently recognized in less mature policy years. Th
columns of the table show data for successive policy years.

Fisea! and Palicy Year Ended June 30 . :
2000 204 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

{In Thousands)
13 Premiums and investment revenues
Earned $ 48437 3 53828 5 56992 § 81450 $ 110279 § 95336 3 89.690 § 98270 $ 83408 § 69,739
Ceded : 1,553 1,629 1.866 3,126 3,801 3,912 4,145 6,151 6.394 5.944
Net earned 46,884 52,199 55,126 78,324 106,478 bl,424 85,545 92,119 77,104 63,795
2) Unallocated expenses, including administrative
fees paid to third-party claims administrators 8,590 6,471 7,315 11,168 14,332 8,301 8.894 8,536 8,045 7,840
3) Estimated incurred claims-and claitns
adjustment expense,.end of policy year: : .
Incurred 47,920 45.867 60,515 83,642 94,279 65,674 58,491 59,678 59,246 56,194
Ceded . 364 360 783 577 597 5 172 3.587 2.000 M0
Net incurred 47,556 46,507 59,732 83,065 93,682 65,669 58,319 56,081 57,246 55,894
4} Paid {cumulative) claims and clains
adjusiment expense as of:
End of policy yea 10,068 8,547 11,077 11,746 13,799 9,134 10,097 12418 8,152 ‘9,753
Onevear later 16,359 15,168 14,834 25,194 55414 16,901 17,547 16,942 18,097
Twe years Iater 24,900 20,337 24,366 50,202 61,987 25,283 23,391 24,345
Three years later 37,110 28,352 35,464 56,354 12,727 33,505 31,901
Four years later 41,278 35,596 43,356 539,777 78,617 37,904
Five years later . 47,658 37,884 46,518 62,406 ‘81,861
Six years later 50,474 39,585 49,116 63,191
Seven years later 58,290 40,344 51,188
Eight years later 54,728 40,789 ’
Nine years later 53,138
5) Reestimated ceded claims and expenses 364 360 783 577 5397 5 172 - - -
6) Reestimated net incurred claims and allocated
claims adjusiment expense: .
End of policy year 47,556 46,507 59,732 83,065 93,682 65,669 58,319 56,081 57,246 55,894
One year later 50,810 49,612 58,141 80,739 93,171 61,419 51,183 53,924 57,108
Two years later 53,519 48,108 56,155 79,646 91,130 56,023 47,726 48,330
Three years tater ' 53,961 44,027 58,004 69,505 0D,453 52,803 45,490
Faur years later 55,116 45,572 55,443 65,434 87424 50,179
Five years later 55,728 43,316 53,627 62,177 86,199
Six years later 54,785 43,233 54,184 60,797
Seven years later 53,473 42,893 53,740
Bight years later 53,929 42,152
Mine years later 53,718
‘7 Increase (decrease) in estimated net incurred
claiins and allocated claims adjustment expense
from end of policy yeat 6,162 (@355 (5992)  (22,268)  (7483) (15490) (12839)  (7.751) (138) -

Wote: The above financial data is summarized for individual contract periods. Subsequent premium and related expense-adjusiments and reserve developments are recorded in the yea
incurred for fiscal year financial reporting, but are-included in Hie applicable contraci year for purposes of the above schedule. Accordingly, components of the change in net assets as
determined on 2 contrack-year basis will differ from teat included in BRIM's fiscal year financial stalements.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Reconciliation of Unpaid Claims and Claims Adjustment
Expense Liability by Type of Contract (Unaudited)

The table below presents the changes in unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability for
BRIM’s lines of business.

Fiscal-and Policy Year Ended June 30

2009 2008
Mine House Mine House
Liability Property Subsidence Bill 601 Total Liability Property Subsidence Bill 601 Total

(fn Thousands)
Unpaid claims and claims
adjust‘ment expense
liability at beginning
of fiscal year $ 158,985 $2469 % 639 § 135 $162,228 5156121 §$2,099 § 983 % 361 § 159,564
Incurred claims and claims : '
adjustment expense:
Provision for ingured
everts of the
current fiscal year 49,039 6,068 87 - 55,804 53910 2,806 530 - 57,246
(Decrease) increase
in provision for
insured events of )
prior fiscal years (18,090) (1,324) 172 (48)  (19,290) (12,350)  (1,067) (692) (155  (14,264)
Total incurred claims .
and claims adjustment _
expense 30,949 4,744 959 48y 36,604 41,560 1,739 (162) {155) 42 982

Payments:
Claims and claims
adjustment expense
attributable to insured
cvents of the current
fiscal vear 8,095 1561 97
Claims and claims
adjustiment expense
attributable to insured
events of the prior
fiscal years 35,989 {202y 508 51 36,346 31,527 261 107 T 31,966
Total claims and claims
adjustment expense
payments 44,084 1,359 605 51 46,099 38,696 1,369 182 71 40,318
Total unpaid claims and
claims adjustment
expense liability at
end of the fiscal year B 145850 $5854 § 993 % 36§ 152733 3158985 $2469 % 630 § 135 $1627228

9,753 7,169 1,108 5 - 8,352
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Combining Statement of Net Assets

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents
Advance deposits with carrier/trustee
Receivables, net
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted receivables, net

Total current assets

MNoncurrent assets:
Investments
Restricted investments

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Estimated unpaid claims and
claims adjustment expense
Unearned revenue
Agents commissions payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Intetprogram (payables) receivables
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Estimated claims and claims adjustment
expense, noncurrent
Compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Net assets

0909-1086753

June 30, 2009
(In Thousands)
House -
Other Bill 601
Lines of Mine Medical
Business Subsidence Malpractice  Total
$ 19532 % - 8 - $ 19,532
174,215 - - 174,215
631 - - 631
- 7,391 5,258 12,649
— 372 = 372
104,378 7,763 5,258 207,399
82,811 - - 82,811
-~ 22,650 — 22,650
271,189 30,413 5,258 312,860
47,899 751 - 48,650
6,530 705 - 7,235
1,247 - - 1,247
626 3 - 629
&) 9 = -
56,293 1,468 - 57,761
103,805 242 36 104,083
57 1 — 58
103,862 243 36 104,141
160,155 1,711 36 161,902
- 28,702 5,222 33,924
117,034 — — 117,034
3117.034 § 28702 § 5222 $150.958
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and

Changes in Net Assets
June 30, 2009
(In Thousands)
House
‘Other Bill 601
Lines of Mine Medical

Operating revenues

Premiums

Less excess coverage/reinsurance premiums
Total operating revenues

‘Operating expenses
- Claims and claims adjustment expense
General and administrative expense
Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Investment income

Finance income

Net nonoperating revenues

Changes in net assets

0909-1086753

Business Subsidence Malpractice  Total

$ 60,498 $ 1926 §$ - § 62,427
(5,944) — - (5,944)
54,554 1,929 - 56,483
35,693 959 (48} 36,604
3,834 58 2 3,804
39,527 1,017 (46) 40,498
15,027 912 46 15,985
3,011 (759) 60 7.312

- - 31 31
8,011 (759) o1 7,343
$ 23.038 § 133 % 137 § 23328
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009
West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Deposits Disclosure
Form 7

June 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Carrying
__Amount
Cash with Treasurer $ 2614 (D
{1) Agrees to audited statement of cash flows as follows:
Cash with Treasurer $ 2,614 (2)
Cash equivalents with BT 29,567 (2)

$ 32181 (3)
(2) Agrees to Form 8-A.

(3) Agrees to audited statement of cash flows.

0909-1086753
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- West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Investments Disclosure

Form 8
June 30, 2000
(In Thousands)
Amount Amount Amopunt Fair
Investiment Pool Unrestricted Restricted Reporied Value
BTT and WVIMB Investment Pools:
Cash liguidity $ 17,691 $ 11,876 (1) § 29,567 $ 20,567
Short-term 82,811 (1)  22:650 (1) 105461 105,461

Total investments

$ 100,502 (1) _§ 34,526

(1) Agrees to andited staterment of net
assets as follows:

Invesiments with BTI and WVIMB $ 100,502 $ 34,526
Less investments classified as

cash equivalents 17,601 11,876
Total investments $ 82811 (2)_8 22650 (2)

(2) Agrees fo audited statement of net assets.

(3) Agrees to Form 8-A.
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$ 135028 (3) _§ 135028
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Discussion Draft as of 11/16/2009
West Virginia Board of 'Risk and Insurance Management
Deposits and Investments Disclosure
Form 8-A

June 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and investments as reported in the financial statements
to the amounts disclosed in the footnotes:

Deposits:;
Cash and cash equivalents as reported:
Noncurrent — restricted $ 12,649 (1)
Unrestricted - 19,532 (1)
Total cash and cash equivalents 32,181
Less investments disclosed -as cash equivalents 20,567 (2)
‘Carrying amount of deposits as disclosed on Form 7 $ 2614 (2)
Investments:

Investments as reported:

Noncurrent — restricted _ $ 22,650 (1)

Noncurrent — unrestricted _ 82,811 (1)
Total investments 105,461

Add invesiments disclosed as cash equivalents 29,567 (2)
Carrying value of investments as disclosed on Form 8 § 135,028

(1) Agrees to audited statement of net assets.

(2) Agrees to Form 7.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Schedule of Receivables (Other Than State Agencies)

Form 9

June 30, 2009
(In Thousands)

Accounts receivable (other than State agencies):
Total accounts receivable as of June 30, 2008
Less allowance for doubtful accounts

Net receivable

(1) Derived from the audited statement of net assets as follows:

Receivables:
Premiums due from other entities
Qther

Restricied receivables:

Premiums due from other entities

(2) Agrees to the audited statement of net assets.

0909-1086753

Amount

$ 1,390 (1)
(387) (2)

$ 1,003

$ 392 ()
626 (2)

372 (2)
$ 1390
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Schedule of Changes in Long-Term Obligations — Compensated Absences

Form 13
June 30, 2009
(In Thousands)
Balance as
Final Reported Balance
Maturity  June .30 Other June 30
Type of Debt Date 2008 Payments Changes 2009
‘Compensated absences —
annual leave Varics $ 52§ - 5 6§ 58 (1)

(1} Agrees to audited statement of net assets.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
‘Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial
Statements in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

‘We have audited the basic financial statements of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance
Management (BRIM) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, and have issued our report
thereon dated October __, 2009, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered BRIM’s internal conirol over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of BRIM's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of BRIM’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a conirol does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis, A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a responsible
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented
or detected and corrected on a timely basis,

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to
be material weaknesses, as defined above,
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether BRIMs financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not :an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Directors,
and others within the entity, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

October __, 2008

0805-0947773 : 55









Appendix B: Draft letter of
representation

Confidential - Esast & Youmg LLP

2009 audit resulis and eommunications

0908-1087574



DRAFT

November __, 2009

Ernst & Young LLP

900 United Center

500 Virginia Street East
Charieston, West Virginia 25301

In connection with your audits of the basic financial statements of the West Virginia
Board of Risk and insurance Management (BRIM) as of June 30, 2008 and June 30,
2008 and for the years then ended, we recognize that obtaining representations from us
concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling
you to form an opinion whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the statement of net assets, statements of revenues, expense and changes in

net assets, and cash flows of BRIM in conformity with US generally accepted accounting
principlés.

- Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are
- material. ltems are considered material, regardiess of size, if they involve an omission or

misstatement of accounting infarmation that, in light of surrounding circumstances,
makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information
would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are truefo the best of our
knowledge and belief:

Management's responsibilities

We recognize that, as members of management of BRIM, we are responsible for the fair
presentation of its financial statements. We believe the statements of financial position,
resulis of operations and cash flows are fairly presented in conformity with US generally
accepted accounting principles applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding
years. After consultation with the Financial Accounting and Reporting Section of the
Department of Administration, we have concluded that the patient compensation injury
fund is an agency fund of the State, and will be reflected as such in West Virginia's (the
State} Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). Accordingly, proper disclosure
of the exclusion from BRIM’s financial statements has been made in the notes to the
financials.

The basic financial statements properly classify all funds and activities. Net asset
components (invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted)
and fund balance reserves and designations are properly classified and, if applicable,
approved. Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and
programs in the statements of activities, and allocations have been made on a
reasonable basis. Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities



DRAFT

within program revenues, generai revenues, contributions to term or permanent
endowments, or contributions to permanent fund principal, as applicable. Required
supplementary information is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines
(MD&A, public entity risk pool disclosures).

We recognize that we are responsible for BRIM’s compliance with the laws, regulations,
grant agreements, and confracts that are applicable to it. We have identified and
disclosed to you, all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements
that could have a direct and material effect on financial statement amounts, including
legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds. We
are not aware of any noncompliance that could have a direct or material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts.

We are not aware of any violations (and possible violations) of laws, regulations, and
provisions of contract and grant agreements with effects that should be considered for
disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a lost contingency. We
have followed applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving, and amending
budgets, deposits and investments, including advance deposit requirements. We have
made available 10 your representatives all financial records and related data. We have
no plans or inientions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of
assets and liabilities.

Unrecorded audit differences

There were no unrecorded audit differences identified during the current audit and
pertaining fo the latest period presenied.

Minutes and contracts

We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of directors and commitiees
of directors or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet
been prepared. We also have made available to you all significant contracts, including
amendments, and agreements and have communicated fo you all significant oral
agreements. We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would
have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

internal coniro!

There are no transactions of a material nature, individually or in the aggregate, that have
not been properly recorded in the accounting records underlying the financial
statements.

We are not aware of any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the design or
operation of internal control over financial reporting. There have been no significant
changes in internal control since June 30, 2008.

Risks and uncertainties

There are no risks and uncertainties related to significant estimates and current
vulnerahilities due to material concentrations that have not been disclosed in accordance
with AICPA Statement of Position 94-6, Disclosure of Certain Significant Risks and
Uncertainties. :
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Ownership and pledging of assets

BRIM has satisfactory title to all assets appearing in the balance sheet. No security
agreements have been executed under the provisions of the Uniform Commercial Code,
and there are no liens or encumbrances on assets, nor has any asset been pledged. All
assets to which BRIM has satisfactory title appear in the balance sheet.

Advance deposit with insurance company or trustee

All claims identified in prior years as being on the detail of claims paid by an insurance
company, which do not represent claims covered by the retrospective rating plans, have
been excluded from the section of the retrospective rating report that summaries claims
paid during the current year. Thus, the summary of claims paid by an insurance
company only represents claims actually paid through the retrospective rating plans and
no adjustments for such items need to be made to claims paid during the determination
of advanced deposits held with an insurance company or trustee.

Receivables and revenues

Receivables represent valid claims against the debtors indicated and do not inciude
amounts for goods shipped or services provided subsequent to the balance sheet dates,
goods shipped on consignment, or other types of arrangements not constituting sales.
Ali revenue recognized as of the balance sheet dates has been realized (or is realizable)
and earned. Revenue has not been recognized before (1) persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, (2) goods have been deliverad or services rendered, (3)

consideration to be received is fixed or determinable and (4) collectability is reasonébl_y
assured.

Adequate provision has been made for losses, costs and expenses that may be incurred
subsequent to the balance sheet dates in respect of sales and services rendered prior to
those dates and for uncollectible accounts, discounts, returns and allowances, eic., that
may be incurred inthe collection of receivables at those dates. We believe that the

premium surcharge receivable from Bray & Cakley and Wells Fargo is collectible and no
additional reserve is necessary.

fnvestments

Investiments are properly valued. To our knowledge, none of BRIM's investments has
permanently declined in value to an amount less than the carrying value in the financial

statements. Deposits and investment securities are properly classified in category of
custodial credit risk.

BRIM's cash equivalent/investments are held in pools that are managed by the Board of
Treasury Investments (BTI) and the Investment Management Board (IMB), the
management of which is not under BRIM's control. Such amounts are uncategorized
investments under GASB 3's risk classification. Investments are reported by the BRI
and IMB at fair value and are accounted for BRIM accordingly, with changes in fair value
included in investment income. The earnings from these pooled investments are
distributed to investment poal participants based on their pro rata participation in the
pools. The financial statements reflect the required GASB 40 deposit and risk
disciosures.



DRAFT

Liability for unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses

The unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses liability represents management's
best estimate for each line of business for the ultimate net cost of all reported and
unreported claims and claims adjustments expense incurred and unpaid through June
30, 2009 and 2008, estimated based on case basis estimates of claims reported prior to
June 30, 2009 and 2008, estimated based on actuarial projections of historical loss
development of claims incurred but not reported, and estimates of expenses for
investigation and adjustment of all incurred and unadjusted losses, including estimates
of expected salvage and subrogation receipts from such losses. Given the inherent
degree of variability in any such estimates, the liabilities reported at June 30, 2009 and
2008 are a reasonable best estimate of BRIM's ultimate losses to be incurred to
discharge BRIM's obligations. The liabilities for claims and claims adjustment expenses
are continually reviewed and adjusted as necessary as experience develops or new
information becomes known; such adjustments are included in current operations. We
have made available to you all documeniation and analyses used to develop
management's best estimate.

The liability for unpaid claims and claims adiustment expenses was based on the best
data available to us; however, because actual claim costs depend on such complex
factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, these
estimates are subject to a significant degree of variability. These estimates are
continually reviewed and adjusted as necessary as experience develops or new
information becomes known; such adjustments are included in current operations.
Although we believe the estimates of the liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment
expenses at June 30, 2009 and 2008, are reasonabie in the circumstances, it is possible
that BRIM's actual incurred claims and claims adjustment expenses will not conform o
the assumptions inherent in the determination of the liability; accordingly, the ultimate
setflement of claims and the related claims adjustment expenses may vary significantly
from the estimates included in BRIM's financial statements. Also, we believe the
footnotes describe this uncertainly. We do not believe that a deficiency exists; therefore,
no liability is required to be accrued as of June 30, 2009 and 2008.

We agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the liability for unpaid claims and
claims adjusiment expense and premium deficiency analysis and have adequately
considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the amounts and
disclosures included in the financial statements and the underlying accounting records.
Woe did not give or cause any instructions to be given to specialists with respect fo the
values or amounts derived in an aitempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise
aware of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or objectivity of the
specialists. All significant matters utilized in the actuarial estimation process by our
consulting actuaries are determined or approved by management and we are in a
position to and have made an informed judgment on the results of the valuation.

‘Reinsurance

The liabilities for unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses are stated net of the
estimated amounts recovered from reinsurers. All such reinsurance recoverable
amounts are collectible at June 30, 2009 and 2008; however, BRIM remains primarity
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liable in the event that the reinsurers do not honor their obligations. We are unaware of
any material adverse change in the financial condition of BRIM's significant reinsurers
that might raise concern regarding their ability to honor their reinsurance commitments.
The reinsurance contracts provided to you by BRIM represent BRIM's complete
agreements with its assuming companies, and there are no modifications, either written
or oral, of the terms of BRIM's reinsurance contracts of additional reinsurance
agreements that have not been provided to you. We are not aware of any reinsurance
transactions that have been disallowed by the Waest Virginia Department of Insurance.
All retrospectiively rated reinsurance contracts have been property accounted for.

Related parly transactions

Transactions with related parties, as defined in Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 57, Related Party Disclosures, and related amounts receivabie or
payable, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements and
guarantees, have been properly recorded and/or disclosed in the financial statements.

Arrangements with financial institutions

Arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other
arrangements involving restrictions on cash balances and line-of-credit or similar
arrangemenis have heen properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities

There are no unasserted claims or assessments, including those our lawyers have
advised us of, that are probable of assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies (other
than those disclosed in the financial statements).

‘There have been no violations or possible violations of laws or regulations in any

jurisdiction whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements
or as a hasis for recording a loss contingency.

There have been no internal investigations or communications from regulatory agencies
or government representatives concerning investigations or allegations of
noncompliance with laws or regulations in any jurisdiction, noncompliance with or
deficiencies in financial reporting practices, or other matters that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

There are no other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies considered material,
individually or in the aggregate, that are required to be accrued or disclosed by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, nor are there any accruals for loss
contingencies included in the balance sheets that are not in conformity with the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5.

Oral-or written guarantees

There are no oral or written guarantees, including guarantees of the debt of others.
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Purchase commitments

There were no agreements or commitments to repurchase assets previously sold. There
were no material commitments outstanding at June 30, 2009 as a resuit of being a party
to futures or forwards contracts, short sales or hedge transactions.

Fraud

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and
controls to prevent and detect fraud. We have no knowiedge of any fraud or suspectad
fraud involving management or other employees who have a significant role in the
Company'’s internal control over financiai reporting. In addition, we have no knowledge
of any fraud or suspected fraud involving other empioyees where the fraud could have a
material effect on the financial statements. We have disclosed to you all allegations of
financial improprieties, including fraud or suspected fraud, coming to our attention
(regardless of the source or form and including, without limitation, allegations by
“whistle-blowers”) where such allegations could result in a misstatement of the financia
statements or otherwise affect the financial reporting of the Company.

Independence and Conflicts of Interest

We are not aware of any capital lease, material cooperative arrangement, or other
business relationship between BRIM and Ernst & Young LLP or any other member firm
of the global Emst & Young organization. We are not aware of any reason that Ernst &
- Young LLP would not be considered to be independent for purposes of BRIM's audit.

There are no instances where any officer or employee of BRIM has an interest in a
company with which BRIM does business that would be considered a “conflict of
interest.” Such an interest would be contrary to BRIM policy.

Effects of new accounting principles

We have adopted GASB 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation
Obligations. BRIM does not have any such obligations and the statement did not have a
material impact on the basic financial statements.

Supplementary information

The supplementary information on Claims Development Information and Reconciliation
of Claims Liability Type included has been prepared and presented in conformity with
the guidelines established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board in its
Statement No. 30.

Subsequent events

Subsequent to June 30, 2008, no events or transactions have occurred or are pending
that would have a material effect on the financial statements at that date or for the period
then ended, or that are of such significance in relation to the Company's affairs to
require mention in a note to the financial statements in order to make them not
misleading regarding the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the
Company.
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We understand that your audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States as established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and was, therefore, designed primarily for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the financial statements of the Company taken as a whole, and
that your tests of the accounting records and other auditing procedures were limited to
those that you considered necessary for that purpose.

Very truly yours,

Charles E Jones, Jr. Director
Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Stephen Schumacher, Chief Financial Officer
Board of Risk.and Insurance Management

‘Melody Duke, Controlier
Board of Risk and Insurance Management
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Overview

The US property and casualty (P/C) industry is emerging from the turmoil in financial markets
with significant isolated damages, but so far no serlous general impairment. The outlook for 2009
includes greater risks from continuing volatility in investment and underwriting performance, what
looks fo be a more active merger and acquisition (M&A)Y market, and the prospects of market
defining regulatory changes. Looking ahead, this may be the beginning of a transitional if not
transformational environment for the industry. It is a time when challenges in the competitive

landscape can become opportunities for the efficient and well-prepared. In this context, we have
identified seven key actions:

1. Redirect focus on premium pricing
. Monitor claims inflation risk

. Prepare for changes in requlatory oversight

. Address effective expense control

2
3
4_ Prepare for changes in accounting requirements
5
6. Rethink risk modeling

7

. Watch for new M&A activity

Redirect focus on premium pricing

Because of the recent financial crisis, compounded by a return to normal or above-average
catastrophe loss levels, price reductions are likely over for the foreseeable future, After a four-year
period where technical and market pricing diverged, 2009 appears to be reversing the trend. This
does not necessarily mean a return o a hard market, but it does signal a change in the dynamics of
competition in the marketplace.

In most P&C business segments, pricing levels have been soft for the past four years. During that
pericd, rate decreases were offset by an increase in insured exposures, resulting in virtually flat
premiums. This changed with a softening of the economy in 2007, Still, profitability held up well,

as loss levels declined in 2006 and 2007 in large part due to fewer catastrophe losses, loss reserve
releases, and favorable casualty loss frequency experience. In spite of the ongoing rate competition,

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

Quality In Everything We Do



returns on capital reached record levels
in 2007.

In 2008 catastrophes, pricing and the financial
market crisis contributed to stress in the
industry. Insured catastrophes totaled over
$50 hillion and reduced loss reserve releases
contributed to an overall deterioration of 7
points in the combined ratio. Although it is
unlikely that this level of catastrophe losses
alone will significantly change overall market
pricing, the current crisis in financial markets is
exerting upward pressure on pricing. As a result,
Us P&C policyholder surplus has fallen because
of (i} financial guarantee insurance losses, (i)
other than temporary impairment (OTT}) of
investment grade bonds and preferred stock,
and (iil) substantial decreases in values of
equity holdings. Surplus may drop by 10% or
maore by the end of 2008.

Early indications of pricing negoliations give
strong support o at least a firming of the
market In most lines. Insurer and reinsurer
concerns over loss volatility and potential for
mega-losses in highly developed catastrophe-
prone locations shoutd contribute to price
stabilization. Additionally, losses in directors
and officers (D&O) and errors and omissions
(E&D) products will certainly result in
significant price increases in those market
seqgments.

These factors will give rise to additional scrutiny
by both rating agencies and regufators. Surplus
preservation, particularly against catastrophic
events, remains a critical “cycle survival”
strategy.

Monitor claims

inflation risk

The environment for P&C insurers through
2009 is likely to continue a volatile pattern that
drives claims costs. In spite of the deepening
recession and the rising concern of deflation,
longer term, the industry rust account for

the massive deficit spending undertaken by

the federal government. Insurers’ exposure

to inflationary risk in many instances is
fundamentally different from the factors that

drive inflation in the broader economy: medical
costs, construction costs and tort issues
continue to account for the lion's share of the
industry’s inflation trend. Although severity
and freguency trends have benefited from the
positive effects of broad tort reform in the last
decade, these effects are siarting to erode, The
most significant factor in the broader economy
will be the [ong-term impact of the federal
bailout and economic stimulus packages that
have already added to government deficits.

Through most of 2008, infiation spiked upward:
since the financial crisis, the commodities
futures for construction inputs have fallen and
retail prices have followed. In an inflationary
environment, P&C insurers as third-party payers
or in adversarial claims settlement positions

are in a poor negotiating position relative fo
[arger purchasers of commodities or services.
Medical cost is the broadest element in inflation,
and it impacts product fines such as personal
and commercial autornobile, general lability,
workers' compensation, commercial multiperil,
and medical malpractice insurance. Over the
past five years, medical care costs and hospital
servicas have outpaced general inflation by
20%, making it difficult to predict the direction
or magnitude of medical cost inflation.

Prepare for changes in

regulatory oversight

Will 2009 he the year that federal regulation
gets a firm foothold in the insurance industry?
Recent market events, including the federal
involvement in banking, have added a sense of
urgency to these discussions. Momentum faor
change in the insurance regulatory structure
is-buiiding, and the near-term uncertainty
about the outcome presents challenges for the
indusiry,

it is almost certain that the P&C industry will
face increased regulation as an outcome of the
current crisis in the financial services industry.
Regulation is likely to be more intrusive,
encompassing more continuous monitoring of
activities and financial performance, perhaps
with higher standards of solvency over the
longer term (even though there may be some
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loosening of standards to help life insurers out
of the current crisis).

The form of federal supervision favored in

the Treasury's 2008 report, Blueprint for a
Modernized Financial Regulatory Structure, is
the optional federal charter (OFC) — allowing
insurance organizations the opportunity to
choose the form of regulatory oversight that
they find most appropriate, Af this stage,

it appears OFC is giving way to increased
likelinood that federal regulation will be applied
to all insurance and financial services seclors to
some degree.

While the case for federal oversight is more
apparent in the life industry, where geography
rnatters fittle in product design or consumer
preferences, the P&C industry's geographic
variations present a formidable hurdle for
centralization. Solvency protection and the
workings of guaranty funds vary dramatically
among the states. Differing levels of
catastrophe exposure are a divisive factor that
separates their interests. Consumer protection
in automobile and housing repair, variations

in litigation trends driven by the influences of
state courts and legislation, and business sector
concentrations all differ-considerably by state. In
2007 and 2008, there are no ciear indications
that solvency or failure of regulation has been

a systemic problem in the P&C arena, as it

has in other insurance sectors and in financial
services. Some form of compromise legislation
may apply to P&C companies: maintaining rate
and consumer pratection regulation at the state
level, but developing federal mechanisms to
monitor solvency and provide an alternative to
guaranty funds.

In the existing state-based insurance regulatory
frameworls, the current guaranty fund structure
is not designed to respond to events iike the
recent crisis. It handles specific failures of an
individual entity, but not systemic failures that
might broadly imperil the industry. States are
hampered in addressing system-wide events
because the process lacks the principle of

a "lead reguiator”' and the dollar cost is too
high. While state regulation is structured to

act by seizing a company when a situation
forces the equivalence of bankruptcy, it is



limited in the capability and tools to head off
systemic problems before they cause collapse.
Furthermore, state ratings agencies currently
act as “shadow regulators,” and while they
may be able to influence behavior more
proactively, they need to address a current fack
of consistency and transparency.

Federal regulation could alter the competitive
fandscape of the P&C insurance industry.
Opportunities to accelerate geographic
expansion through both organic and acquisition
channels will develop for those prepared to
exploit the changes. Value will likely be created
by those who can quickly adopt and defend
strong regional and super-regional market
presence.

Prepare for changes in

. accounting requirements

Accounting issues will be critical in 2009

and beyond as companies prepare to adopt

a new financial reporting platform. With the
Securities and Exchange Commission's 2008
pronouncements regarding the convergence

of US generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), companies are beginning to
prepare for the anticipated change to a market-
consistent framework.

Implementing principles-based and market-
consistent accounting challenges nearly every
established system and operational facet of

an insurance company. Under such a system,
income statements and balance sheets become
more volatile as assets and liabilities are
increasingly subject to market valuations.

IFRS 4 Phase Il and Solvency I have planned
European Union implementation dates of 2012.
Until then, US companies need to build the
infrastructure to accommodate not only the
existing IFRS framework but also the added
challenges these changing rules and regulations
present. This involves a huge operational
undertaking, even in the best of times, but the
financial crisis and recession have increased the
pressures. :

As companies plan for the upcoming changes,

the definition of the market-consistent
framework may underge changes as the impact
of the financial crisis, and the role played by
mark-to-market accounting of thinly-traded
instruments, is better understood. The
international Accounting Standards Board has
allowed companies in certain circumstances to
reclassify some financial instruments out of the
“trading"” categery and into the “loan” category,
which is carried on a cost basis, to help resolve
the credit crisis, while réaffirming the need for
transparency in asset valuations.

Thus, companies need to prepare for an
uncertain roll-out of these requirements. This
can increase the risks associated with some
longer-term strategic decisions, where changing
accounting or related tax regimes may alter

the nominal value of the decision. Management
rmust keep up with their peers in adopting
systems and information capabilities to respond
fo these ¢hanges as they unfold.

Address effective
expense control

For most of this decade, expense ratios have
been rising steadily. For the P&C industry
overall, underwriting, acquisition and general
expense ratios as a percentage of premium are
expected to reach 27.5% in 2008, this is higher
than in any year since 1999. More significantly,
underwriting, acquisition and general expense
doellars were up 52% in those nine years. While
premiums and claims grow in tandem, expenses
should see henefits of size and economies

of scale -and so far, this has not happened.
The pace of cost increase indicates that real
inefficiencies are accurmulating and are not
simply a function of slowing premiums.

Long-term reversal of expense growth reguires
an emphasis on effective service outcomes in
three critical operating areas: underwriting
costs (including policy administration),
acquisition expense (primarily, fees to brokers
and agents), and claims-adjustment expense,

Expense cutting cannot be haphazard or it may

create more problems than it solves.

Cffshore and onshore outsourcing are expense-
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control options to reduce operating costs,
especially those refated to routine submissions
and policy administration. However, outsourcing
core functions carries risks associated with the
[ong-term stability of the service providers.
Regardless of the risks, successful outsourcing
is a long-term solution that requires a broad
view in ferms of training, effectiveness of
communication, and quality control.

Distribution is another area of expense control
where efficiencies can be achieved through
afternative marketing channels, including
online quotation and policy delivery. While
improvements have been made in personal
lines, the complexity of polficy applications
continues fo slow the process on the
commercial side, Compounding this issue is the
rather low confidence that corporate buyers and
agents/brokers often feel in using new forms

of electronic commerce. However, this shouid
change as a new-generation of users become
maore comfortable with electronic interchange
and become more included in risk-management
purchasing and decision-making positions,

Many of the largest P&C insurers underiook
cost-reduction initiatives during the second half
of 2008, However, a longer-term, sustainable
approach to insurance spending must be applied
to make a real difference.

Rethink risk modeiing

In the year ahead, P&C insurers will need fo
incorporate risk-management lessons learned,
particularly lessons learned in 2008, into

their risk-management processes. Insurers

will go beyond refreshing models, to focus on
expanding information used for risk analysis and
to better understand the realities of new and
continually volatile financial-market conditions,

Risk models may provide insight into the proper
application of information or into the addifional
information that is needed, but they shouid
only play a part in the overall risk-management
process. When it comes to modeling priorities,
line managers and corporate functions will
have increasing respensibility o ensure

that lessons learned are incorporated into
medeis. Adjusiments may be needed in



order to improve the modeling of changing
economic and capital-markets conditions.
Onthe asset side, modelers will pursue more
complex credii-ratings transition matrices,
correlations between asset classes and sectors,
the importance of maintaining liquidity under
stress scenarios, and methods of projeciing
both the deterioration and recovery of assets
over time. Outputs from models and scenario
tests will also need to be examined critically
against real-world experience with an increased
respect for extreme scenarios and worst-case
hypotheticals.

Modeils may also continue to provide insight

to managers, and are an opportunity to
illustrate effects to third-party audiences in
characteristics such as unexpected correlations,
rates of decay or deterioration, and aggregation
risks. But the effort to improve models will fall
flat without supervision by managers who are
accountable and who are knowledgeable about
real-world trends and influences.

Watch for new M&A activity

The financial crisis has created a unigue
confluence of events resulting in an
unprecedented landscape for insurance mergers
and acquisitions. The government bailout of
one of the world's largest financial institutions
has placed its most prized assets on the
auction block. Additionally, other insurers are
looking to focus on core businesses and shed
nonstrategic lines of business in order to free
up capital and streamline operations. The total
insurance properties currently available for sale
exceeds the M&A activity of the last several

years combined. Concurrently, potential buyers
are capital-constrained. Insurers are holding on
to any excess capital to protect against further
deterioration in investment markets, and
private equity investors are challenged to find
an appetite in the credit markets for large-scale
acquisitions.

Transactions will wait until acquisition-minded
insurers are more assured of having adequate
capital, and until private-equity investors are
once again able to access the debt market.
Given current equity valuations, the use of stock
is not generally available as currency to fund
transactions. A few companies wilf emerge from
the current situation with strong balance sheets
and will use a portion 6f capital fo fund an
acquisition, but they are likely to wait until the
depth of the current economic downturn, and
its impact on operating performance, is better
understood.

If current economic conditions persist, two
additional factors will come into play that

will drive down current sales prices for
insurance properties. First, pressures from
debt holders, regulators and rating agencles
will force organizations to sell at prices befow
current valuations. Second, the performance
of insurance units on the sales block will
deteriorate over time as morale and employee
performance sufier with the uncertainty of

a sale. Depending on the speed and pace of
economic recovery, 2009 may be one of the
more signlificant years in the insurance M&A
market.

Data supplied by Conning Research & Consulting
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Chief Financial Officer P-Card Report
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Deputy Director/Claim Manager Loss Control Report
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE
WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

September 9, 2009

BOARD

MEMBERS: John R. Lukens, Chairman
Bruce Martin, Vice Chairman
Sherry Cunningham, Member

BRIM PERSONNEL: Charles E. Jones, Jr., Executive Director
Robert Fisher, Deputy Director/Claim Manager
Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA, CFO
Jerry Gladwell, Underwriting Manager
Chuck Mozingo, Assistant Claim Manager
C. Blaine Nelson, Deputy Underwriting Manager
Melody Duke, Controller
Jeremy Wolfe, Loss Control Manager
Carl Baldwin, Loss Control Specialist
Stephen Fowler, BRIM Counsel
Linda Dexter, Recording Secretary

BRIM PROGRAM Charles Waugh, Chartis
REPRESENTATIVES: Charles Meyers, Chartis
Tom O’Rourke, Chartis
Joanna Valleau, Chartis
Harry “Skip” Morris, Wells Fargo
Bob Ayers, Wells Fargo

GUESTS: Sandy Price, WVU Health Sciences
Michael J. Gansor, WVU Health Sciences
Brian Carrico, Marshall University

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management was

called to order by Chairman Lukens at 1:05 p.m. on Wednesday, September 9, 2009, at
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90 MacCorkle Avenue, SW, Suite 203, South Charleston, West Virginia.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mr. Cunningham moved the approval of the minutes of the June 23, 2009 Board
Meeting. The motion was seconded by Mr. Martin. There being no discussion, a vote
was taken and the MOTION ADOPTED.

Before proceeding with his report, Mr. Jones introduced Tom O’Rourke,
Regional Underwriting Manager of the Risk Management Group of Chartis’ Cleveland
Office, and Charles “Chuck” Meyers, Vice President of Special Projects of their New
York CFQO’s office. Mr. Jones explained that Mr. Meyers would be providing the Board
with some insight as to the operational and financial status that exists in their
organization, as well as what led to the creation of “Chatrtis,” how it is a “special purpose

vehicle,” and the futuristic prospects for the company.

Presentation on the “ State of Chartis”

Mr. Meyers began his presentation by noting that the name change does not
have a direct financial impact. The concern has been that with reputation.

On July 27, 2009, AIG Inc. announced the formation of a special-purpose
vehicle, AIG’s commercial property/casualty and high net-worth personal lines business,
which is comprised of AlU’s commercial insurance, foreign general insurance and
private-client business. Though organizationally separated from AIG, Chartis remains
100% owned by the company. AIG is positioning Chartis to be more independent, with
the proceeds from the eventual sale to pay back some of the billions the government

has invested into the company.
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The biggest challenge facing Chartis, AIG’s commercial property/casualty and

high net-worth personal lines business, is not getting out of the shadow of AIG so much

as dealing with a difficult economy.

Although AIG lost billions last year, the unit now known as Chartis was profitable,

with an operating income of $3.3 billion worldwide.

Scanning through the printed update previously distributed to the Board,

Mr. Meyers briefly touched upon some of the chain of events and a few major points as

follows:

1.

2.

The largest concentration of Chartis’ investments is in municipal securities.

Several U.S. companies comprise Chartis. This was, in part, because of
the regulatory environment in which Chartis operates.

Mr. Meyers thereafter noted that National Union Fire Insurance Company
of Pittsburgh, PA., which is the largest of the companies comprising Chartis,
is the company through which all of BRIM’s insurance business is handled.

These companies make up a “pool,” which allows the risk to be shared among
them.

Since net written premiums are down because of the drop in workers’
compensation, the question is: If the net written premiums are down,
will Chartis be forced to sell off securities in order to pay claims?

The answer to that question is “no,” we don't rely on this year’s premiums
to pay for last year’s claims. That's what the investment portfolio is for.
The normal cash flow will keep Chartis from being in a position where it
would be forced to sell off securities.

With regard to the separation of Chartis from AIG, Mr. Meyers stated that
there was no hard and fast timeline, but they hope to find a buyer for 19.9%
of Chartis by September 2010. However, it is the regulatory environment
that protects us that also slows down this process somewhat. Once the
company does have an outside investor, it becomes easier to sell off the
other “chunks.”
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Based upon the process explained for selling off various percentages of the
company, Mr. Meyers predicts that by the end of three or four years, Chartis will be
completely unaffiliated from AIG.

During further conversation, the pooling structure was explained and how regulators
assign a formula to risk-based capital—a formula that's set by regulators to all company
property and a way of assigning risk to the elements of your investment portfolio.

In conclusion, Mr. Meyers remains optimistic about the future of Chartis and believes
Chartis will continue to be a positive leader and remain strong in the property and

casualty businesses in the U.S. and Canada.

REPORTS

The monthly report of the Executive Director was received and filed, a copy of
which is attached and made a part of the record.

Mr. Schumacher thereafter presented the Chief Financial Officer's Report. The
unaudited balance sheet as of June 30, 2009, the unaudited income statement for the
twelve months ending June 30, 2009, and the line of business statements (Total State,
Total SB 3, Mine Subsidence and BRIM HB 601) for the same periods were received
and files, copies of which are attached and made a part of the record.

A CD containing copies of the May, June and July 2009 purchasing card invoices
was distributed to each Board member. Chairman Lukens signed the acknowledge-
ment form for the February, March and April 2009 billing. The acknowledgement form
was retained by the Finance Department.

The Loss Control Report of the Deputy Director/Claim Manager was received

and filed, a copy of which is attached and made a part of the record.
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UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There was no unfinished business.

NEW BUSINESS
There was no new business.
ADJOURNMENT

There being nothing further, the meeting adjourned at 2:09 p.m.

Board Chairman Date



Executive Director’s Report

September 9, 2009

A. Chartis

A representative from Chartis will attend the Board Meeting on
September 9, 2009. Given the perilous financial times many
businesses find themselves in, the timing is appropriate for Chartis to
provide insight to the Board as to the operational and financial status
that exists in their organization as well as what their plans are for the
future. Scheduled to appear are Tom O’Rourke, Regional
Underwriting Manager of the Risk Management Group of Chartis’
Cleveland Office, and Chuck Myers, Vice President of Special Projects
with their New York CFQO's office.

BRIM is currently in the 5" year of a five-year agreement with Chartis
as the carrier for the liability program. Our initial agreement with
Chartis (formerly AlG) began July 1, 1995 and was for a term of five
years (July 1, 1995 thru June 30, 2000). Prior to the expiration of that
five-year agreement, BRIM published a Request for Proposal (RFP),
which was won by the incumbent Chartis (formerly AlG) for the time
frame July 1, 2000 thru June 30, 2005. Prior to the June 30, 2005
expiration, BRIM again published a RFP for the contract we are in now,
July 1, 2005 thru June 30, 2010. There have been considerable
revisions and cost savings to the program such as establishing a trust
account from which claims are paid in which BRIM receives the
interest on the trust. Internally, we are reviewing our options and
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procedures for direction as to how we are to structure our program for
the next five years.

B. Marshall University/WVU Medical Malpractice Deductible Program

C.

* As of August 31, 2009, Marshall has deposited $1,507,545.61
into the escrow account. The year-to-date cumulative interest
totals $116,528.05. There have been four disbursements
totaling $37,116.75 made during fiscal year 2009 thus far.

e As of August 31, 2009, a total of $5,504,599.75 has been

transferred or deposited into WVU's escrow account. The
year-to-date cumulative interest totals $116,002.33.

There have been 15 disbursements totaling $366,817.93 made
during fiscal year 2009 thus far.

e The phase-out stage of the Trauma Physician Program is almost

completed. When completed, all physicians should have either
transferred to the Physicians' Mutual or alternatively, retired.

Litigation

The August 2009 report from Chartis for the period ending July 31,
2009 currently reveals that in July, no cases were tried to verdict, and
YTD, nine cases have been tried to a verdict, with six defense verdicts
and three plaintiff verdicts.

New lawsuits have increased 26.5% over year-to-date 2008; closed
lawsuits have increased 13.9%, and pending lawsuits have increased
1.6%.

Interim Discussion Issues

As an agency with the Department of Administration (DOA), BRIM
attends the Joint Committee on Government and Finance (JCGF) with
Cabinet Secretary Ferguson. The Cabinet Secretary reports to the
JCGF issues pertinent to the respective agencies and their financial
condition. Although we routinely report BRIM’s financial condition as
completely funded, there are usually questions about other issues.
Some of the questions pertain to coverages we provide or don’t
provide, i.e., Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists coverage for State
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vehicles; the $475,000 telephone bill attributed to the Physical Therapy
Board; the scam at the Auditor’s Office netting approximately $2 million
among others. There were no BRIM operational concerns voiced by
the Committee.

E. BRIM Financial Report

The complete BRIM Financial Report is provided by the Chief Financial
Officer, who will comment on the FY 2009 year-end audit, total
reserves, and the effect of lower investment returns on net income.

F. Appraisal Reports

BRIM contracted with three separate appraisal firms to determine
replacement cost of currently insured buildings valued at $1 million or
more. The Underwriting Department is spearheading this effort

G. BRIM Projects

1. A review of the driver training program will be covered in the
Loss Control Report. However, we are very pleased to report
that BRIM was recognized in the “Best Performance” category for its
online Defensive Driving Course. BRIM officials will be recognized
at the National Safety Council’s 2009 Congress and Exposition in
Orlando, FL, on October 24, 2009.

2. Business Continuity Plan (BCP) — Actively working on completing
the BRIM Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity Plan as well as the
Department of Administration DR/BCP. Key players are Chuck
Mozingo and John Fernatt, who will also travel to San Diego in
September for a DR/BCP conference and training.

H. Miscellaneous

1. STRIMA - The 2009 STRIMA Conference will be held in Seattle,
Washington, from September 19™ through September 24", Robert
Fisher, Steve Schumacher and June Butterfield will be accompany-
ing me to the conference.

2. Pending — We are in the process of finalizing our request to fill
two vacant Loss Control Specialist Il positions, in accordance with
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the instructions and guidelines for requesting exceptions to the
temporary restrictions on hiring.

3. The 2009 Annual Report for BRIM can now be reviewed by
accessing the website for West Virginia Legislature, clicking on
Audits/Reports, State Agency Reports, and scrolling down to
Risk and Insurance Management, Board of. Copies of the report
were previously sent to the Board Members and management staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Charles E. Jones, Jr.
Executive Director

CEJ:d
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Chief Financial Officer’'s Report
September 9, 2009

A. P Card Report

CD copies contain the supporting detail for P card purchases for the months of May, June
and July, 2009. These totals are:

May $49,696.48
June $19,182.73
July $55,780.89

B. Financial Report

e The FY’'09 external audit by Ernst & Young is underway and should be completed by
mid-October. The results presented for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 are draft
and subject to completion of the year-end audit. Most of their field work has been
completed and nothing significant has been brought to management'’s attention.

e The total reserves shown are the actuarially estimated reserves as reflected in the
recently completed risk funding study as of June 30, 2009. The reserves will be
reviewed by Ernst & Young as part of their normal year-end audit work.

e Netincome reported for the FY’09 is $23.1 million vs. $29.9 million for FY’'08. The
decrease is the result of lower investment returns and lower premium revenue for
FY’09.

e Other income is $7.3 million in FY’09. This is down about $3.3 million from FY’08
levels which is a reflection of the harsh investment environment in the first half of
FY’'09. However, investment returns recovered dramatically in the second half of
FY’09.

C. Actuarial Risk Funding Study

e AON's risk funding study as of June 30, 2009 has been completed and the final report
will be issued shortly. AON made refinements to the year-end reserve model that
better reflect the claims development within the State and Senate Bill 3 programs. The
updated claims reserves are included in the draft year-end financial statements.

D. AIG Update

e OnJuly 27, 2009 AlU Holdings announced the establishment of Chartis, Inc. as a
special purpose vehicle to house their global commercial property and casualty
businesses going forward and also appointed Kristian P. Moor as CEO of Chatrtis, Inc.

¢ John Doyle was appointed CEO of Chartis U.S., Inc. on August 11, 2009. Chartis U.S.,
Inc. is the holding company for Chartis’ commercial property-casualty companies in the
U.S. and Canada, including National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa
(National Union).

e On September 2, 2009 Chartis U.S, Inc. issued pro-forma financials for the six months
ended June 30, 2009. These results include National Union which provides BRIM’s
primary policies. National Union policyholder’s surplus is $12.3 billion at 6/30/09.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management \oq’
UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET
June 30
2009 2008
(in thousands)
ASSETS

Short Term Assets

Cash and Equivalents $ 32,181 $ 30,595

Advance Deposit with Carrier/Trustee 174,215 158,436

Receivables - Net 1,139 1,709

Prepaid Insurance - -
Total Short Term Assets 207,535 190,740

Long Term Assets

Investments 105,461 109,325
Total Long Term Assets 105,461 109,325
TOTAL ASSETS 312,996 300,065
LIABILITIES
Short Term Liabilities
Accounts payable 520 781
Claims Payable 158 13
OPEB Liability 87 35
Agents Commissions Payable 1,247 1,621
Unearned Revenue 7,235 7,705
Current Estimated Claim Reserve 48,650 50,693
Total Short Term Liabilities 57,897 60,848

Long Term Liabilities

Compensated Absences 58 52
Estimated Noncurrent Claim Reserve 104,083 111,535
Total Long Term Liabilities 104,141 111,587
TOTAL LIABILITIES 162,038 172,435
Prior Year Net Assets 127,630 97,547
Change in accounging principle for OPEB - 148
Current Year Earnings 23,328 29,935
TOTAL NET ASSETS 150,958 127,630
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS $ 312,996 $ 300,065

DRAFT - Unaudited - Management Purposes Only

BRIM - Page 1
8/31/2010



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT
For the twelve months ending

Operating Revenues
Premium Revenues
Less - Excess Insurance

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Claims Expense
Property & MS Claims Expense
Personal Services
General & Administrative Expense
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenues
Court Fees
Other post employment benefits
Investment Income
Total Nonoperating Revenues

Net Income

DRAFT - Unaudited - Management Purposes Only

8/31/2010

June 30

2009
(in thousands)

$ 62,427 $ 72,986
(5,944) (6,394)

56,483 66,592

31,204 40,991

5,400 1,991

1,349 1,260

2,545 2,987

40,498 47,229

15,985 19,363

31 30

- 30

7,312 10,512

7,343 10,572

23,328 29,935

BRIM - Page 2



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2009
(in thousands)

Total Total Mine BRIM
State SB3 Subsidence HB 601 Total
Assets
Short Term Assets
Cash and Equivalents $ 7,943 $ 11,589 $ 7391 $ 5258 $ 32,181
Deposits Held by Carrier/Trustee 90,805 83,410 - - $ 174,215
Receivables - Net 409 358 372 - $ 1,139
Prepaid Insurance - - - - $ -
Total Short Term Assets 99,157 95,357 7,763 5,258 207,535
Long Term Assets
Investments 62,461 20,350 22,650 - 105,461
Total Long Term Assets 62,461 20,350 22,650 - 105,461
Total Assets $ 161,618 $ 115,707 $ 30,413 $ 5258 $ 312,996
Liabilities
Short Term Liabilities
Accounts payable 105 406 9 - 520
OPEB Liability 43 41 3 - 87
Claims Payable 134 24 - - 158
Agents Commissions Payable - 1,247 - - 1,247
Unearned Revenue - 6,530 705 - 7,235
Current Claim Reserve 25,812 22,087 751 - 48,650
Total Short Term Liabilities 26,094 30,335 1,468 - 57,897
Long Term Liabilities
Compensated Absences 38 19 1 - 58
Claim Reserve IBNR 54,134 49,671 242 36 104,083
Total Long Term Liabilities 54,172 49,690 243 36 104,141
Total Liabilities 80,266 80,025 1,711 36 162,038
Prior Year Net Assets 78,297 15,699 28,549 5,085 127,630
Current Year Earnings 2,964 19,830 153 137 23,084
Total Net Assets 81,261 35,529 28,702 5,222 150,714

Total Liabilities and Retained Earnings (Deficiency) $ 161,527 $ 115,554 $ 30,413 $ 5258 $ 312,752




Operating Revenues
Premium Revenues
Less: Excess Insurance
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Claims Expense
Property & MS Claims Expense
Personal Services
General and Administrative Expense
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues
Interest Income
Court Fees

Total Nonoperating Revenue

Net Income (Loss)

West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Unaudited Income Statement
for the twelve months ending June 30, 2009
(in thousands)

N

Total Total BRIM
State SB3 Subsidence HB 601 Total
31,596 $ 28,902 $ 1,929 $ - 62,427
(2,250) $ (3,887) $ - $ - (6,137)
29,346 $ 25,015 $ 1,929 $ - 56,290
26,100 4,849 354 (99) 31,204
2,086 2,658 605 51 5,400
683 622 44 - 1,349
675 1,854 14 2 2,545
29,544 9,983 1,017 (46) 40,498
(198) 15,032 912 46 15,792
3,162 4,798 (759) 60 7,261
- - - 31 31
3,162 4,798 (759) 91 7,292
2,964 $ 19,830 153 % 137 23,084
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Loss Control Report to the Board
May 2010

We are pleased to report that we have now filled the two vacant Loss Control Specialist
positions. Our new employees will report to work for the first day on June 16, 2010. We
plan to introduce them to you at the next Board meeting.

On May 18, 2010 we sent out Loss Control Questionnaires to all state agencies. The
deadline for their submission to BRIM is August 1, 2010.

More than fifty senior management officials were present for the March 4, 2010 risk
management seminar that we hosted for county boards of education and for state colleges
and universities. This was the first such seminar we’ve sponsored in quite a few years.
We hope to be able to sponsor similar seminars geared toward these and other classes of
insured.

We have begun the process of renewing our risk management service vendor contracts
for the 2010-2011 fiscal year with Aon Global Risk Consulting and Chubb Group of
Insurance Companies. This will be the second year for these contracts.

During the months of March and April, AON conducted 74 inspections and CHUBB
conducted 332. The reports are being processed according to established procedures.

Since my last report, our loss control technical staff reports the following activity:

6 Loss Control Visit
These are standard loss control visits which focus on all coverage
areas and which result in information and/or loss control recommendations
being provided.

8 Standards of Participation Visits
These are visits which are designed to provide assistance to our
insured who are seeking to become compliant with the BRIM
Standards of Participation program.

3 Presentation Visits
These are visits during which we provide active training and/or
outreach to a group of individuals.

1 Continuing Education Visit
These are visits which are designed to provide the loss control specialists
with education and training for professional development.

5 Inspection Observation Visits
These are visits during which we accompany a vendor inspector during
scheduled inspections.



Loss Control Report to the Board
May 2010

289 Senate Bill #3 Standards of Participation evaluation have been
completed since February 23, 2010.

Dated: S~ 20’20/0

pectfully submitted,

/ Lot

Robert A. Fisher
Deputy Director and Claim Manager
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